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Day 1 – Monday, October 7, 2019 

8:30 am – 9:00 am Workshop Check-In 

9:00 am – 10:15 am Session A:  Welcome from the Commission  

- Introductions 

- Review workshop objectives 

- Overview of the Commission 

10:30 am – 11:15 pm Session B:  Introduction to the Standards / Eligibility Criteria 

- Orientation to the Standards of Accreditation 

- Review of eligibility criteria 

11:15 am – 12:00 pm Session C:  Application Process/Forms  

- Accreditation Process Timelines 

- Applications 

- Self-Evaluation Report 

12:00 pm – 1:00 pm Lunch with ACCSC Staff  

1:00 pm – 2:00 pm Session C:  Application Process/On-Site Evaluation 

- On-Site Evaluation 

- Team Summary Report 

- Commission Review 

2:15 pm – 3:15 pm Session D: Standards of Accreditation  

Student Achievement 

- Graduation and Employment Chart 

- Appendix VII 

- Third Party Verification 

3:30 pm – 4:30 pm Session D: Standards of Accreditation  

Management  

- Management 

- Institutional assessment and improvement planning  

 



 

Day 2 – Tuesday, October 8, 2019 

8:45 am – 9:45 am Session D: Standards of Accreditation  

Programs  

- Program Advisory Committee  

- Learning resource system  

10:00 am – 10:45am Session D: Standards of Accreditation  

Faculty  

- Educational Administration 

- Faculty qualifications 

11:00 am – 12:00 am Session D: Standards of Accreditation (continued) 

Recruitment  

- Catalog 

- Enrollment Agreement 

- Advertising 

12:00 pm – 1:00 pm Lunch with ACCSC Staff 

1:00 am – 1:30 pm Session D: Standards of Accreditation  

Admissions  

- Setting the standard 

- Documentation 

1:30 pm – 2:00 pm Session D: Standards of Accreditation  

Student Services 

- Advising/counseling 

- Records 

2:15 pm – 3:00 pm Session D: Standards of Accreditation  

Student Achievement  

- Student Learning/Assessment 

- Satisfactory academic progress  

3:30 pm – 3:45 pm Session E:  The Big Finish  

- Key concepts 

- Parting Thoughts and Shots 

 



Welcome from the Commission
Session A



ACCSC Workshop Team
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Senior Associate, Special Projects

Sean Forman
Senior Analyst

Alanna Marx
Senior Manager of Institutional Development

Juanita Gurubatham
Director of Institutional Review and Development



ACCSC Workshop Team

Glenda Ward
Front Desk/Logistics

Michelle Ragland
Conference and Events Coordinator



Agenda and Materials Review

• Agenda – Fluid!

• Ground Rules – Be Curious and Considerate!

• Instructional Materials 



Workshop Objectives

Who are you?

Where are you from?

What is your school?

What are your programs?

How many students?

Why are you here?



• ACCSC mission and values

• Principle steps in the accreditation process

• Institutional Success

-Standards are a blueprint

-Outcomes measure success

-Strong leadership is critical

-Assessment and Improvement… to infinity and beyond!

ACCSC Workshop Objectives



Private – not government

Voluntary – and required

Peer-review

What is Accreditation?



• The U.S. Department of Education authorizes
accrediting agencies to serve as reliable authorities as to
the quality of educational institutions.

• An agency seeking national recognition must
demonstrate the agency’s compliance with the federal
criteria for recognition in areas such as administrative
capacity, scope of standards, fairness of processes and
procedures, and transparency in actions.

Authorization from the U.S. 
Department Of Education



FEDERAL

ACCREDITATION

STATE

State: 
Law with the 
primary focus 
on consumer 
protection

Accreditation: 
Peer review standards process 
with the primary focus on 
educational quality and ethical 

Federal/Department 
of Education: 
Law/regulation with 
the primary focus on 
fiduciary 
responsibility

Accountability Triad



• Founded in 1965
• Continuously recognized by the U.S. 

Department of Education since 1967
• 5 Year Recognition (2011) – No Findings
• 5 Year Recognition (2016) – No Findings

• Organized as a 501 (c)(3)
• 13 member board / 4 year terms
 5 Public Commissioners (appointed)
 7 School Commissioners (elected by membership)
 1 School Commissioners (appointed by the 

Commission)
• Professional staff of 28

ACCSC Structure



• Private and public postsecondary institutions

• Non-degree and degree granting institutions -
associate, baccalaureate and master’s

• Occupational, trade and technical career education

• Distance education

Scope of ACCSC Accreditation



ACCSC'S mission is to ensure 
quality education that enhances 
student success in the workforce

Mission



ACCSC Core Values



Accomplishing our mission with a 
commitment to ethics, honesty, trust, 

consistency and fairness.

INTEGRITY



Fulfilling our responsibilities to one 
another, the higher education 
community, and the public

ACCOUNTABILITY



Cultivating personal and professional 
growth through learning, goal setting, 

innovation, commitment and 
participation.

CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT



Fostering a free and timely exchange of 
ideas and information in collegial 

environment through the establishment 
of strong partnerships that emphasize 

respect and mutual support.

COMMUNITY



Students First
Placing students at the center of the 
accreditation process and asking "how 
will this impact students?" when making 
decisions.

Our Intentions



Excellence
Meeting our mission and doing our very 
best.

Member Support
Supporting institutional and student 
success while exploring trends, 
innovations, and opportunities

Our Intentions



Leadership
Positioning ACCSC as a significant 
thought and action leader for the present 
and future of accreditation

Our Intentions







School Characteristics



Institution Size by Student Enrollment

79%

15%

4% 2%

300 or less

301‐600

601‐900

901+

Average as of June 30, 2017: 
234



67%

24%

8%
1%

Certificate

Associate

Baccalaureate

Master's

Distribution of Program by Credential



• Is this a good fit for my school?

• What changes will need to be made?

• Do I have the resources to be successful?

The Accreditation Workshop is designed to 
provide the information necessary for 

participants to answer the following questions:



Standards of Accreditation
Introduction



Peer Review
Creating a community committed to best 
practices and student achievement

Self-Evaluation
Creating a pathway for a reflective and 
introspective journey of discovery

Our Principles



Continuous Improvement
Driving a commitment to continually 
find ways to do better on that journey

Quality
Ensuring that best practices translate to 
student success

Our Principles



Accountability
Requiring institutions to meet best 
practices and to do for students what they 
say they will do

Our Principles



The Standards of Accreditation:
Blueprint  for Success 



Introduction Rules Substantive Appendices By‐Laws



• The primary purpose of the Commission is to establish and

maintain and

among its accredited institutions.

• Participation in the process of accreditation is .

• Accredited schools , and must meet the
Standards of Accreditation throughout the accreditation period.

Introduction: Key Concepts



• The Commission’s deliberations and decisions are
made on the basis of the of an
accreditation review.

• A school must supply the Commission with
complete

with all accrediting standards if it is to
be granted and maintain accreditation.



• The to establish it
is meeting the standards.

• A is placed upon
information, data, and statements provided by the
school

• The of a school are
fundamental and critical to the process.



• A fundamental component is .

• Self-evaluation is an of the complete
school, conducted by faculty and students, as well as
by the school administration.

• The process of self-evaluation is expected to be a
experience.



• Each school
that are appropriate for a postsecondary-

educational institution

• The school is
, in accordance with the

Commission’s standards.



• The standards and accreditation process emphasize
educational quality by .

• Two important outcomes that the Commission uses
in its assessment process are
rates and rates.



• The Commission has the authority and
responsibility to establish and promulgate criteria
for the evaluation and accreditation of private
career schools and colleges.

• These criteria take the form of the Standards of
Accreditation which are under continuing review.

• Revisions to the Standards of Accreditation are made
by the Commission as appropriate and required.

The Standards



• Persons, institutions and organizations affected
by, or with an interest in, the Commission’s
standards and policies are advised of proposed
standards and of the date they will be given
consideration by the Commission.

• After distribution of proposed standards,
interested persons, institutions and
organizations are given a minimum of 30 days
to file written comments with the Commission.

Call for Comment



After considering the written comments,
the Commission may:
˜ Adopt the standard as proposed,
˜ Adopt the standard with revisions,
˜ Defer action for further study and

consideration, or
˜ Reject the proposed standard.



Provides guidance to accredited schools 
regarding the adoption of additions and 
revisions to the Standards of Accreditation

and reflects the Commission’s final 
adoption of additions and revisions to the 

Standards of Accreditation.

Accreditation Alert



Application of Standards



SCALABLE STANDARDS

• As much as is good or necessary for some requirement or 
purpose

Adequate

• adequate for the purpose; enough 

Sufficient

• suitable or fitting for a particular purpose

Appropriate

• agreeable to reason or sound judgment; logical 

Reasonable



Quantitative
Assessment

Qualitative
Assessment



Eligibility Criteria
Session B



Scope

Eligibility Criteria



Scope

The school and its programs must fall within the 

Commission’s Scope and meet Educational

Objectives as stated in these Rules.

Section I (D)(4)(a), Rules of Process and Procedure



Scope
Private and public

Postsecondary

Non-degree and degree-granting (up to master’s)

areas of study

Distance education

Section I (B)(2), Rules of Process and Procedure



INSTITUTIONAL ACCREDITATION



Programs and Scope

Within the Commission’s scope 

Must be approved by the Commission 

Through the application or program approval process

Section I (B)(2)(a), Rules of Process and Procedure



Educational Objectives



Educational Objectives

Career oriented and provide graduates with the 

necessary competencies, skills, and level of 

education for employment in their fields of study.

Section I (C)(1), Rules of Process and Procedure



Limitation of Scope
The Commission may decline to consider for
accreditation otherwise eligible schools if the
programs offered:

• Fall Commission’s
and competence or

• There is a necessary for
meaningful review.

Section I (B)(3), Rules of Process and Procedure



Secondary Educational Objectives

A school may have secondary educational objectives
(e.g., a GED preparation course, refresher training
course, avocational courses, continuing education
courses, etc.)

Section I (C)(2), Rules of Process and Procedure



Secondary Educational Objectives

, any such educational objectives may not

have greater priority within the school’s mission and

operations than its career-oriented educational objective

Section I (C)(2), Rules of Process and Procedure



Limitation of Scope

Schools primarily directed toward 

or G

are ineligible for accreditation by the Commission. 

Section I (B)(3), Rules of Process and Procedure



Secondary Educational Objectives

A school may not advertise secondary educational objectives in a 

manner that would represent those courses as within the scope 

of the school’s ACCSC institutional accreditation* 

Section II (D)(1)(b), Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation 
*Unless and until the school has applied for and received Commission approval for such courses to be included within that scope.



Secondary Educational Objectives

The inclusion of courses with secondary educational
objectives as within the school’s institutional scope of
accreditation is at the option of the institution

Section I (C)(2), Rules of Process and Procedure



Educational Objectives

A school may enter into consortium or partnership agreements 
where a portion of a program is offered by another entity

Section I (C)(3), Rules of Process and Procedure and Section II (A)(9), Substantive 
Standards, Standards of Accreditation

A school may enter into contractual arrangements with business, 
industry, or government agencies for group training purposes

Section I (C)(4), Rules of Process and Procedure



Scope

Operating Legally

Eligibility Criteria



Legal and Disclosure Requirements
• The school must have all necessary authorizations from the

state(s) in which it operates

• Be in compliance with all applicable local, state, and federal
requirements.

Section I (D)(4)(b), Rules of Process and Procedure



Legal and Disclosure Requirements

In cases where accrediting standards and federal 

or state government requirements differ, the 

. 

Section II (B)(2)(e), Rules of Process and Procedure



Legal and Disclosure Requirements

A school must to each accrediting 
agency, state agency, and federal agency *

Must in its status.

Section II (B)(2)(e), Rules of Process and Procedure

*With regard to identity (i.e., main school, branch, or equivalent), purpose, governance, programs, credentials awarded,
personnel, finances, and constituents served



Legal and Disclosure Requirements

Schools under investigation or sanction by a local, 

state, or federal agency may be deemed ineligible to 

apply for initial accreditation with ACCSC.

Section II (D)(4)(b), Rules of Process and Procedure



Scope

Operating Legally

Two Years Operation

Eligibility Criteria



Two Years Operation
At the time of application, the school must have 

been training students continuously for the 
preceding two consecutive years*

must commit to operating continuously 
thereafter

Section II (D)(4)(d), Rules of Process and Procedure

*except for regularly scheduled breaks and vacation periods



Scope

Operating Legally

Two Years Operation

Graduate from longest program

Eligibility Criteria



Graduate from Longest Program

The school must have graduated at least one class 

of students from the longest program(s) offered 

during the two-year period preceding its 

application for accreditation

Section II (D)(4)(e), Rules of Process and Procedure



Graduate from Longest Program

Prior to a grant of initial accreditation, the school 

must be able to provide student achievement 

outcomes for its programs*

Section II (D)(4)(e), Rules of Process and Procedure

* Prepared in accordance with the Commission’s student achievement reporting requirements.



Scope

Operating Legally

Two Years Operation

Graduate from longest program

Financial Structure

Eligibility Criteria



Sufficient Resources

Proper Operation of 
The School

Discharge of 
Obligations to Students



Scope

Operating Legally

Two Years Operation

Graduate from longest program

Financial Structure

One program of 300 clock hours

Eligibility Criteria



for the two most recent
fiscal years prepared in accordance with the
Instructions for the Preparation and
Submission of Financial Statements and
Related Information



financial statements

• Prepared on the basis of accounting

• In accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles ( )

• By an certified public accountant

by the state to perform such services



STOP!
An Application for Initial
Accreditation will not be accepted
from an institution when the
financial statements show any of the
following:



Net Loss
• For the two most recent fiscal years (both)

Negative Net Worth

• For the two most recent fiscal years (both)

Negative Cash Flow

• For the most recent fiscal year



Scope

Operating Legally

Two Years Operation

Graduate from longest program

Financial Structure

One program of 300 clock hours

Workshop

Eligibility Criteria



Sufficient Resources

Director

Authority to 
Implement Change



The Application Process
Session C – Part One



WARNING: What you are about to see are maximum 
timeframes to complete each step in the process of initial 

accreditation. 

• Accreditation is a learning process, and all schools
proceed at a different pace.

• Schools have no longer to complete, but may complete in
a shorter amount of time.



Step Deadline

Complete Accreditation 
Workshop

October 8, 2019

Submit Application for Initial 
Accreditation – Part I

April 8, 2020

ACCSC – Application 
Acceptance Letter

October 8, 2020

Submit Application for Initial 
Accreditation – Part II and 
Draft Self-Evaluation Report

April 8, 2021



Step Estimated Timeframe

Orientation Evaluation June 2021 – August 2021

Orientation Report July 2021 – September 2021

Submit “Official” Part II 
and SER

September 2021 – November 2021



Step Estimated Timeframe

On-Site Evaluation November 2021 - January 2022

Team Summary Report December 2021-Febuary 2022

Response January 2022 – May 2022

Commission Review February 2022 or May 2022

School Action Letter March 2022 or June 2022



Fee

Initial Accreditation 
Workshop

$650

Application for Initial 
Accreditation – Part I

$750

Application for Initial 
Accreditation – Part II

$2250

Orientation Evaluation $1500

On-Site Evaluation $7,300*

Total $11,650

The figure of $6,500 is for a two-day on-site evaluation with 
one team leader, one education specialist, one Commission 

representative, and one local occupation specialist.



The Break Down

Team Leader, Education 
Specialist, and 
Commission 
Representative:

$1,500 per evaluator for 
the first day and $600 per 
evaluator for each day 
thereafter

Occupation/Subject 
Matter Specialist

• Local: $200 per day 
• Non-local: $1,500 for the 

first day and $600 per 
day thereafter





Workshop



Attend an 
accreditation 

workshop prior to 
the submission of the 

application for 
accreditation

The individual or team 
with the authority to 
make change at the 

institution.



Workshop

Application for Initial Accreditation - Part I



• Submitted to the ACCSC office within six
months after workshop attendance.

• Collects information about the school and its
programs, and determines compliance with
ACCSC eligibility criteria



Application Attachments

1. Processing Fee of $750

2. Accreditation Workshop Participation Documentation, 
attendees’ current position(s), and a Staff Personnel Report

3. Completed Program Chart

4. Copies of State License(s)

5. Application for a Satellite Location (if applicable)

6. Financial Statements

Application for Initial Accreditation – Part I



Financial Review Committee

The ACCSC Financial Review Committee
evaluates the financial statements submitted
with Applications for Initial Accreditation to
determine whether the school has sufficient
resources.



Financial Review Committee

Red: 
Financial statements indicate the institution’s 
financial structure is not sound

Yellow: 
Financial statements may not provide sufficient 
information to demonstrate financial viability

Green: 
Financial statements indicate that the 
institution’s financial structure is sound



Workshop

Application for Initial Accreditation - Part I

Application Acceptance Letter



• Within six months of application submission

• Application has been accepted, may proceed into
the next part of the process

• Effective date of institution’s compliance with
accrediting standards

• Recommendations and observations



Workshop

Application for Initial Accreditation - Part I

Application Acceptance Letter

Application for Initial Accreditation - Part II and SER



Application for Initial Accreditation – Part II

• Due six months from the date of the Application
Acceptance Letter

• Updated snapshot of the institution

• Longer list of attachments, providing opportunity for more
in-depth analysis of the institution



Self-Evaluation Report

• A narrative response to a series of questions, guiding the
school through an assessment of its effectiveness in
achieving educational objectives and status of compliance
with accreditation standards.

• Formulates the basis of a dandy institutional assessment and
improvement plan.



Involve the 
Entire School

Internal and 
External 
Validation

DocumentationOngoing 
process

Improvements 
due to Internal 

Efforts

Institutional Assessment and 
Improvement Planning

Self‐Evaluation



Ask the following questions:

• Does the SER response answer the question being 
asked?

• Is the SER complete and clear?

• Is the SER realistic to reflect day-to-day operations?

• Is necessary documentation available to support the 
response?

• Is any supporting documentation complete, clear, 
and concise?



Workshop

Application for Initial Accreditation - Part I

Application Acceptance Letter

Application for Initial Accreditation - Part II and SER

Orientation Evaluation



Orientation On-site Evaluation

A consultative review conducted by an
experienced accreditation staff member
providing feedback regarding compliance with
standards and readiness to continue through
the accreditation process.

Report/revised materials



The Application Process
Session C – Part Two





On‐Site Evaluation



• Verify data in the school’s reports, applications, responses, and 
any other information

• Develop an understanding and perform an assessment of how 
well the school meets its  objectives 

• Determine the extent to which the school complies with the 
Standards of Accreditation.

Purpose of the On‐Site Evaluation



Your very own Commission representative contacts you to schedule 
the on‐site evaluation

• Typically required two days

• Regular “School Day”

 Not Exam Week 

Majority of Students in Class

Administrators and faculty present

Scheduling the On‐Site Evaluation



The On‐Site Evaluation Team

• Team Leader/Management Specialist  (administration /management)

• Education Specialist (education delivery / curriculum / faculty)

• ACCSC Staff Member (technical assistance / interpretation of 
Standards)

• Occupation Specialist (equipment / facilities )

• Distance Education Specialist (if required)

• State Observer (invited)

Conflict of Interest – Clearing the Team

Scheduling the On‐Site Evaluation



Prepare Your Team

• Meet with all faculty and staff to explain the purpose of ACCSC’s on‐site 
evaluation, identify the roles of the team members, and general 
expectations of the on‐site evaluation

• Your team should be aware of ACCSC’s Standards of Accreditation, 
particularly as those standards pertain to their roles within the 
organization.

• Familiarize your team with the Application for Accreditation and Self‐
Evaluation Report that will be the foundation of the on‐site evaluation 
team’s review.

PREPARATION IS KEY!



Prepare a Work Room 

• Identify a secure room that will allow a comfortable work space 
for the number of team members that will be reviewing your 
institution.

• Ensure there are adequate outlets or power strips, and Internet 
access (provide required access codes).



Prepare Materials

• Use Appendix B as a guide for furnishing the work room with 
required documentation

• Label the materials in the room in an organized and 
understandable fashion



ORGANIZED DOCUMENTATION

• Documentation is the basis of the on‐site evaluation 
team’s verification of the accuracy and compliance of the 
self‐evaluation report. 

• Prepare by having documentation readily available and 
organized in a manner that allows prompt response to 
team requests.



OUTCOMES

Present documentation in the format provided in Appendix B. 

• For each Graduation and Employment Chart, prepare a list of 
students (grouped by cohort start) in the format of the table 
provided.

• Have documentation for each student categorized as 
unavailable for graduation, graduates classified as “further 
education” and “unavailable for employment.”



EMPLOYMENT RECORDS

Must include the following information:
 graduate name and contact information
 date of initial employment
 place of employment
 employer address and phone number
 employer contact person/supervisor
 descriptive job title and duties



Student File Review 

The team will randomly select files for current students, graduates, and 
withdrawn/terminated students to review for evidence of :

 Documentation of admissions requirements 

 Fully executed enrollment agreements

 Satisfactory progress evaluations

 Advising sessions

 Transcripts for graduate files

 Refund calculations 

 Evidence the refund was made



DAY ONE:

• The team leader, education specialist and Commission 
representative will arrive at 9:00 a.m. 

• If parking is limited, please have spots available for the 
on‐site evaluation team. 

• Have a member of the school staff at the front door 
ready to greet the team. 



• Guide the team to the room that you have set aside. They 
will need 5‐10 minutes to set up 

• Provide a brief tour of the school ‐ an overview of the 
physical space so the team can get a feel for the location 
of key areas 

• Identify one or two key staff members that can serve as 
liaisons to the on‐site evaluation team. The review will go 
more quickly when information can be obtained 
efficiently.



• Team Leader conducts the entrance interview and sets 
expectations with school

• The team will select files for review from the lists of 
students required by Appendix B of the SER.



The work begins!

Over the course of the day the team will 
 survey students
 review documentation
 observe classes
 meet with staff and faculty
 verify student achievement data
 review the curriculum and supporting resources
 evaluate equipment and facilities



• Occupation Specialists depart after the completion of 
their reviews. 

• Throughout the day, team members communicate 
with school officials regarding the team’s progress 
and potential findings.

• For evening programs, the team will stay to survey 
students and observe the operation of the school in 
the evening.

• At the conclusion of Day One, the Team Leader will 
meet with school officials to provide a “debrief” of 
the day’s activities and to outline areas of focus for 



DAY TWO

• The team leader, education specialist and 
Commission representative will return at 9:00 a.m. 

• Team members address outstanding issues and 
complete their notes and observations 

• Exit Interview



On‐Site Evaluation

On‐Site EvaluationReport



The TSR is a factual report and summary of the on‐site
evaluation team’s findings as to the school’s compliance
with accrediting standards.

The TSR serves as the official record of the onsite
evaluation.



On‐Site Evaluation

On‐Site Evaluation Report

Response to the Report





Provide a Narrative Response

• Explain circumstances that impacted the school’s 
ability to demonstrate compliance

• Describe correct action and provide documentation 
to show current compliance

• Describe the school’s plan to ensure compliance in 
the future



Blue 
Ribbon 
Response

Comprehensive 
Narrative

Precise 
Documentation

ACCSC 
Resources



On‐Site Evaluation

On‐Site Evaluation Report

Response to the Report

Commission Review



Commission Review
• The Commission reviews the written record and makes the

accreditation decision

• Written records includes: the application for accreditation, the
Self‐Evaluation Report, the On‐Site Evaluation Report, the school’s
response, Team Leader comments and the school’s response if
any, and any additional information collected about the school,
which may include reports from government and private
agencies.



Commission Actions for Initial Applicants

Accredit
• Maximum grant of 3 years

Defer
• Response indicates progression towards 
compliance

Fail‐to‐Grant
• School has not demonstrated the capability to 
make changes necessary to demonstrate 
compliance



Accredit the Institution
Applicants for initial accreditation that are found to be in
compliance with accreditation standards and requirements will be
granted accreditation for three years.

… with Stipulations
Requests for additional information to address minor deficiencies
in the documentation:

• Issues that can be corrected within a relatively short period of
time

• Must be addressed before the grant of accreditation becomes
effective



Accredit with Reporting

• Used to monitor ongoing compliance in a certain area
• Accreditation is effective as of the date of the letter

 Management

 Program Advisory Committee

 Learning Resource System

 Employment Records

Commission Actions



On‐Site Evaluation

On‐Site Evaluation Report

Response to the Report

Commission Review

School Action Letter



School Action Letter

• The Commission’s decision is articulated in a letter

• The official record of the Commission’s consideration

• Issued approximately 30 days after the conclusion of the 
Commission meeting

• Contains detailed information regarding the school’s 
accredited status and any response requirements.



Student Achievement!



Performance by Program

STUDENT GRADUATION

GRADUATE EMPLOYMENT IN THE CAREER FIELD

PASS RATES ON LICENSURE/ CERTIFICATION EXAMS
(where required to work in a particular career field)



The Graduation and Employment Chart 
-the Commission’s mechanism for collecting
student achievement data
-information must be provided in accordance
with the prescribed requirements and
instructions



The Commission determines the established
benchmark rates of student graduation and
graduate employment from information
collected in Annual Report submissions.



A school demonstrates successful student 
achievement when graduation and 

employment rates meet or exceed the 
established benchmarks. 



Benchmark:
Not less than one (1) standard 
deviation below the mean for 

comparable schools or programs.



ESTABLISHED BENCHMARK GRADUATION RATES

Program Length in 
Months

Average Rates of Graduation 
Demonstrates Acceptable Student 

Achievement

Standard 
Deviation

Established Benchmark 
Graduation Rates

1-3 92% 8% 84%

4-6 84% 11% 73%

7-9 72% 12% 60%

10-12 69% 14% 55%

13-15 64% 14% 50%

16-18 62% 15% 47%

19-23 61% 18% 43%

24+ 53% 13% 40%



Program 
Length in 
Months

Average Rate of  
Employment 
Demonstrates 

Acceptable 
Student 

Achievement

Standard 
Deviation

Benchmark 
Employment Rates

All 
Programs

78% 8% 70%

Benchmark Employment Rate



Licensure/Certification Exam Pass Rate

For those programs where a governmental entity
requires the attainment of a passing score on a
licensure/certification exam in order to work in a
particular field, the Commission determines a
program’s licensure/certification exam pass rate
to be acceptable when at least 70% of the students
that take the exam attain a passing score.



For any program that has a graduation or
employment rate that is lower than the
Commission’s established benchmark rates, a
school may still demonstrate with supporting
documentation the successful achievement of
its students in that program by providing other
reliable indicators of successful student
learning…



Economic 
conditions

Location

State and 
national trends

Student 
population

Program 
Length

Students who withdraw 
and are employed in field



Appendix VII
Guidelines for Employment Classification



The employment classification is appropriate
and reasonable based on the educational
objectives of the program.

The employment is for a reasonable period of
time, is based on program objectives, and can be
considered sustainable (e.g., not a single day
of employment).



The employment is directly related to the
program from which the individual graduated,
aligns with a majority of the educational and
training objectives of the program, and is a paid
position.



Regular Employment 
The school secures written documentation from the
employer verifying the employment; or

The school secures written documentation from the
graduate verifying the employment; or



Regular Employment – Verbal Verification
Demonstrate diligent efforts to obtain written
documentation AND

Signature of school staff attesting to verbal
verification with the employer AND the graduate.



Self-Employment - Attestation

 The graduate’s name and contact information
 An attestation that the self-employment is aligned with the

individual's employment goals, is vocational & is based on
and related to the education and training received

 An attestation that the graduate is earning training-related
income

 In cases where licensure is required for employment, an
attestation that such licensure has been achieved.



Career Advancement

Students that are already employed in a training
related field at the time of graduation can be
considered employed when completing the
program of study as follows



Career Advancement - Attestation
 The school shows with written documentation from the

employer or the graduate that the training allowed the
graduate to maintain the employment position due to the
training provided by the school; or

 The school shows with written documentation from the
employer or the graduate that the training supported the
graduate’s ability to be eligible or qualified for advancement
due to the training provided by the school.



• Graduate Name and Contact Information; 

• Date of Initial Employment; 

• Place of Employment; 

• Employer Address and Phone Number; 

• Employer Contact Person/Supervisor; and 

• Descriptive Job Title and Duties. 



In addition to these guidelines, the Commission
expects that schools will regularly gather
information from employers as a means to
assess the preparedness of graduates for
employment and make program modifications
as may be necessary based on that feedback.



Session D:
Third Party Verification



Independent Third-Party Verification: Random Sampling

How Often? • Every Year (Annual Report)

How Many?
• 10% of ACCSC-Accredited 

Schools 

ACCSC



Independent Third-Party Verification

How Often?
• Initial Accreditation and Every 

Renewal Cycle (1-6 Years)

How Many? • 50% Sample of all Programs

Schools



The school must engage an independent third-
party to verify the employment data reported to 

ACCSC on Graduation and Employment Charts 
submitted with the Self-Evaluation Report. 

Choose a Vendor



The school must provide the following:
– A signed attestation from the independent third-party is not affiliated with

the school or share any part ownership in the school or its affiliated schools.

– The independent third-party does not provide any other services to the
school.

– The independent third-party will only report accurate findings through
work conducted in an independent manner.

– The independent third-party understands and applied ACCSC’s
classifications exactly as stated.

– A description of the methodology that the verification agency used for the
selection of the 50% sample.

– A description of the methodology that the verification agency used for the
verification process.

Independent Third Party Verification of Employment



• Attestation Regarding Past Records

Previous Affiliations of any employee of the verification
company: Loss of Accreditation, Bankruptcy, Loss of Title
IV Eligibility, Court Action(s), Civil/Criminal
Proceeding(s)

• Description of training

Explanation of training on ACCSC’s definitions and
methodology for counting students as verified as correct,
verified as different, verified as not correct, or not verified
provided to each person directly responsible for executing
the independent third-party verifications.

Independent Third Party Verification of Employment



The independent third-party must select minimally a 50% 
sample of employed graduates (classified as “Graduates -

Employed in the Field”) on line 14 of each G&E Chart and report 
the results from that sample. 

P.S. Once the 50% sample has been selected by the independent 
third-party, for the purposes of this application, the independent 

third-party may not alter the sample in an effort to get better 

results.

Independent Third Party Verification of Employment



 The independent third-party must verify
employment records from the employer or graduate
either verbally or in writing.

 The independent third-party must verify the
employment data in a manner independent from the
school. The independent third-party must conduct
the verifications without assistance from the school,
with the exception of the school’s provision of
records to be verified.

Independent Third Party Verification of Employment



Verification Categories



Same Employer 
as listed in school 

record

Job Title

Exact, Obvious 
or Confirmed 

Match

Start Date 
within 45 days of 
verified start date

Verified as Correct



Example:  Automotive Technology

Confirmed by 
Employer or 
Graduate as 
substantively 
similar job 
responsibilities 

Exact Match

• Mechanic

Obvious Match

• Auto 
Mechanic

Confirmed 
Match

• Confirmed by 
Employer or 
Graduate as 
substantively 
similar job 
responsibilities

A completed employment record for a graduate from the Automotive Technology 
program indicates the graduate is employed in field as a Mechanic.



Verified but 
Different

Start Date is 
MORE THAN 

45 Days 
Different

Not an 
OBVIOUS 
MATCH or 

CONFIRMED 
MATCH

Verified but Different



Unable to 
Verify

Unable to obtain 
verification of 

the school’s 
employment 

record

From 
either the 
Employer

Or the 
Graduate

Work 
Number

Unable to Verify



Graduate Record 
Not Found in 
Employer’s 

Records

Different 
Employer

Grad denies 
working in 

position

Position is 
unpaid / 

intern

Verified as Not Correct



The school must provide the following chart in the Self-Evaluation 
Report with aggregate institutional results across all programs:

*   Students classified as Graduates ‐ Employed in Field across all programs for Annual Report year

Independent Third Party Initial Employment Verification 
Reported Institutional Rates

Report Date on Graduation Employment Chart Name of Company

Total number of students sampled
Total number of 

available students to 
sample*

Sample size percentage

Verified as Correct Verified but Different
Unable to 

Verify
Verified as Not Correct

Aggregate Institutional Results Across ALL Programs



Independent Verification Results
• 2014 / 2015 – Accreditation Cycle



226 Schools with Results

• 28 Different Independent Third Parties

• 16,933 records

95% (215 of 226) schools met the required 50% sample.

• 17% (39 of 226) submitted 100% samples.

Independent Verification: 2 Year Totals



Independent Verification: 2 Year Totals

2014 - 2015

Verified Not Verified Verified / Different Not Correct

2%

69%

21%

8%

226 Schools with Results
16,933 Records



Independent Verification: Commission Activity

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Information
Requested

Accept Report Placed on
Reporting

Continued
Reporting

Defer Warning Probation

Total Number Schools Subject to 
Employment Verification: 

507
Total Number of Employment 
Verification Actions:  

184

Information Request:       20% 

Accept Report: 34%

Warning / Probation:        < 2%

Additional Compliance Findings



Lessons Learned



Maximize Your Relationship with Your Designated Third-Party

• Get weekly reports while the project is underway

• Ask for the option to update incorrect emails or wrong telephone numbers 
while the project is underway

• Require the third-party to use the revised contact information

• Ask the third-party about the number of calls/emails and the pacing of 
outreach as to not frustrate your employers/graduates

Best Practices / Lessons Learned



Best Practices / Lessons Learned

Start Early.

• Real Time Verifications – Do not wait six months to begin the verification
process. Older employment data proves to be more difficult to verify.

HOWEVER

• Verify the employment AFTER the graduate started work. This is the most
common reason for an invalid placement

• Incorporate Third-Party Verification into Regular On-going Processes



Set Expectations with Students 
Begin on the First Day of Orientation and continue throughout the program

• Help Students to Understand Their Role in the Accountability Framework
Accreditation Resources:  New Student Letter / Graduation Letter

• Establish protocols for post-graduation activities that can be managed and 
tracked.

Admissions Protocols as Template

• Have students sign a release form that permits the school to obtain 
employment information 

Signed and dated upon graduation, not start, as frequently employers that require a signed release 
want it to be signed within 12 months of the request.

Best Practices / Lessons Learned



Set expectations with Career Services
Ensure Complete, Descriptive, Clear, Legible, Graduate Employment 
Records include:   

Graduate Name
Program Name
Job Title
Descriptive Job Responsibilities
Date of Initial Employment
Employer Email Address
Employer Contact Person
Employer Direct Dial
Graduate Phone Number
Graduate Email (not the school’s assigned email address)

Best Practices / Lessons Learned



Set expectations with Employers

• Work proactively with employers
Set expectations, get feedback 

• Batching Verification
When we contact employers who hire multiple graduates, have the
third-party do it as one call/email/fax with the request for multiple
graduates.

• Avoid calling employers to “scrub” data  in advance of the third-
party verification process, only to have your third party call 
them.

Employers and graduates get frustrated that “they just gave that 
information”

Best Practices / Lessons Learned



• The PDF version of the Webinar Slides will link directly to the 
resources provided.

• A live recording of the 90-minute webinar is available here.
• Online at ACCSC.org under Events/Webinars

• The slides from the webinar presentation are available here.
• Best Practices and Lessons Learned

• The Independent Third-Party Employment Verification FAQ 
is available for download by clicking here.

Best Practices Webinar: Independent Third-Party Verification



Section I
Management



Statement of Purpose

The purpose of this section is to ensure that accredited 
schools have the capability to meet and exceed 

accrediting standards on an ongoing basis.



Statement of Purpose

Adequate management; sufficient administrative capacity;
financial resources and physical facilities; and planning for
future improvement provide assurance that the school will
operate in compliance with accrediting standards, meet its
objectives, and fulfill its obligations to students.



Adequate experience and background to manage and lead 
a postsecondary educational institution

Administrative staff professional development - ongoing

Ongoing institutional assessment and improvement 
planning

Financial resources

Physical facilities



Adequate 
Management

Full-time 
On-site

Policies 
and 

Procedures

Sufficient 
in Number

Qualified

ADEQUATE MANAGEMENT



Past records of integrity Commitment to…

• Providing quality education to students 

• Ethical, fair, and honest practice

• Compliance



• Affiliation with a school that has lost or been 
denied accreditation, entered into bankruptcy, or 
closed

• Involvement in criminal proceedings and any 
pending or past action in a court or administrative 
body.

• Any other information related to an individual’s 
performance or commitment

PAST RECORDS OF INTEGRITY



Ongoing 
Professional 

Development

Skilled Managers



Continuity of management Reasonable retention



Key Concepts - Ongoing 

A process that is an integral part of the culture of the
institution, rather than a perfunctory compliance task

Institutional Assessment and Improvement Planning



Analyze the effectiveness of each area of school operations.  
• ACCSC’s Self-Evaluation Report
• Use a series of questions that encourage reflection about the 

school’s performance:

? what is our current process?

? Why are we doing it this way?

? Has it been successful?

? What would make this better?

START WITH ASSESSMENT



With the understanding that results from a thorough
assessment, the school can then move forward to setting
meaningful goals in each area that are appropriate to the size
and scale of the school’s operations.

If by examining its annual report outcomes data,
the school finds that its graduation rates for this
year are lower than last year, this year’s
institutional assessment and improvement plan can
include a goal to improve retention rates.

GOAL SETTING



Goal Setting

The school will include short-range goals that address
immediate needs and also long-range goals relative to future
development.

There should be a logical relationship between the goals of the
plan, and the assessment of the school operations.



Goal Development – Get Specific

Once a goal is established, the school develops a detailed
course of action for achieving the goal.

This step is critical to ensuring the school’s strategy for
implementing its plan will be successful.



Key Concept - Evaluate Achievement of the Goal 
with Benchmarks

Having established a set of goals and an improvement
process, the school can now develop its method for
measuring success in achieving those goals.



Evaluate Achievement of the Goal with Benchmarks

For example, if the school has a goal to increase student retention
through a more rigorous admission process, success could be measured
through evaluating the academic progress of students who were
admitted under the new criteria to find out if the new strategies are
effective in achieving the stated goals.



Evaluate Achievement of the Goal with Benchmarks

Evaluating the successful implementation of each goal allows the
school to make the necessary adjustments to ensure that its resources
are expended on the most effective strategies.



In the areas of

• management
• fiscal condition and budget
• administrative policies and practices
• student support services
• faculty and staff development
• educational program curricula
• learning resource system, equipment, and supporting

materials
• facilities
• student achievement outcomes



Documented Results

Maintaining documentation of the overall institutional assessment
and improvement planning process creates a historic record of the
success of this process.

This record provides valuable insight for future managers that will
enhance the effectiveness of future planning efforts.



• The financial structure of the school is sound, with
resources sufficient for the proper operation of the school
and the discharge of obligations to its students.

• A financial budget for each fiscal year

• Monitor budgetary projections in relation to actual income
and expenses

• Adequate insurance

FINANCIAL STABILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY



D. Tuition Policies

1. Tuition costs and charges, tuition discounts, and all costs incidental
to training are disclosed to the prospective student before
enrollment.

Tuition discounts offered to prospective students must be bona fide
(i.e., represent actual reductions in the tuition that would otherwise
be charged) and must be fairly applied.



D.Tuition Policies

2. A scholarship is a bona fide financial grant-in-aid to a
qualified student that is issued for recognized and
acceptable purposes that include specified criteria that a
student must meet in order to be eligible for and receive the
scholarship.



D. Tuition Policies

3. Tuition changes in programs are bona fide and effective on
specific dates.

Tuition for students currently in school is changed only if
authorized in the enrollment agreement and only if
reasonable advance notice is provided.



4. Cancellation Policies:

a. Applicants who have not visited the school prior to enrollment
will have the opportunity to withdraw without penalty within
three business days following either the regularly scheduled
orientation procedures or following a tour of the school facilities
and inspection of equipment where training and services are
provided.



4. Cancellation Policies (continued):

b. All monies paid by an applicant must be refunded if requested
within three days after signing an enrollment agreement and making
an initial payment. An applicant requesting cancellation more than
three days after signing an enrollment agreement and making an
initial payment, but prior to entering the school, is entitled to a
refund of all monies paid minus a registration fee of 15% of the
contract price of the program, but in no event may the school
retain more than $150.



5. Refund Policy

• Must have and apply a fair and equitable refund policy in
compliance with state or third-party requirements,

• In the absence of such requirements, in accordance with generally
accepted practices.

• The refund policy must contain minimally the following elements:

i.  How refunds are calculated (e.g., pro rata); 

ii. The date from which refunds will be calculated; and 

iii. The time frame within which refunds will be made 



D. Tuition Policies

• Written notification of withdrawal from the student shall not be
required for refund payment.

• In no instance may a school make required refunds in excess of 90
days from the student’s withdrawal or termination date.

• In instances where state or third-party requirements and accrediting
requirements conflict, the more stringent requirement shall apply.



D. Tuition Policies

6. The refund policy must be disclosed consistently in the catalog and
enrollment agreement.

7. If promissory notes or contracts for tuition are sold or discounted to
third parties, either the student signing such note, or the financial
sponsor who signed the note, must sign a statement authorizing such
sales.

8. Methods used by a school in requesting or demanding payment are
in good taste and follow sound and ethical business practices.



E. Student Loan Repayment

Accredited schools have an obligation to encourage and facilitate
repayment of financial obligations, including guaranteed loans, used to
finance students’ education and training. This has a potential impact
upon the school’s financial stability and, consequently, its educational
effectiveness and accredited status.



E. Student Loan Repayment

Accredited schools can address two major factors affecting student loan
repayment: willingness to pay and ability to pay.

Schools can influence willingness to pay by providing information and
advice and also develop an ability to pay by providing training and
skills that enhance the value of their graduates to employers.



1. The school must engage in ongoing efforts to promote student loan
repayment.

• To improve students’ propensity to meet loan obligations, the school shall
adopt a written comprehensive program, addressing such areas as student
loan information, advising and monitoring, cooperation with lenders, and
collection of information to facilitate location of borrowers.

• The school must document implementation of the program and conduct
an annual evaluation of the effectiveness of the school’s efforts.



E. Student Loan Repayment

2. The Commission will review the annual cohort student loan default rates
of its accredited institutions to determine if those rates are at a high level
or have increased significantly in relation to standards established by law
or regulation.

If it is found that a school’s annual cohort student loan default rates are at a
high level or have increased significantly in relation to standards established
by law or regulation, the Commission will review available information to
determine whether the school is in compliance with accrediting standards.



F. Institutional Name and Physical Facilities

1. A school’s name must be approved by the applicable state
agency(ies) in which the school operates.



F. Institutional Name and Physical Facilities

Use of the term “University” in the school’s name

• Approved by the appropriate state authorities
• Commission approval based on demonstrating the 

following:

 The school offers at least one graduate-level degree; 
 The school offers diverse schools of study with a 

comprehensive learning resource system to support those 
fields; 

 The school is comparable to other schools with 



F. Institutional Name and Physical Facilities

3. All facilities owned or controlled for administrative,
instructional, and housing purposes must meet fire, safety,
and sanitation standards required by appropriate regulatory
authorities.

4. The school’s physical facilities must be sufficient in size to
create an effective and suitable learning environment.



SELF-EVALUATION QUESTION

Describe the school’s process for ongoing institutional 
assessment and improvement planning. Describe how the 
school obtains information from internal sources, including 
staff, faculty, and students. How does the school obtain 
information from external sources such as Program Advisory 
Committees, employers, community representatives, and 
graduates? Explain how the process is appropriate to the size 
and scale of the school’s operations (Section I (B)(1-2), 
Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation).



The school’s management team meets every so often to 
develop its strategic plan. Since we meet formally and 
informally, we incorporate information from these meetings 
into the school’s Institutional Assessment and Improvement 
Plan. The leadership team gathers information from internal 
and external sources through meeting minutes provided by 
faculty, PAC, etc. Though the process is somewhat informal, it 
works for us because we have such a small staff.  

NOT-SO-GOOD ANSWER



The management team meets quarterly to discuss and develop the
institutional assessment and improvement plan. Each administrative
department is expected to provide updates, strengths, and areas of
improvement for their respective areas. This way, the planning
process is decentralized and provides each department with an
opportunity to be involved with the success of the school.

Good Answer



During the institutional assessment and improvement planning
process, we also call upon faculty members and students to provide
feedback to the leadership team. Instructors meet weekly and provide
the administrative team with a summary of their areas for
improvement (equipment, text books, curriculum, etc.) so that we can
incorporate this into the plan. As ABC school has a Student
Government Association, the class president from each program also
provides the leadership team with a summary of areas where we can
improve and opportunities for the school to improve upon in the
future.

(More) Good Answer



Similar to our internal sources, the school relies upon the Program
Advisory Committee (“PAC”), graduates, and employers to assist
with the institutional planning process. The school incorporates
feedback from the PAC meetings and graduate and employer
satisfaction forms into the IAIP. Although ABC school is small, we
rely on various people and resources to aid us in our planning process
which is appropriate for the size and scale of our operations. This
provides the school with a well-rounded self-assessment and a
roadmap for the future.

(More) Good Answer





CHAPTER 2 – SUBSTANTIVE 
STANDARDS

SECTION II – PROGRAM 
REQUIREMENTS



A C C S C  S E C T I ON  I I  – P R O G R A M  R E Q U I R E ME NT S

AREAS TO COVER: 

SECTION B
Non-Degrees

SECTION C
Degrees

SECTION D
Secondary Objectives

SECTION A
1. Program Design and Development 
2. Organization and Length of Program
3. Program Evaluation 
4. Instructional Materials and Equipment
5. Program Advisory Committee
6. Learning Resource System
7. Externship
8. Consortium Agreements
9. Transfer of Credit



A C C S C

Elements Include the following:

• Appropriate Program Length
• Comprehensive Course Outlines
• Learning Objectives
• Instructional Material and Equipment
• Availability, Accessibility and Integration 

of Learning  Resource Material 
Processes

• Employment Preparation 

This section identifies various program elements 
that enable a school to meet its objectives and, 
thus, achieve and maintain accreditation. 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

S E C T I ON  I I  – P R O G R A M  R E Q U I R E ME NT S



ESTABLISH THE PROCESS: 

1. PROGRAM DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT

A C C S C 5

o Be open to other academic and training programs
o Input from internal and external resources

o Determine the need and viability
o Consider instruction, educational resources, and method of 

delivery



FOR EACH PROGRAM:

2. PROGRAM ORGANIZATION AND LENGTH

A C C S C 6

o Detailed and organized instructional outline and course syllabi
o Program design and awarded credits conform to generally accepted 

practices

o Appropriate number of didactic, supervised lab, and other hours, 
including outside work and externship

o Enable students to achieve objectives and acquire expected skills and 
knowledge (gain employment!)



A C C S C

A clock hour is defined as 50 minutes of instruction in a 60 minute period of time.

7

2. PROGRAM ORGANIZATION AND LENGTH

A credit hour is defined as an amount of work represented in intended learning outcomes.

A credit hour is verified by evidence of student achievement for academic activities as 
established by the institution. 
Comprised of the appropriate hours
Definitions can vary by state 

Academic credit should not be confused with federal definition for Title IV purposes

Consideration of outside work (documented homework hours)



A C C S C 8

3. PROGRAM EVALUATION

A
Comprehensive and 
conducted by administrative 
and instructional staff

B Uses evidence obtained both 
internally and externally

C Ongoing process at set 
intervals

D Consider feedback from 
faculty, PAC, and students

E Consider employment 
needs

F Consider competition



A C C S C 9

4. INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT

a. Instructional materials are comprehensive and reflect current 
occupational knowledge and practice

b.Instructional equipment is similar to that found in occupational 
practice and instructional aids appropriate to the subject.

c. Sufficient equipment and learning stations are provided to allow each 
student adequate scheduled time for practice.

d.All machinery and equipment is properly maintained and safe and 
always in working order (survey your students!)



5. PROGRAM ADVISORY COMMITTEE

A C C S C 1 0

For each non-degree and undergraduate degree program area:
 The school must have a diverse Program Advisory Committee that includes 

representatives from the employment community, practitioners, and others from the 
field of education, regulators, etc. as appropriate. 

 Masters program: PAC must include a member with graduate level education.

a. In all instances, Program Advisory Committee meetings must include at 
least three members in attendance that represent the employment 
community and/or practitioners from the program area. 



A C C S C

Members must not be employed by the institution and must be external to the institution.

11

5. PROGRAM ADVISORY COMMITTEE

At least two regularly scheduled meetings must be conducted annually, one of which must 
be held at the school. 

Maintain written and detailed minutes of each meeting 

Include a description of all members in attendance (i.e., titles and affiliations); the date, 
time, and location of the meeting.

Include a comprehensive and clear description of the review of and commentary made by 
the school representatives and the Program Advisory Committee members. 



A C C S C 1 2

i.
The established curriculum 
of the program

ii.
Appropriateness and 
adequacy of the program 
objectives, program length, 
curriculum content, learning 
resources, and the adequacy 
of facilities and equipment

iii.
Student graduation, 
employment, and where 
required, state licensing 
exam outcomes of each 
program

iv.
Review and comment on each 
new program prior to 
Commission’s approval of the 
new program

5. PROGRAM ADVISORY COMMITTEE



5. PROGRAM ADVISORY COMMITTEE

A C C S C 1 3

d.  The school must provide evidence that it gives consideration to  
Program Advisory Committee input.  (Helpful Hint:  Put this on 
your minutes) 

A school describing 
whether 

recommendations 
were implemented

PAC feedback 
regarding recent 
implementation

Document with PAC 
surveys and comment 

forms

Evidence can take many forms, including::



6. LEARNING RESOURCE SYSTEM

b.

c.

d.

a.



A C C S C

Materials equal with the level of education

1 5

Include relevant and current texts, periodicals, research journals and 
databases, standard works of reference, electronic resources, etc.

Sufficient in quantity and scope to meet educational objectives and 
adequately serve the student body

6. LEARNING RESOURCE SYSTEM

A school’s learning resource system must include:



A C C S C 1 6

Use of the learning 
resource system 

materials must be 
integrated into a 

school’s curriculum 
and program 
requirements 

. 

Mechanism to 
enhance the 

educational process 
and to facilitate 
positive learning 

outcomes for 
students

Show evidence of 
integration and 

outcomes

Managed by 
qualified school 
personnel with 
experience to 

provide oversight 
and supervision. 

. 

Baccalaureate degree 
or higher: Have an 

individual holding a 
Master’s degree in 
library science or 

information 
specialist.

6. LEARNING RESOURCE SYSTEM



A C C S C 1 7

A Successful Learning Resource Supervisor (“LRS”)  Consists Of:

6. LEARNING RESOURCE SYSTEM

Qualified school personnel orient, train, and assist students and faculty in the 
use of the learning resource system (have a training plan).

Sufficient support and budgetary allocations for the learning resource system.

Adequately served and has ready access to sufficient and appropriate learning 
resource materials 

Written policies and procedures for the ongoing development of its learning 
resource system as part of its institutional improvement program. 

Documented changes and processes



A C C S C 1 8

7. EXTERNSHIPS

a. An externship is a component of a program that is offered in 
a bona fide occupational setting for which training and 
education are provided.

b.Applies to externships, internships and other similar 
occupational activities for which educational credit is awarded 

(practicums and clinicals that are supervised). 

c. Externships may occur throughout the course of a program or as a 
capstone requirement. 

d.The objectives and goals of an externship must be to allow 
students to apply practically the theory and skills taught in 

classroom and laboratory settings of instruction.
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7. EXTERNSHIPS

Specifies the goals, educational objectives, and specific experiences 
to be accomplished

Identifies the educational resources available to the student

Establishes Timelines

Details the evaluation process and criteria to be used to evaluate 
competency and skill attainment (specific to area of study and 
credential)
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7. EXTERNSHIPS

i. Non-degree or in an occupational 
associate degree program: Three 
years of  practical work in the 
occupational field associated with 
the training provided.

ii. Academic associate degree program or 
higher: Four years of related practical 
work experience in the occupational 
field associated with the training 
provided and an earned related degree 
at least at the same degree level as the 
program for which the externship is a 
component.



A C C S C

If an externship is part of the program completion requirements, 
students may not be considered as graduates or issued a graduation 
credential until the requirements of the externship have been 
satisfactorily completed.

2 1

7. EXTERNSHIPS

Also, don’t make the student wait for an 
externship – opportunities should be available 
fairly quickly for each student.



A C C S C

• A portion of a program is offered by an entity other than the ACCSC-
accredited institution via any consortium, partnership, or 
contractual arrangement 

• Submit the ACCSC Consortium/Partnership Report with a signed 
contractual agreement

• Distance Education Consortium Agreements: Between ACCSC 
accredited institutions

2 2

8. CONSORTIUM AGREEMENTS & PARTNERSHIPS
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25% of credit for 
degree and non-
degree programs 

must be completed 
at the school 

awarding 

Majority of graduate 
credits must be 

completed at the 
school awarding the 

degree

9. TRANSFER OF CREDIT
May accept transfer credit for a course completed in other 
postsecondary institutions when comparable; have an 
official policy and document!
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B & C. NON-DEGREE AND DEGREE PROGRAMS

NON-DEGREE PROGRAMS:

1. Comprised of 80% technical and occupationally related courses

2. Other courses may combine general education and career preparation courses

DEGREE PROGRAMS:

1. Measured in credit hours

2. Numbering system

3. Academic vs. applied general education

4. Technical courses provide training associated with the specific occupation

5. Guidelines for Associate, Bachelor, and Master degrees vary
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D. SECONDARY EDUCATIONAL OBJECTIVES
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CONTACT US!
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JUST CHANGE THE SLIDE 
BACKGROUND TO WHAT YOU WANT, 

HUE IS APPLIED AUTOMATICALLY

PHOTO/DIVIDER SLIDE WITH COLOR 
FILTER

ACCSC
2101 Wilson Boulevard

Arlington, VA 

A C C S C I N F O
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Standards of Accreditation
Educational Administration and 
Faculty 



Statement of Purpose

The success of a school is directly related to the quality of its faculty.
This section addresses the requirements a school must meet in regard
to its faculty. The purpose of this section is to require schools to retain
a strong and experienced faculty that is continually attentive to the
needs of the students, interested in strengthening the curricula, and
obligated to continued self-improvement.



Statement of Purpose

A school must ensure that its faculty are appropriate, suitable and
sufficient in number for the instructional programs offered by the
school. By hiring and retaining qualified faculty, a school is able to
strengthen the quality of its training program.



A. Educational Administration

1. The school must have sufficient educational administration to
support the program(s) offered as follows:

a. The school must have educational administrative staff and
operational policies necessary to adequately support educational
programs and faculty.



b. At least one on-site person at the school, usually a director of
education, must have appropriate educational administration
experience and competence necessary to lead and manage the
school’s instructional program(s) and overall educational experience
in such areas as: curriculum development; educational effectiveness
assessment and improvement; and faculty development and
performance appraisals.



i. For non-degree granting institutions, the director of education must
have an educational background equal to or exceeding the
maximum credential offered by the school.

ii. For degree granting institutions, the director of education must
have an earned degree at least one level higher than the highest
degree offered by the school.



c. Each distinct occupational area that leads to an occupational or
academic degree must have a program head on-site at the school
(e.g., lead faculty, department chair, dean, etc.) who possesses an
educational background equal to or exceeding the maximum
credential offered in that program area, the requisite qualifications
for technical faculty teaching in a degree program, and an ability to
administer the occupational components of the program.



For schools that only offer a program or group of programs in one
distinct occupational area, a single individual may fulfill both the
director of education and the program head requirements as long as the
individual possesses the requisite qualifications for each position.



2. Faculty and educational administrators must engage in ongoing
faculty assessment and professional development improvement
activities that are: appropriate to the size and scope of the school’s
educational programs; support the quality of education provided;
and enhance student learning and achievement.



Continuing education in 
the subject taught

Membership in trade and 
professional organizations

Teaching skill 
development

Instructional methodology 
development



3. The school must ensure the continuity of instruction by the
reasonable retention of the educational administrative staff and
faculty.

4. The school must verify prior work experience and maintain
documentation of academic credentials of all faculty members and
administrators, as required, to demonstrate compliance with
applicable Standards of Accreditation.



Glossary of Terms: 

The terms “verify prior work experience” and “maintain 
documentation of academic credentials” of all faculty members and 

administrators in Section III (A)(4), Substantive Standards, Standards of 
Accreditation means that the school has a documented process to 

demonstrate that the school:



Glossary of Terms: 

• Has secured from previous employers written or verbal verification
of prior work experience when prior work experience is a
qualification requirement

and/or 
• Has secured and keeps on file academic transcripts when an 

academic credential is a qualification requirement.



B. Faculty Qualifications

1. The faculty must be sufficient in number to serve the number of
students enrolled and must maintain a satisfactory working
relationship with students.

2. Faculty members must be certified or licensed where required by
law.



3. Faculty members must have appropriate qualifications and be able
to teach in a manner that permits announced educational objectives
to be achieved. All faculty must be able to demonstrate a command
of theory and practice, contemporary knowledge, and continuing
study in their field.



4. Faculty members must be trained in instructional methods and
teaching skills.

The school should hire faculty members who have received training
in instructional methods and teaching skills or who are experienced
teachers.



Should a school hire a faculty member without prior training
or experience, the school must provide training before the
faculty member assumes primary instructional
responsibilities in any classroom, curriculum, laboratory, or
program related training. A school’s faculty must engage in
ongoing development of teaching skills as part of its plan for
faculty improvement.



The school may provide its own faculty training using in-house
resources or utilize resources outside the institution. In either case,
teacher training shall include such elements as: formal education;
workshops/seminars presented by an appropriate individual focusing
on areas related to instructional methods and teaching skill
development; or formal in-house mentoring programs with
appropriately qualified and experienced faculty.



Level
Technical/ Occupationally 

Related Courses

Non-Degree
(Certificate or Diploma) Three years practical work 

experience in a related field
Occupational Associates Degree

Academic Associates Degree Four years of practical experience 
AND a related degree* at the 

same level
Baccalaureate Degree

*In exceptional cases, outstanding professional experience and contributions to
the occupational field of study may be substituted for a formal degree. In such
instances, the faculty member must possess a minimum of eight years of
related practical work experience and the school must justify and document on
an individual basis the outstanding professional experience and contributions
to the occupational field



Level
Type of Course

Applied General Education

Non-Degree
(Certificate or Diploma)

• Three years practical experience OR
• College-level coursework* OR
• Appropriate mix of experience and 

coursework 

Occupational Associates Degree • Baccalaureate degree with appropriate 
coursework* OR

• Eight years practical experience and college-
level coursework*

Academic Associates Degree
N/A

Baccalaureate Degree

*“Appropriate coursework and preparation,” “college-level coursework,” and
“appropriate academic coursework and preparation” means a minimum of 15
semester credit hours (or the equivalent) in related subject areas that support the
curriculum content.



Level
Type of Course

Academic General Education

Non-Degree
(Certificate or Diploma)

• *For terminal non-degree programs: a 
baccalaureate degree with appropriate 
academic coursework and preparation in the 
subject(s) taught. 

• For non-degree programs that articulate into 
degree programs, see requirements for degree 
programs below

Occupational Associates Degree Master’s degree with appropriate academic 
coursework* and preparation in the subject 

area(s) taught.
Academic Associates Degree

Baccalaureate Degree

*“Appropriate coursework and preparation,” “college-level coursework,” and
“appropriate academic coursework and preparation” means a minimum of 15
semester credit hours (or the equivalent) in related subject areas that support the
curriculum content.



OTHER COURSES

Faculty teaching other courses (e.g., electives, orientation, career 
services, health and wellness, and life skills, etc.) must be appropriately 

qualified based upon the type of course content offered and upon 
criteria established by the school that relies upon necessary experience 

and/or educational background requirements. 



Standards of Accreditation
Recruitment





Recruitment 

Engaging in activities or using promotional materials or
presentations to attract and enroll students. These standards
apply to school personnel primarily involved in any way in
those activities.



Schools must observe ethical practices and 
procedures in the recruitment of students. 



Ethical practices and procedures include, at a minimum, the
following:

1. A school’s recruitment efforts focus on attracting students
who are qualified and likely to complete and benefit from the
education and training provided by the school and not
simply obtaining enrollments.



2. A school’s recruitment efforts describe the school
to prospective students fully and accurately and
follow practices that permit prospective students
to make informed and considered enrollment
decisions without undue pressure.





3. A school only uses its own employees to conduct
student recruiting activities and is prohibited from
engaging employment agencies to recruit
prospective students.



4. A school is responsible to its students and
prospective students for the actions and
representations of its recruiters and
representatives and, therefore, selects these
individuals with the utmost care and provides
adequate training and proper supervision.



A school has and enforces an acceptable code of conduct
for all school personnel whose primary responsibilities
are to engage in recruiting and admissions functions
prior to and during admission and matriculation.

• In writing
• Includes all elements set forth in Appendix V
• Signed and dated by the employee
• Maintained in the individual’s personnel file



5. A school’s personnel are trained and qualified to
engage in recruiting activities and may only use a
title that accurately represents the individual’s
primary duties.

6. A school complies with applicable federal and state
laws and regulations pertaining to student
recruitment.



7. A school approves all promotional materials
used by school personnel in advance and accepts
full responsibility for the materials used.



8. A school has in place policies and procedures
and takes reasonable steps to ensure that its
personnel do not make false, exaggerated, or
misleading statements about the school, its
personnel, its training, its services, or its
accredited status and to ensure that its
personnel do not make explicit or implicit
promises of employment or salary prospects to
prospective students.



9. A school internally reviews and evaluates its
recruiting policies and procedures and the
performance of personnel involved in recruiting
activities for compliance with accrediting
standards and applicable law and regulation at
least once annually, and maintains
documentation of the review and evaluation.



The Commission, at its discretion, may require a
school to audit its recruiting activities for
compliance with accreditation standards or
applicable law and regulation using a qualified
independent third-party that is approved by the
Commission prior to the verification review being
conducted.



10. A school shall not permit its personnel to
engage in recruiting activities in settings where
prospective students cannot reasonably be
expected to make informed and considered
enrollment decisions such as in or near welfare
offices, unemployment lines, food stamp
centers, homeless shelters, or other similar
settings.



A school may, however, engage in recruiting
activities at employment opportunity
centers operated under government auspices,
provided that the school has permission to
do so and that all other recruitment and
admissions requirements are met.



11. A school shall not permit the payment of cash or
other similar consideration to any prospective student
as an inducement to enroll.

12. A school shall not permit its personnel whose
primary responsibilities include recruiting and
admissions activities to assist prospective students in
completing application forms for financial aid.



13. A school shall not permit personnel whose
primary responsibilities include recruiting and
admissions activities to become involved in
admission testing or admission decisions,
including signing and accepting the enrollment
agreement.



14. A school clearly identifies itself in all
advertising, promotional materials, and
contacts made with prospective students.

15. A school must provide the applicant with a
receipt for any money collected.



16. School personnel do not discredit other schools or
influence any student to leave another school by:
falsely imputing to another school dishonorable
conduct, inability to perform contracts, or
questionable credit standing; making other false
representations; falsely disparaging the character,
nature, quality, value, or scope of another school’s
program of instruction or services; or demeaning
another school’s students.



B. Advertising and Promotion

1. A school’s advertising and promotional
materials are truthful and accurate and avoid
leaving any false, misleading, or exaggerated
impressions with respect to the school, its
location, its name, its personnel, its training, its
services, and its accredited status.



2. A school’s advertising and promotional
materials clearly indicate that education, and
not employment, is being offered. No overt or
implied claim or guarantee of individual
employment is made at any time and any
references to employment or salary prospects
must be accurate and sourced.



3. A school may use the term “University” in its
name only when such use has been approved by
the Commission and appropriate state
authorities.

4. A school may not use the Employment or Help
Wanted classifieds for any form of student
recruitment.



5. A school may only use endorsements in school
catalogs, literature, or advertising with the written
consent of the authors, which is kept on file and
subject to inspection. Any such endorsement is to be
a bona fide expression of the author’s opinions,
strictly factual, and a portrayal of currently correct
conditions or facts. Under no circumstances may
currently enrolled students provide endorsements on behalf
of a school.



6. School personnel, advertisements, and
promotional materials may only provide
information pertaining to potential salary that
accurately portrays the normal range and
starting salaries in the occupation for which
training is provided. Salary information must
also include the source of the information,
which is valid.



7. A school may only use the term “accredited” if
it indicates by what agency or organization it is
accredited. Publication of accreditation must
comply with the Advertising of Accredited
Status form.



8. Advertising of financial aid and scholarships
includes an eligibility phrase (e.g., financial aid
available for those who qualify).

9. A school may not describe in its catalog,
advertise, or promote new programs,
substantive changes, or degree programs prior
to receiving written Commission approval.



C. Disclosures 

1. Catalog 

a. A school publishes a catalog that accurately
portrays the school; its educational programs,
resources and facilities; and policies and
procedures and that includes, at a minimum, all
items listed on the ACCSC Catalog Checklist.



b. A school’s catalog is designed and written in
such a manner so as to convey an accurate,
comprehensive, and dignified impression of the
school. The catalog’s narrative and any
illustrations and photos pertain directly to the
school and sources of illustrations and photos
are clearly identified.



c. A school provides each applicant with a current
and complete catalog and an opportunity to
review the catalog prior to signing the
enrollment agreement so that each potential
student may make an informed decision relative
to the school’s educational programs,
institutional policies, and procedures.



A school may provide either a printed and bound
copy of the catalog or a read-only format
electronic copy that cannot be altered (e.g.,
portable document format (PDF), etc.). In either
case, all versions of the catalog are identical and
students that receive an electronic copy of the
catalog are able to receive a printed and bound
copy of the catalog upon request.



2. Enrollment Agreement

a. A school utilizes an enrollment agreement
that includes, at a minimum, all required
items listed on the ACCSC Enrollment
Agreement Checklist and that clearly states
the obligations of both the student and
school.



b. A school executes an enrollment agreement for
all enrolled students.

c. A school ensures that each applicant has an
opportunity to review the enrollment
agreement and is fully informed of the rights,
responsibilities, and obligations of both the
student and the school under the enrollment
agreement before it is signed by the applicant.



d. A school furnishes a copy of the enrollment
agreement to the applicant at the time the
applicant signs. A school must furnish to the
student prior to the student starting class a final
copy of the enrollment agreement signed by
both parties.

e. No enrollment agreement is binding until it has
been signed by the student and accepted by the
appropriate school official.



3. Graduate Employment 

A school discloses, minimally, the graduation and
graduate employment rate as last reported to the
Commission. The public notice of a graduate
employment rate is accurate, not intended to
mislead, and includes the school’s graduate
population base and time frame upon which the
rate is based.



4. Accreditation and Approval

a. A school discloses its ACCSC institutional accreditation and the
Commission’s contact information (i.e., address, phone number,
and website address).

b. In accordance with Section VII (L)(8), Rules of Process and
Procedures, a school subject to a Probation Order must inform
current and prospective students that the school has been placed
on probation and that additional information regarding that
action can be obtained from the Commission’s website.



c. Where a program requires accreditation
(institutional or programmatic) and/or
approval by a third-party regulatory agency
(e.g., state agency, licensing agency, oversight
board, national certification entity, etc.), for the
purpose of licensure, certification, or
employment, a school discloses to students
whether such accreditation and/or third-party
recognition has been achieved and is in good
standing



Standards of Accreditation
Admissions



The purpose of this section is to ensure that
schools only admit those students who are capable of
successfully completing the training offered.
Admission decisions are based on fair, effective,
and consistently applied criteria that enable the
school to make an informed judgment as to an
applicant’s ability to achieve the program’s
objectives.



A. General Requirements

1. A school develops admissions criteria that are
designed to admit only those students who are
reasonably capable of successfully completing
and benefiting from the training offered.



2. A school publishes in its catalog and informs,
prior to admission, each applicant for
enrollment of the program’s admission
requirements, process, and procedures; the
nature of the training and education provided;
and the program’s responsibilities and
demands.

3. A school consistently and fairly applies its
admission requirements.



4. Prior to enrollment a school:

a. Determines that an applicant meets the school’s
admissions requirements;

b. Secures documentation to demonstrate that each
applicant meets all admission requirements;

c. Documents that applicants rejected did not meet
admissions requirements;



Appendix V

Admissions Documentation



Section V (A)(4)(b), Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation
requires that a school “secures documentation to demonstrate that
each applicant meets all admission requirements.” Because of the
importance of admissions requirements and the role those
requirements play in allowing schools to make informed
admissions decisions, the Commission believes that a school’s
diligence in requiring documentation is a key component to
institutional success.



Therefore, the Commission does not consider a self-certification by a
student that he or she has a high school diploma or equivalent to be
“documentation” that the student has met this admissions
requirement. The standard contemplates that a school will support
its admissions decisions with independent documentation such as
transcripts and copies of diplomas or other documentation of
equivalency.



Admissions documentation for students from foreign countries is to
be translated and certified to be at least equivalent to the credential
required by the school in its admissions criteria (e.g., a U.S. high
school diploma). In all cases, it is the responsibility of the school to
determine whether the credential is appropriate and meets the school’s
admissions criteria.



For those ACCSC-accredited institutions that require that an
applicant must possess a high school diploma or its equivalent for
admission, the Commission recognizes that in rare instances students
may not be able to provide documentation required by a school’s
admissions criteria due to issues beyond their control (e.g., loss of
records due to fire or flood, inability to obtain records, home schooled
students, etc.).

In these rare cases, a school may use an admissions test in lieu of
documentation of a high school diploma or its equivalent.



Under these circumstances, the student must sign a statement
attesting that he or she in fact obtained a high school diploma or its
equivalent and state the reason(s) why documentation of the earned
credential cannot be provided. The admissions test used under these
circumstances must be reviewed by a qualified, independent, third
party and certified as to the appropriateness of the instrument and
required score levels (i.e., equivalent to a high school diploma). If a
school chooses to use such a test for these unusual circumstances, this
should be stated in the school’s admissions policies.



The admissions test used under these circumstances must be reviewed
by a qualified, independent, third party and certified as to the
appropriateness of the instrument and required score levels (i.e.,
equivalent to a high school diploma). If a school chooses to use such a
test for these unusual circumstances, this should be stated in the
school’s admissions policies.



The Commission understands that other regulatory agencies may
have different requirements. Please be advised that in instances where
these differences exist, the more stringent requirements shall apply
(Section I (B)(1)(e)(iii), Rules of Process and Procedure, Standards of
Accreditation).



5. A school maintains documentation covering
the last five years that demonstrates that
admission requirements have been met or that
explains the basis for any denial of admission.



6. A school neither denies admission nor discriminates
against students enrolled at the school on the basis of
race, religion, color, gender, sexual orientation, genetic
information, age, disability, or national origin.
Schools must reasonably accommodate applicants and
students with disabilities to the extent required by
applicable law.



7. A school may not enroll or admit any person of
compulsory school age or any person attending a
school at the secondary level, unless the school has
established through contact with properly
responsible parties that pursuit of the training will
not be detrimental to the student’s regular school
work.



8. The Commission, at its discretion, may
require a school to conduct a study to
document the effectiveness of its admission
requirements for all students.



B. Non-Degree Programs

If the school enrolls a person who does not
possess a high school diploma or recognized
equivalency certificate (non-degree programs
only)… the school must determine the
applicant’s ability to benefit from the training
offered.



1. Documented through the applicant’s
achievement of an approved score on a test
or tests that have been reviewed by a
qualified, independent third party for
appropriateness of the instrument and
specific score levels required for
admission.



2. The acceptable score ensures that
students will benefit from the training
provided and that a substantial number of
students will complete the training and
be employed in the field for which
training was provided.



C. Degree Programs - Undergraduate

The school must use appropriate techniques to
assess whether applicants have the skills and
competencies to benefit from the training
provided at the undergraduate level. Students
admitted to associate or baccalaureate degree
programs must have earned at least a high school
diploma or recognized equivalency certificate
prior to starting class.



Standards of Accreditation
Student Services



Statement of Purpose

The purpose of this section is to ensure that
schools remain attentive to their students’
educational and other needs. This section requires
that schools meet minimum requirements in
regard to advising and counseling, record
maintenance, graduate employment assistance,
and procedures for handling student complaints.



Advising and Counseling

1. School is attentive to student educational and other needs

2. Adequate student services and resources that support
 Satisfactory progress
 Knowledge and Skill Attainment
 Retention, Graduation, and Employment
 Employment
 Making informed decisions concerning training and 

employment



3. Student Services Program

• Takes into account the number of programs, and size 
and mix of the student body

• Coordinated by an individual with appropriate 
professional and educational qualifications 



The Student Services Program Must Address:

 relevant coping skills (e.g., life, career development, budget, and personal 

financial planning skills)

 general development appropriate to higher education students

 student retention strategies suited to the school’s programs 

 academic advising 

 testing and tutoring services 

 supervision and monitoring of attendance records and leaves of absence 

 graduate employment assistance 

 information concerning housing, transportation, and child care



Schools must have counseling services available to students
when warranted and necessary based on the student
population and circumstances

• An individual providing counseling services must have an
appropriate license, credential, or training and work
experience in the area of counseling.

• A school may contract with or refer students to an
individual or service that is able to provide such counseling
services.

• Unless so qualified, an advisor may not perform the
functions of a counselor and may not be referred to as a



Student Services

4. Maintain comprehensive documentation of student
advising sessions

5. Continually monitors and addresses the students’
needs for services as a means to assist students
achieve successful educational and student
achievement outcomes.



Student Records

enrolled students
 Admissions
 Transcript
 Academic Progress
 Tuition and Fee Payments
 Refunds
 Financial Aid
 Information upon which a student’s initial and continued

enrollment is based



Student Records

enrolled students 

The school maintains these records 

during the student’s enrollment 

AND 

For five years post the student’s, withdrawal, or 
termination date.



enrolled students - official transcript
 Program of study
Date of program entry
Date of graduation, termination or withdrawal
Clock and/or credit hours
Grades Earned



Official Transcripts

• Made available to students upon request and in
accordance with the school’s policies.

• Physical or electronic

• Securely maintained and protected against damage
or loss



Financial Records

• Maintain student financial records for a minimum
of five years
 Financial aid
Tuition and fee payments
Tuition refunds

• State or federal regulation or law may require these
records to be maintained for a longer period of time



Graduate Employment Assistance and Records

• Graduate employment assistance available to
students

• Extent and nature aligns with claims made by the
school



Graduate Employment Assistance and Records

• Verifiable records are maintained for five years

• Statements regarding employment rates must be
based on these records



Student Complaints – School Policy

• Policy and procedure

• Inform students in writing of the policy and
procedure

• Published in the school’s catalog and include a
reference to the school official(s) responsible for the
complaint policy and procedure.



Student Complaints – ACCSC Policy

• Publishes the ACCSC Student Complaint/
Grievance Procedure contained in the ACCSC
Complaint Review Process Form.

• Maintain a complete record of all written student
complaints for at least the last five years.



Standards of Accreditation
Student Learning



Statement of Purpose

• Establish processes, policies, and procedures in the
areas of student assessment and achievement

• Establish and consistently apply criteria that provide
an objective evaluation of the student’s learning and
progress toward attaining the program’s specific
educational objectives.



1. Student Learning Outcomes
a. Consistent with the program objectives and meet any

relevant academic, occupational, or regulatory
requirements

b. Aligned with the program’s objectives, the
occupational area of study, and with the level of
education intended (e.g., non-degree, degree, degree
level).

c. Reflect the necessary occupational and academic
knowledge, skills, and competencies as applicable



2. Student Assessment

a. The school has a developed and structured process
to assess and evaluate the defined student learning
outcomes of the education

b. Student assessment approaches must be
documented and included in institutional
assessment and improvement planning



c.

• Establish criteria to assess a student’s academic
progress throughout the program

• Report academic progress to students at regular
intervals

• Establish minimum grade point averages for the
intervals that will help ensure that students will meet
required GPA (2.0) for graduation



d. The school provides students with learning
outcomes for each course and publishes in its catalog
a written policy for assessing satisfactory student
progress through the program. The school measures
grades, projects, portfolios, externships, or other
assessments against stated educational objectives
that the school explains clearly to students. This
policy must address performance standards and
grading and be applied consistently.



3. Student Satisfactory Progress

a. The school establishes a policy and process to assess
student academic progress throughout the program
and to inform students of their academic progress at
established and specific intervals.



The school establishes cumulative grade point average
requirements at specific intervals through the program
and requires that students attain minimally a
cumulative grade point average of 2.0 in order to be
eligible for graduation. At each interval specified, the
school determines the likelihood that the student will
be able to attain the minimum cumulative grade point
average required for graduation.



In those instances when the school determines that a
student has not met minimum cumulative grade point
average requirements, the school places the student on
academic probation or terminates the student, based on
the school’s established policies.



If the school uses a grading scale other than the
traditional 4.0 scale (e.g., letter grades, percentages,
pass/fail) the school establishes comparable progress
standards and publishes the grade conversion scale in
its catalog.

Different Grading Scales



The school publishes in its catalog and enforces a
policy of acceptable student attendance. The policy
must promote sufficient levels of student attendance
such that the required knowledge, skills, and
competencies can be reasonably achieved.

Attendance Policy



• Define and publish Leave of Absence policy if you have one

• Establish policies and procedures that include
 How to get a LOA approved
 How long
 What happens if a student doesn’t return – usual practice –

terminate student and apply refunds as appropriate

• Starts when LOA approved (in writing)

• May not exceed 180 days in a 12-month period –
 May grant more than one leave of absence - but remember that

the combined leaves of absence may not exceed 180 days within
the 12-month period

Leave of Absence



• Publish in the catalog the normal duration of each program based on
regular and required course loads and schedules, the maximum
timeframe within which a student is expected to complete the program

• Publish the implications if a student does not complete the program
within the maximum timeframe (e.g., loss of financial aid eligibility
and program enrollment termination)

• Clock hour program - the maximum time frame shall not exceed 1.5
times the normal duration of the program.

• Credit hour program - the credit hours attempted cannot exceed 1.5
times the credit hours required to complete the program

Maximum Timeframe



The school is not required to terminate the enrollment of a student who
is unable to complete the program within the maximum timeframe
unless the school has determined that the student has failed to meet
school policies that would otherwise warrant termination (e.g., academic
progress or attendance policies)

---BUT---

For the purposes of reporting student achievement, the school may not
classify students who do not complete the program within the
maximum timeframe as graduates

Remember!



Another Reminder!

• The school must have probation and termination policies that are
defined and published in its catalog. These policies must include
specific warning procedures to notify the student in writing that
continued unsatisfactory academic progress or a failure to meet
attendance requirements will result in termination

• DOCUMENT notification or in the case of absenteeism document
that the school made an attempt to notify the student that continued
failure to attend classes will result in termination.

• Keep it in the student’s file



• Must have policies and procedures for a student to request
reinstatement after being terminated due to academic performance
and the school’s satisfactory progress policy.

• Publish policies that define the effect of course incompletion, course
withdrawal, course repetitions, and, if offered, policies that define the
requirements for noncredit remedial courses



Earning Credits/Meeting Learning Objectives

A student may only earn “credits” when, based on the school’s
assessment methods, the student has demonstrated that the required
educational objectives have been met at an acceptable level. Successful
program completion is based upon satisfactory achievement of the
knowledge, skills, and competencies required by the program objectives
and is confirmed by an appropriate credential (e.g., certificate, diploma,
degree).



What is on the “Diploma?”

The credential document should identify the school’s name, 
location, program of study, and date of graduation in an 

accurate manner.



Session F

The Big Finish!



Toolkit

•Webinars

•Monographs

•ACCSC Staff



Key Concepts

Standards = Best Practices

Ongoing Assessment 

Comprehensive Planning

Strong Infrastructure/Resources

Continuous Improvement



From Challenges to Plan of Action

Assessment – where are we?

Goal - where do we want to be? 

How are we going to get there? 

Benchmarks – how are we going to measure 
success?

Timelines – when?



Parting Thoughts

If you could say one thing to a school 
considering ACCSC accreditation, what 

would it be?



Why do we want to be accredited?

Be prepared to constantly use the system



Transformation

Understand that accreditation involves a 
transformation from the business model 

to the accredited school model



Don’t Guess!

Pick up the phone… or keyboard



Focus on Excellence

Rather than just barely meeting the 
standard, understand the “spirit” of the 

standard



Read the Standards

Everyone at the school needs to be 
knowledgeable about the standards



Assessment/Comparison

Look to external sources for information 
and guidance



Don’t Focus on the Passing Grade

Learn how to grow through the process 
of accreditation



SLOW DOWN!



It is not about US, 

It is about YOU



Building the Airplane…

In the Air



Questions from Day One

What changes will I need to make?

Do I have the resources to be successful?

Is this a good fit?



TOOL BOX
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EXECUTIVE OFFICE 
 
Michale S. McComis, Ed.D.  
Executive Director 
(703) 247‐4520  
 
Christopher D. Lambert  
Associate Executive Director 
External Affairs; Public Relations; Press Inquiries; Policy Initiatives  
(703) 247‐4516 
 
Karen Marcinski 
Director of Member Services 
Workshops and Conferences; Teach‐Outs; Publications; Webinars 
(703) 247‐4531 
 
Lisa Miles  
Senior Associate, Special Projects 
Commission Meetings; Workshops; Special Projects  
lmiles@accsc.org 
 
Holly Eichhorst 
Commission Actions Coordinator 
School Action Letters; Public Notices of Actions; Commission Elections  
(703) 247‐4524 
 
Michelle Ragland  
Conference and Events Coordinator 
Executive Office / External Affairs  
Workshops; Meetings; Professional Development Conference 
(703) 247‐4527  
 
 
ACCREDITATION DEPARTMENT 
 
Alicia DeMartini 
Director 
ademartini@accsc.org  
(703) 247‐4507 
 
Maurya Scanlon‐Sorokes 
Manager of Accreditation 
mscanlon@accsc.org 
(703) 247‐4529 
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Jaye Bishop 
Senior Accreditation Coordinator 
Initial Applicants; Onsite Evaluations; Commission Meetings 
jbishop@accsc.org 
(703) 247‐4506 
 
Amaya Bullock 
Accreditation Coordinator 
Applications for Accreditation; On‐Site Evaluations 
abullock@accsc.org 
703.247.4514 
 
Brittany Jefferson  
Accreditation Coordinator  
Applications for Accreditation; On‐Site Evaluations  
bjefferson@accsc.org 
703.247.4519 
 
Mary Jolliffe‐Henry 
Senior Accreditation Specialist  
Applications for Accreditation; On‐Site Evaluations  
mjolliffe@accsc.org 
(703) 625‐8725 
 
Elizabeth Lambert 
Accreditation Coordinator 
Applications for Accreditation; On‐Site Evaluations 
elambert@accsc.org 
703.247.4518 
 
Cooper Lawton 
Accreditation Coordinator 
Initial Applicants, Applications for Accreditation; On‐site Evaluations 
clawton@accsc.org 
(703) 247‐4510 
 
Marcus Robinson 
Accreditation Coordinator 
Applications for Accreditation; On‐site Evaluations 
 
 
   



ACCSC STAFF BY DEPARTMENT 

ACCSC Staff Listing 
Page 3 of 4 

OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 
 
Anne Santalla  
Director of Operations 
Human Resources; Budget; Office Administration  
(703) 247‐4532  
 
Mohammad Arif 
Finance and Operations Coordinator 
Accounts Payables; Status of Travel Reimbursement Requests 
(703) 247‐4535 
 
Maurice Gatewood  
Information Coordinator & IT Assistant  
Record Maintenance, School Files, Electronic Submission Information 
(703) 247‐4525  
 
Elleni Kassa 
Staff Accountant  
Accounts Receivable/Payable; Dues; Billing  
(703) 247‐4504  
 
Glenda Ward  
Senior Operations Coordinator 
General Information, Office Administration 
(703) 247‐4539 
 
Cathy Ragnetti 
Operations Assistant 
(703) 247‐4212 
 
 
INSTITUTIONAL REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
Juanita Gurubatham, Ph.D. 
Director of Institutional Review and Development  
Departmental Oversight; Distance Education Approvals; Separate Facilities; Degree Programs 
(703) 247‐4500 
 
Alanna Marx 
Senior Manager of Institutional Development 
Substantive Change Reports; Non‐Degree and Degree Program Approvals 
(703) 247‐4508 
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Nora Delgado 
Senior Analyst 
Progress Reports, Complaints, Substantive Change Reports 
(703) 247‐4511 
 
Lakisha Dillingham 
Analyst 
Complaints, Progress Reports, Substantive Change Reports 
(703) 247‐4502 
 
Sean Forman 
Senior Analyst  
Annual Report, Progress Reports 
(703) 247‐4505  
 
Zachary Hansen 
Analyst 
(703) 247‐4517 
 
Kecia Logan 
Institutional Review and Development Administrative Assistant 
Administrative Support 
(703) 247‐4536 
 
Nakisha Nichols  
Financial Review Analyst  
Financial Review Committee; Financial Statement Analysis 
(703) 247‐4528 
 
Richard Rice 
Analyst 
Progress Reports, Substantive Change Reports  
(703) 247‐4515 
 
Rebecca Viands 
Analyst 
Complaints, Progress Reports, Substantive Change Reports, On‐Site Evaluations 
(703) 489‐2489 
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This application must be submitted in accordance with ACCSC’s Instructions for Electronic Submission on or 
before the prescribed deadline, no later than 6 months following attendance at an ACCSC Accreditation 
Workshop.   
 
The school is applying for initial accreditation of a _____ Main School   _____ Branch (check one) 
 
Name of School:               ACCSC School Number: 
 
Address: 
 
City:             State:   Zip Code: 
 
Telephone Number:          Fax Number: 
 
E-mail Address:           Web Site Address: 
 
Current School Director: 
 
 
If the school applying for initial accreditation is a branch, please complete the following information for the main 
school: 
 
Name of Main School/Branch:          ACCSC School Number: 
 
Address: 
 
City:             State:   Zip Code: 
 
Telephone Number:          Fax Number: 
 
E-mail Address:           Web Site Address: 
 
Current School Director: 
 
 
Supply the following information for the school that is applying for accreditation: 
 
1. The school has been training students continuously (except for regularly scheduled vacation periods) since 

(month/year):                        
  
2. Under what legal entity is the school operating (e.g., an S corporation, a C corporation, non-profit corporation, 

partnership, sole proprietorship, etc.)?    
 
3. What is the name of the legal entity that owns the school?   
 
4. Is the school reported as such to all appropriate federal and state agencies, and/or other accrediting agencies? 

Yes_____    No_____ 
 
5. Please list each current owner of the school (names and addresses) and the percentages of ownership for each person 

or organization owning ten percent or more of the school. Attach an organization chart of the ownership of the school 
if it is a subsidiary or division of another corporation. 
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6. As applicable, please list the names, places of employment and other school affiliations of the members of the 

governing board (e.g., not-for-profit organizations). 
  
  

 
7. Outline all changes of ownership and/or control that have occurred in the last two years. 

  
  

 
8. List all schools with which the school applying for accreditation is corporately affiliated. 

  
  

 
Licensure, Approval, and Accreditation Information: 
 
1. List each state by which the school is currently licensed or approved to operate as a school and the 

effective date and expiration date of the current licensure and/or approvals (add additional lines as 
necessary). 

State: Effective Date: Expiration Date:  

2. List each accreditation agency, to include ACCSC, by which the school is currently accredited, the dates 
of the current term of accreditation (from and to), and the school’s status with that agency (e.g., good 
standing, Show Cause Order, reporting, Probation, etc.) (add additional lines as necessary). 

Agency:   

Current Term: Status:  

3. Other than ACCSC, please list any accrediting agency (institutional or programmatic) with which the 
school has submitted an application for accreditation along with the date that the school made application 
(add additional lines as necessary). 

Agency:  

Date of Application:  

4. What accrediting agency is designated as the school’s primary agency by the U.S. Department of 
Education for distribution of Title IV funds? 

Agency:  

5. List any other governmental or regulatory body by which the school is approved/ licensed/ accredited 
(add additional lines as necessary). 

Agency:  

6. Has the school been denied accreditation, removed from accreditation, or voluntarily withdrawn its 
accreditation from any accrediting agency? (one)  
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 Yes  No  N/A 

If yes, please identify the agency and attach a detailed explanation of the circumstances included in the 
action. 
 

7. Is the school under investigation by any regulatory agency (e.g., local, state, federal, accrediting agency, certification 
organization, etc.)? Are there any actions pending against the school from? The Commission will take into 
consideration all pending actions by any authorizing body of the institution. Yes_____ No_____   If the answer is 
yes, please attach a detailed explanation of the circumstances involved in the action. Please note that schools under 
investigation by a local, state, or federal agency may be deemed ineligible to apply for initial accreditation with 
ACCSC. 

 
8. Is programmatic accreditation required for any program the school offers? Yes  No    

If Yes, please list the following: 
- Program name(s)   
- Agency name(s)   
- Name and email address for the point of contact at each agency   

 
 
This application is submitted by the chief executive officer of the school for which accreditation is sought, and that 
official hereby attests to the following: 
 
1. The school is a postsecondary career school or college with trade, occupational or technical educational objectives. 

2. The school is voluntarily seeking accreditation by the Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges (the 
Commission), recognizing that such accreditation may not be specifically required for state licensure, eligibility for 
government funding, or other purposes external to the Commission. 

3. School officials understand that ACCSC is under no obligation to consider any application for initial accreditation 
it receives. The Commission establishes eligibility criteria it deems appropriate and may choose not to consider 
an application for accreditation for any reason. 

3. School officials have reviewed the Standards of Accreditation and supporting materials of the Commission. 

4. School officials fully accept and support the concept of accreditation as a voluntary, non-governmental process 
involving peer review and a necessary degree of confidentiality in decision-making and record keeping. 

5. School officials understand that, in applying for accreditation, the school: 

a. Voluntarily accepts responsibility to comply with the Standards of Accreditation.  

b. The school voluntarily submits itself to a periodic review and a reasoned judgment by the Commission as to the 
school’s qualifications in accordance with the Commission’s Rules of Process and Procedures and voluntarily 
accepts responsibility to comply with the Standards of Accreditation and the ACCSC Bylaws; 

c. The school accepts the responsibility to demonstrate that the school is meeting the standards and must supply 
the Commission with complete documentation of the school’s compliance with all accrediting standards and 
requirements in order to be granted and to maintain accreditation; 

d. Has every opportunity, as part of the accrediting process, to present itself in its best light and to respond to any 
concerns; 

e. Assumes an obligation to be forthcoming, complete, and accurate in presenting information to, and answering 
questions of, the Commission; 

f. Can exercise the right to appeal a fail to grant decision of the Commission, thereby assuring an independent 
review; and 
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g. It is the responsibility of the school to ensure that all submissions to the Commission are complete and 
represent the school’s efforts to demonstrate compliance with accrediting standards and requirements; 

h. ACCSC staff and volunteers are not required to advise a school as to whether any materials submitted to the 
Commission are complete or demonstrate compliance with accrediting standards or requirements; 

i ACCSC staff and volunteers may provide advice and feedback to a school regarding compliance matters, but 
any representations made by ACCSC staff or volunteers do not restrict the Commission’s ability reach its 
own conclusions or to take any action the Commission deems appropriate; and 

j. The Commission is the ultimate decision-making body and makes final determinations about a school’s 
compliance with accrediting standards and requirements, and a school’s accredited status and the 
Commission takes actions and makes decisions as deemed most appropriate by the Commission based on the 
written record. 

 
6. A non-member school will not make any promotional use of its application for accreditation prior to a grant of 

accreditation. 
 
DISCLOSURES: 

  Yes No 

1. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with any school which 
has lost or been denied accreditation by any accrediting agency during that individual’s period of 
employment or affiliation? If the answer is YES, please attach a statement to this application which 
details the facts and circumstances surrounding that school’s loss or denial of accreditation. 

  

2. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with any school that 
has closed or entered into bankruptcy? If the answer is YES, please attach a statement to this 
application which details the facts and circumstances surrounding that school’s closure, bankruptcy 
or both as applicable. 

  

3. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with any school that 
has lost or been denied eligibility to participate in Federal Student Financial Aid (Title IV) 
programs? If the answer is YES, please attach a statement to this application which details the facts 
and circumstances surrounding the loss or denial of Title IV eligibility. 

  

4. 

Is any action pending (e.g. court action, audit, inquiry, review, administrative action), or has action 
been taken, by any court or administrative body (e.g. federal or state court, grand jury, special 
investigator, U.S. Department of Education, or any state or federal regulatory or law enforcement 
agency) with regard to any proposed new owner or manager or with regard to any institution with 
which any owner or manager has previously been affiliated? If the answer is YES, please attach a 
statement to this application which gives full disclosure of the person(s) and the matters involved. 
Include a statement of the facts and circumstances surrounding the action identifying the owner or 
manager and the school involved. If the matter is not yet final, please describe the procedural status 
of the matter (i.e., still under investigation, preliminary decision under appeal, etc.) and the position 
taken by the owner or manager involved. If the matter is final, provide a copy of the final action 
documentation. 
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5. 

Has any owner or manger served in a similar capacity in any other school where either that 
individual or the school has been charged or indicted in a civil or criminal forum or proceeding 
alleging fraud, misappropriation, or any criminal act? If the answer is YES, please attach a 
statement to this application which gives full disclosure of the person(s) and the matters involved. 
Include a statement of the facts and circumstances surrounding the action identifying the owner or 
manager and the school which is involved. If the matter is not yet final, please describe the 
procedural status of the matter (i.e., still under investigation, preliminary decision under appeal, 
etc.) and the position taken by the owner or manager involved. If the matter is final, provide a copy 
of the final action documentation. 

  

 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
A school seeking or holding accreditation from more than one accrediting agency recognized by the U.S. Department of 
Education must consistently describe itself in identical terms to each accrediting agency with regard to identity (i.e., main 
school, or branch), purpose, governance, programs, degrees, diplomas, certificates, personnel, finances, constituents 
served, and must keep each accrediting agency apprised of any change in its status with one or another accrediting body. 
 
I grant permission for the Commission to contact the appropriate state agencies, the state and U.S. Department of 
Education, other accrediting agencies, or any other organizations appropriate for review of this application. 
 
I certify that the information herein and attached hereto is correct. 
 
Name:                Title: 
  (Chief Executive Officer) 
 
Signature:               Date: 
 
This initial application must be submitted in accordance with the ACCSC Instructions for Electronic 
Submission no later than six months from the date of attendance at an accreditation workshop and 
becomes invalid if not accepted by the Commission within six months from the date of submission. 
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APPLICATION ATTACHMENTS:  Restate each item followed by a response. Attachments must be 
appropriately bookmarked to correspond with each item. Two copies of this application and attachments are to 
be electronically submitted by the school applying for accreditation.  
 
1. Non-refundable Application for Initial Accreditation Part-I for processing fee of $750.00. 
 
2. Documentation of participation in an Accreditation Workshop, attendee’s current position in the school and a 

completed Staff Personnel Report this individual. The form is available from the Forms Section of www.accsc.org 
or by clicking here.  

 
3. Copy of all the school’s required license(s) and/or approval(s). If the school is required to have its programs approved 

by a state, programmatic accreditation, or other regulatory agency, attach current copies of the approvals. If the 
school is required to have its programs approved by state licensing agencies, as either clock hour or credit hour 
programs, attach copies of the approvals. 

 
4. Completed Program Chart, available from the Forms Section of www.accsc.org or by clicking here. 
 
5. If operating a satellite location(s), please submit the Application for a Satellite Location for each location, with the 

corresponding processing fee. The form is available from the Forms Section of www.accsc.org or by clicking here.  
 
6. Attach the school’s two most recent fiscal year-end audited financial statements prepared in accordance with the 

ACCSC Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related Information 
requirements found in the Forms Section of www.accsc.org or by clicking here. Financial statements submitted to 
the Commission must also include a signed statement by management concerning the financial condition of the 
individual school. This statement must include commentary on any unusual items on the audited financial statements, 
e.g., net working capital deficit, negative net income, negative net worth, negative retained earnings, low liquidity 
position, equity position, and unusual operating data. Identification of any such items should be followed by rationale 
for their existence and plans to alleviate any shortfall. (If a public corporation, please submit your most recent 10-
K.) 

 
The Commission will not consider an Application for Initial Accreditation that does not include financial statements 
prepared in accordance with the Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related 
Information. An Application for Initial Accreditation will not be accepted from a school when the school’s financial 
statements show any of the following: 

 Net loss for the two most recent fiscal years;  

 Negative net worth for the two most recent fiscal years; or 

 Negative cash flow from operations for the most recent fiscal year. 
 

If the school has changed ownership within the two years preceding the submission of this application, the school 
must still submit the two most recent year-end financial statements prepared in accordance with the Instructions for 
the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related Information under the previous ownership as 
well as:  

 An audited balance sheet reflecting the financial condition of the school as of the date of the change of ownership 
prepared in accordance with the Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and 
Related Information, ACCSC Standards of Accreditation; 

 All fiscal year-end financial statements for the current owner since the date of the change of ownership prepared 
in accordance with the Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related 
Information, ACCSC Standards of Accreditation; 
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 Interim financial statements for the new owner for the current fiscal year prepared in accordance with the 
Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related Information, ACCSC 
Standards of Accreditation; and 

 All pertinent conditions of the change of ownership, including the date of sale.  
 
7. Any other information that is relevant to or may assist the Commission in its review of the school’s application. 

 
SUBMIT TO: Executive Director  

Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges 
Arlington, VA  22201 
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To be submitted in accordance with ACCSC’s Instructions for Electronic Submission no later than six months 
from the date that the Commission accepted the school’s Application for Initial Accreditation - Part I. This 
application must be submitted in accordance with ACCSC’s Instructions for Electronic Submission.   
 
The school is applying for initial accreditation as a:  _____Main School     _____Branch  ( one) 
 
 
Name of School:   ACCSC School Number: 
 
Address: 
 
City:             State:   Zip Code: 
 
Telephone Number:          Fax Number: 
 
E-mail Address:           Web Site Address: 
 
Current School Director: 
 
 
If the school applying for initial accreditation is a branch, please complete the following information for the main 
school: 
 
Name of Main School/Branch:          ACCSC School Number: 
 
Address: 
 
City:             State:   Zip Code: 
 
Telephone Number:          Fax Number: 
 
E-mail Address:           Web Site Address: 
 
Current School Director: 
 
Supply the following information for the school that is applying for accreditation: 
 
1. The school has been training students continuously (except for regularly scheduled vacation periods) since 

(month/year):    
  
2. Under what legal entity is the school operating (e.g., an S corporation, a C corporation, non-profit corporation, 

partnership, sole proprietorship, etc.)?  
 
3. What is the name of the legal entity that owns the school?  
 
4. Is the school reported as such to all appropriate federal and state agencies, and/or other accrediting agencies? _____ 

Yes _____ No (one) 
 
5. Please list each current owner of the school (names and addresses) and the percentages of ownership for each person 

or organization owning ten percent or more of the school.  Attach an organization chart of the ownership of the 
school if it is a subsidiary or division of another corporation. 
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6. As applicable, please list the names, places of employment and other school affiliations of the members of the 

governing board (e.g., not-for-profit organizations). 
  
  

 
7. Outline all changes of ownership and/or control that have occurred in the last two years. 

  
 
8. List all schools with which the school applying for accreditation is corporately affiliated. 

  
 
Licensure, Approval, and Accreditation Information: 
 
1. List each state by which the school is currently licensed or approved to operate as a school and the 

effective date and expiration date of the current licensure and/or approvals (add additional lines as 
necessary). 

State: Effective Date: Expiration Date:  

2. List each accreditation agency, to include ACCSC, by which the school is currently accredited, the dates 
of the current term of accreditation (from and to), and the school’s status with that agency (e.g., good 
standing, Show Cause Order, reporting, Probation, etc.) (add additional lines as necessary). 

Agency:   

Current Term: Status:  

3. Other than ACCSC, please list any accrediting agency (institutional or programmatic) with which the 
school has submitted an application for accreditation along with the date that the school made application 
(add additional lines as necessary). 

Agency:  

Date of Application:  

4. What accrediting agency is designated as the school’s primary agency by the U.S. Department of 
Education for distribution of Title IV funds? 

Agency:  

5. List any other governmental or regulatory body by which the school is approved/ licensed/ accredited 
(add additional lines as necessary). 

Agency:  

6. Has the school been denied accreditation, removed from accreditation, or voluntarily withdrawn its 
accreditation from any accrediting agency? (one)  

 Yes  No  N/A 
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If yes, please identify the agency and attach a detailed explanation of the circumstances included in the 
action. 

 
7. Is the school under investigation by any regulatory agency (e.g., local, state, federal, accrediting agency, 

certification organization, etc.)? Are there any actions pending against the school from? The Commission 
will take into consideration all pending actions by any authorizing body of the institution. Yes_____ 
No_____   If the answer is yes, please attach a detailed explanation of the circumstances involved in the 
action. Please note that schools under investigation by a local, state, or federal agency may be deemed 
ineligible to apply for initial accreditation with ACCSC. 

 
8. Is programmatic accreditation required for any program the school offers? Yes  No    

If YES, please list the following: 
- Program name(s)   
- Agency name(s)   
- Name and email address for the point of contact at each agency   

 
 
This application is submitted by the chief executive officer of the school for which accreditation is sought, and that 
official hereby attests to the following: 
 
1. The school is a postsecondary career school or college with trade, occupational or technical educational 

objectives. 

2. The school is voluntarily seeking accreditation by the Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and 
Colleges (the Commission), recognizing that such accreditation may not be specifically required for state 
licensure, eligibility for government funding, or other purposes external to the Commission. 

3. School officials understand that ACCSC is under no obligation to consider any application for initial 
accreditation it receives. The Commission establishes eligibility criteria it deems appropriate and may 
choose not to consider an application for accreditation for any reason. 

3. School officials have reviewed the Standards of Accreditation and supporting materials of the 
Commission. 

4. School officials fully accept and support the concept of accreditation as a voluntary, non-governmental 
process involving peer review and a necessary degree of confidentiality in decision-making and record 
keeping. 

5. School officials understand that, in applying for accreditation, the school: 

a. Voluntarily accepts responsibility to comply with the Standards of Accreditation.  

b. The school voluntarily submits itself to a periodic review and a reasoned judgment by the 
Commission as to the school’s qualifications in accordance with the Commission’s Rules of Process 
and Procedures and voluntarily accepts responsibility to comply with the Standards of Accreditation 
and the ACCSC Bylaws; 

c. The school accepts the responsibility to demonstrate that the school is meeting the standards and 
must supply the Commission with complete documentation of the school’s compliance with all 
accrediting standards and requirements in order to be granted and to maintain accreditation; 
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d. Has every opportunity, as part of the accrediting process, to present itself in its best light and to 
respond to any concerns; 

e. Assumes an obligation to be forthcoming, complete, and accurate in presenting information to, and 
answering questions of, the Commission; 

f. Can exercise the right to appeal a fail to grant decision of the Commission, thereby assuring an 
independent review; and 

g. It is the responsibility of the school to ensure that all submissions to the Commission are complete 
and represent the school’s efforts to demonstrate compliance with accrediting standards and 
requirements; 

h. ACCSC staff and volunteers are not required to advise a school as to whether any materials 
submitted to the Commission are complete or demonstrate compliance with accrediting standards 
or requirements; 

i ACCSC staff and volunteers may provide advice and feedback to a school regarding compliance 
matters, but any representations made by ACCSC staff or volunteers do not restrict the 
Commission’s ability reach its own conclusions or to take any action the Commission deems 
appropriate; and 

j. The Commission is the ultimate decision-making body and makes final determinations about a 
school’s compliance with accrediting standards and requirements, and a school’s accredited status 
and the Commission takes actions and makes decisions as deemed most appropriate by the 
Commission based on the written record. 

 
6. A non-member school will not make any promotional use of its application for accreditation prior to a 

grant of accreditation. 
 

DISCLOSURES: 

  Yes No 

1. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with any 
school which has lost or been denied accreditation by any accrediting agency during that 
individual’s period of employment or affiliation? If the answer is YES, please attach a 
statement to this application which details the facts and circumstances surrounding that 
school’s loss or denial of accreditation. 

  

2. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with any 
school that has closed or entered into bankruptcy? If the answer is YES, please attach a 
statement to this application which details the facts and circumstances surrounding that 
school’s closure, bankruptcy or both as applicable. 

  

3. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with any 
school that has lost or been denied eligibility to participate in Federal Student Financial 
Aid (Title IV) programs? If the answer is YES, please attach a statement to this application 
which details the facts and circumstances surrounding the loss or denial of Title IV 
eligibility. 
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4. 

Is any action pending (e.g. court action, audit, inquiry, review, administrative action), or 
has action been taken, by any court or administrative body (e.g. federal or state court, 
grand jury, special investigator, U.S. Department of Education, or any state or federal 
regulatory or law enforcement agency) with regard to any proposed new owner or 
manager or with regard to any institution with which any owner or manager has 
previously been affiliated? If the answer is YES, please attach a statement to this 
application which gives full disclosure of the person(s) and the matters involved. Include 
a statement of the facts and circumstances surrounding the action identifying the owner 
or manager and the school involved. If the matter is not yet final, please describe the 
procedural status of the matter (i.e., still under investigation, preliminary decision under 
appeal, etc.) and the position taken by the owner or manager involved. If the matter is 
final, provide a copy of the final action documentation. 

  

5. 

Has any owner or manger served in a similar capacity in any other school where either 
that individual or the school has been charged or indicted in a civil or criminal forum or 
proceeding alleging fraud, misappropriation, or any criminal act? If the answer is YES, 
please attach a statement to this application which gives full disclosure of the person(s) 
and the matters involved. Include a statement of the facts and circumstances surrounding 
the action identifying the owner or manager and the school which is involved. If the 
matter is not yet final, please describe the procedural status of the matter (i.e., still under 
investigation, preliminary decision under appeal, etc.) and the position taken by the 
owner or manager involved. If the matter is final, provide a copy of the final action 
documentation. 

  

 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
A school seeking or holding accreditation from more than one accrediting agency recognized by the U.S. Department of 
Education must consistently describe itself in identical terms to each accrediting agency with regard to identity (i.e., main 
school, or branch), purpose, governance, programs, degrees, diplomas, certificates, personnel, finances, constituents 
served, and must keep each accrediting agency apprised of any change in its status with one or another accrediting body. 
 
I grant permission for the Commission to contact the appropriate state agencies, the state and U.S. Department of 
Education, other accrediting agencies, or any other organizations appropriate for review of this application. 
 
I certify that the information herein and attached hereto is correct. 
 
 
Name:                Title: 
  (Chief Executive Officer) 
 
Signature:               Date: 
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APPLICATION ATTACHMENTS:  Restate each item followed by a response.  Attachments must be 
appropriately bookmarked to correspond with each item.  
 
1. Non-refundable Application for Initial Accreditation Part-II processing fee of $2,250. 
 
2. Documentation of participation in an Accreditation Workshop, attendee’s current position in the school and a copy 

of the Staff Personnel Report for this individual.  
 
3. Copy of all the school’s current state(s) license(s). If the school is required to have its programs approved by state 

licensing agencies, as either clock hour or credit hour programs, attach copies of the approvals. 
 
4. Copy of all other required license(s) and/or approval(s). If the school is required to have its program(s) approved by 

a programmatic accreditor or other regulatory agency in order for graduates to be eligible for employment in the 
field for which training was provided, attach current copies of those approvals. 

 
5. Completed Program Chart. 
 
6. If the school offers an Occupational Associates Degree, Academic Associates Degree, Baccalaureate Degree, or 

Master’s Degree program, please submit the appropriate application for each program (Note: No additional 
processing fee necessary). 

 
7. For each program measured in clock hours only, provide a completed Allocation of Hours for Clock-Hour Program. 

For each non-degree program measured in clock and credit hours, provide a completed Outline of a Non-Degree 
Profile Program. (Note: No additional processing fee necessary). 

 
8. Complete Faculty and Staff Personnel Reports, for all personnel, by department. 
 
9. Copies of all current instructors’ certificates or licenses, if instructors are required to be licensed or certified by the 

state or other applicable agencies. 
 
10. Copies of all advertising and promotional materials used by the school since the date that the Commission accepted 

its application for accreditation (including radio, yellow pages, television, newsprint, flyers, surveys, scripts, video 
tapes, and hard copy of the homepage of the school’s website). 

 
11. If operating a satellite location(s), the school was required to submit documentation an Application for a Satellite 

Location for each location in conjunction with the Application for Initial Accreditation – Part I. With this application, 
attach ACCSC’s approval of the Application for a Satellite Location for each location. 

 
12. The school’s bound copy of the school catalog, or a read-only format electronic copy which cannot be altered (e.g., 

portable document format [PDF]]), fully cross-referenced to the Catalog Checklist. (This may not be a draft.) 
 
13. A finalized school enrollment agreement fully cross-referenced to the Enrollment Agreement Checklist. 
 
14. Evidence that the physical facility meets fire, safety and sanitation standards. 
 
15. Copy of certificate(s) of insurance showing all coverage carried by the school. 
 
16. I acknowledge the Commission’s requirement for an independent third-party verification of the employment rates 

submitted in Section VII (B)(1) in the SER and confirm that the school will provide a report of the results of this 
verification – in accordance with the SER requirements – as part of the SER and that the supporting documentation 
will be available to the on-site evaluation team. 

  Yes ( the box to confirm) 
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17. Attach the school’s two most recent fiscal year-end audited financial statements prepared in accordance with the 
ACCSC Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related Information. Financial 
statements submitted to the Commission must also include a signed statement by management concerning the 
financial condition of the individual school.  This statement must include commentary on any unusual items on the 
audited financial statements, e.g., net working capital deficit, negative net income, negative net worth, negative 
retained earnings, low liquidity position, equity position and unusual operating data.  Identification of any such items 
should be followed by rationale for their existence and plans to alleviate any shortfall.  (If a public corporation, 
please submit your most recent 10-K.) 

 
The Commission will not consider an Application for Initial Accreditation that does not include financial statements 
prepared in accordance with the Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related 
Information.  An Application for Initial Accreditation will not be accepted from a school when the school’s financial 
statements show any of the following: 

An Application for Initial Accreditation will not be accepted from an institution when the financial statements show 
any of the following: 

 Net loss for the two most recent fiscal years;  

 Negative net worth for the two most recent fiscal years; or 

 Negative cash flow from operations for the most recent fiscal year. 
 

If the school has changed ownership within the two years preceding the submission of this application, the school 
must still submit the two most recent year-end financial statements prepared in accordance with the Instructions for 
the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related Information under the previous ownership as 
well as:  

 An audited balance sheet reflecting the financial condition of the school as of the date of the change of ownership 
prepared in accordance with the Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and 
Related Information, ACCSC Standards of Accreditation; 

 All fiscal year-end financial statements for the current owner since the date of the change of ownership prepared 
in accordance with the Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related 
Information, ACCSC Standards of Accreditation; 

 Interim financial statements for the new owner for the current fiscal year prepared in accordance with the 
Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related Information, ACCSC 
Standards of Accreditation; and 

 All pertinent conditions of the change of ownership, including the date of sale.  
 
18. Any other information that is relevant to or may assist the Commission in its review of the school’s application. 
 
 
SUBMIT TO: Executive Director  

Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges 
2101 Wilson Boulevard / Suite 302 
Arlington, VA  22201 
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CATALOG CHECKLIST 
Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges 
 
This checklist must be cross-referenced to and accompanied by the school's catalog. 
 
Name of School:         School Number: 
 
City:       State:   Zip Code: 
 
The Catalog Checklist provides a list of each item required for inclusion in a school’s catalog and serves as a detailed index to 
aid reviewers in finding each of these requirements.  A copy of this Catalog Checklist is to accompany each catalog sent to the 
Commission. Mark the Catalog Checklist to show page number(s) (or references to specific covers or supplements) where each 
required item is included.  Mark the catalog with the Catalog Checklist item number at the location where the required 
information appears. The catalog of each ACCSC accredited school must include the following items. If any item is not included, 
the catalog must refer to the supplement/addendum which contains the item and the supplement/addendum must refer to the 
catalog.  The supplement/addendum must contain the school’s name and location and the effective date of the 
supplement/addendum. 

As per Section IV (C)(1)(b), Substantive Standards,  Standards of Accreditation, the catalog must be designed, written, printed, 
and bound to convey an accurate and dignified impression of the school. The catalog’s illustrations, photos and narrative must 
pertain directly to the school and sources of illustrations and photos must be clearly identified. 

Item 
Number 

Catalog Checklist Item Page 
Number(s) 

1. The title of the publication (i.e., “catalog”).  

2. The name and address of the school.  

3. The date of publication (month/year).  

4. The school’s mission statement.  

5. A statement of the school’s history.  

6. A description of the school’s general physical facilities and equipment.  

7. The maximum number of students in typical classroom or laboratory/shop settings of 
instruction.  

8. The admission requirements for each program.  

9. The admission procedures.  

10. The transfer-of-credit policy to include the criteria and process for evaluating and accepting 
credit earned at other institutions for transfer.  

11. The total number of clock hours or credit hours as applicable for each course and program.  

12. As applicable, the type of credit hour awarded, semester or quarter.  

13. The length of time in weeks or months normally required for completion of each program.  

14. 
A clear description of each program offered by the school to include the title, educational 
objectives, scope and sequence,  course descriptions, and the name, nature and level of 
occupations (e.g., entry-level) for which training is provided. 

 

15. The policy relating to attendance.  
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CATALOG CHECKLIST 
Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges 
 
This checklist must be cross-referenced to and accompanied by the school's catalog. 
 
Name of School:         School Number: 
 
City:       State:   Zip Code: 
 

Item 
Number 

Catalog Checklist Item Page 
Number(s) 

16. The leave of absence policy if the school allows students to take a leave of absence.  

17. The policy relating to make-up work.  

18. The policy relating to conduct.  

19. The policy relating to probation and termination.  

20. The grading / assessment system(s) used.  

21. The satisfactory progress policy.  

22. The required levels of performance for graduation.   

23. The academic credential (certificate, diploma, or degree) awarded upon graduation for each 
program.  

24. 

The tuition and other student charges related to the enrollment, such as deposits, fees, 
books, supplies, tools, equipment, transportation, and any other "extras" e.g., make-up 
work, special testing, equipment, late charges, or other school services for which a student 
may be responsible. 

 

25. 

The refund policy and a statement indicating where information regarding any applicable 
third party funding agency refund or return of funds policies (e.g., Title IV, Veterans 
Administration, WIA, etc.) may be obtained. (Please note that the refund policy in the 
school’s catalog must be consistently disclosed in the school’s enrollment agreement – see 
Section  I (D)(5) & (6), Substantive Standards,  Standards of Accreditation). 

 

26. A detailed and explicit description of the extent and nature of employment assistance 
available to students and/or graduates.  

27. A detailed description of the nature and extent of all available student services and how 
students go about obtaining such services.  

28. A calendar for the school year including vacation periods, breaks, holidays, etc.  

29. A list all separate facilities. If a different catalog is used for a separate facility, it must 
include the name and location of the main school or branch.*  

30. The complaint policy and procedures which includes, at a minimum, all items required in 
the Student Complaint Procedures of the ACCSC Complaint Review Process Form .**  

31. 
If the school offers a course with secondary objectives,***  a designation and disclosure 
that clearly shows the course(s) are not within the school’s scope of accredited programs, 
except those that fall under item #32 of this checklist. 
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CATALOG CHECKLIST 
Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges 
 
Name of School:         School Number: 
 
City:       State:   Zip Code: 
 

Item 
Number 

Catalog Checklist Item Page 
Number(s) 

32. 

If the school offers a course with secondary objectives that have been approved by ACCSC 
to be included as within the school’s scope of institutional accreditation, the school’s catalog 
must include:  
 A statement making clear the course is not vocational in nature and does not lead to 

initial employment;  
 A course description that clearly shows the clock hour length, length in days or weeks, 

and educational scope of the course; 
 Whether the course is a prerequisite or provides credit toward any vocational program 

offered within the school; 
 The type of completion document provided by the school upon completion; 
 The refund policy; and 
 The complaint policy in accordance with #30 of this checklist. 

 

33. Items as may be required by any regulatory or governmental bodies (such as state licensing 
and approval agencies).  

 
* Item #29 – Section VIII (D)(3), Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation indicates that a branch may advertise 
and disclose its relationship to the main school only after the approval of the Application for a Branch – Part I. A satellite 
location may disclose its recognized status and relationship to the main school only after it has been granted recognition by 
the Commission. A school submitting a proposed branch catalog should not include the proposed branch’s affiliation to the 
main school until the Commission has approved the Application for a Branch – Part I. 
 

** Item #30 – Section IV (B)(1), Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation requires that institutions avoid the use of 
ACCSC accredited status in a false or misleading manner.  Therefore, applicant schools and proposed branches should not 
publish Catalog Checklist Item #30 in the applicant school’s catalog or proposed branch’s catalog.  Rather, applicant schools 
and proposed branches should submit - with each copy of the school’s catalog submitted for Commission review - a draft 
copy of Checklist Item #30 for inclusion in the school’s catalog upon a grant of accreditation. 
 
*** Item #31 – See Section I (B)(1)(d)(ii) Rules of Process and Procedure, Standards of Accreditation. 
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ENROLLMENT AGREEMENT CHECKLIST 
Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges (ACCSC) 
 
This checklist must be cross-referenced to and accompanied by the school’s enrollment agreement. 
 
 
Name of School:          School Number: 
 
City:       State:   Zip Code: 
 
The Enrollment Agreement Checklist provides a list of each item required for inclusion in a school’s enrollment agreement and 
serves as a detailed index to aid reviewers in finding each of these requirements.  A copy of this Enrollment Agreement Checklist 
is to accompany each enrollment agreement copy sent to the Commission.  Mark the Enrollment Agreement Checklist to show 
the page number(s) where each item is included.  Mark the enrollment agreement with the Enrollment Agreement Checklist item 
number at the location where the required information appears.  The enrollment agreement of each ACCSC-accredited school 
must include all required items (Items 1 through 19). As applicable, the school’s enrollment agreement must also include 
conditional items (Items 20 through 30) which disclose and outline any other conditions, circumstances, or qualifications 
imposed by the school. 
 
REQUIRED ITEMS: 
 

Item 
Number 

Enrollment Agreement Checklist Item Page 
Number(s) 

1. Title of agreement.  

2. Name and address of school. 
 

3. Program title. 
 

4. Number of clock hours (or credit units, if applicable), including the number of weeks or 
months required for graduation. 

 

5. Type of document (certificate, diploma, or degree) awarded upon graduation. 
 

6. The tuition period which the agreement covers (e.g., quarter, semester, etc.) and the number 
and length of such periods required for graduation must be clearly disclosed. 

 

7. 

Tuition and other student charges related to the enrollment, such as deposits, fees, books, 
supplies, tools, equipment, transportation, and any other “extras” e.g., make-up work, special 
testing, equipment, late charges, or other school services for which a student may be 
responsible. 

 

8. Payment method and terms of payment. 
 

9. Starting date of program. 
 

10. Specific times of class attendance. 
 

11. Grounds for cancellation / termination by the school. 
 

12. Procedures for cancellation / termination by the student (see also Section I (D)(4)(a-b), 
Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation). 

 

13. The school’s refund policy as disclosed in the school’s catalog1 (see also Section I (D)(5) & 
(6), Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation). 

 

                                                           
1 This may be a summary of the refund policy provided that: a) the summary is consistent with the full policy as disclosed in the catalog; 
b) the summary refers to the full refund policy published in the school catalog; and (c) the summary contains minimally: (i) information 
pertaining to how refunds are calculated (e.g., pro-rata), (ii) the date from which refunds will be calculated, and (iii) the order that and 
timeframe within which refunds will be made. 
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ENROLLMENT AGREEMENT CHECKLIST 
Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges (ACCSC) 
 

Item 
Number 

Enrollment Agreement Checklist Item Page 
Number(s) 

14. Disclaimer of employment guarantee. 
 

15. Acknowledgment statement in large and conspicuous print that the student has read and 
received a copy of the enrollment agreement.  

 

16 
Acknowledgment statement in large and conspicuous print that the student has read and 
received a copy of the school catalog and understands and agrees to the school’s policies 
published in the catalog. 

 

17. Signature of applicant and date signed (parent or other sponsor may sign, as applicable). 
 

18. Signature of appropriate accepting school official (excluding those involved in recruiting 
activities) and the acceptance date, constituting admission into the school. 

 

19. Each page must be clearly and conspicuously paginated providing the page number and the 
total number of pages in the agreement (i.e., Page 1 of 5, Page 2 of 5, etc.). 

 

 
CONDITIONAL ITEMS: 
 

20. Items as may be required by any regulatory or governmental bodies (such as state licensing 
and approval agencies). 

 

21. Reasons and maximum period for possible delay of scheduled starting date with list of 
alternatives and effect on the refund policy.  

 

22. Nature and extent of possible changes in program content, materials, or schedule and extra 
expenses to the student.  

 

23. Special graduation conditions or requirements must be listed. 
 

24. 

Compliance with appropriate state and local retail installment requirements (e.g., type size, 
notice to buyer, computation box, etc.), as well as compliance with Federal Truth-In-Lending 
requirements (Regulation Z) if more than four payments are scheduled (e.g., mention of 
interest rates) must be outlined.  The school’s enrollment agreement must contain a statement 
if there is a separate retail sales contract and, at a minimum, incorporate that document in the 
enrollment agreement by reference.  

 

25. 
If the school reserves the right to adjust tuition rates before completion of the program, 
specific points in the program at which tuition changes may occur (school year, quarter, etc.) 
and the amount of reasonable advance notice to students must be outlined. 

 

26. 
Requirements that student (and financial sponsors, if any) authorize the sale, discount or 
transfer of agreement or promissory notes and statement that the refund policy continues to 
apply must be outlined. 

 

27. Name of the field representative and compliance with Federal Trade Commission door-to-
door sales rule must be disclosed for any contacts made away from the school premises. 

 

28. 

If a parent company, headquarters, or other organization or agency, separate from the school, 
is involved in the student contact or relations, name and address of the company or agency, 
nature of the anticipated contact or relations, role of the school in arranging the contact and in 
settlement of possible disputes must be outlined.  

 

29. 

If the school offers a course with secondary objectives2 that have been approved by ACCSC 
to be included as within the school’s scope of institutional accreditation, the school must use 
an Enrollment Agreement in conformance with all items of the Enrollment Agreement 
Checklist (replace “program” with “course” in the requirements). 

 

30. Additional disclosures of rights, obligations, requirements, and conditions created by the 
enrollment agreement not specifically identified herein must be outlined.  

 

 

                                                           
2 See Section I (B)(1)(d)(ii) Rules of Process and Procedure, Standards of Accreditation and Section I (B)(3)(c) Rules of Process and 
Procedure, Standards of Accreditation. 
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School: School Number: 

City: State: Zip Code: 

 

Employee’s Name: Title: 

Date of initial employment: Years in Current Position: Full-time Part-time 
  

 
Responsibilities:   

  
 

Courses Taught (specify course number, 
name, and indicate course type w/ ) 

Non-Degree 
Course 

Associate 
Level Course

Bacc. Level 
Course 

Graduate 
Level course 

Applied 
Gen. Ed. Gen. Ed. 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       
 
Allocation Of Time  Hours in a Typical Week  

Assignment Morning Hours Afternoon Hours Evening Hours 

Administration    

Instruction - Classroom    

Instruction - Lab or Shop    

Supervision of Externships/ Internships    

Student Advising    

Other    

TOTAL HOURS    
 
POSTSECONDARY EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND 

School – City, State From 
Mo/Yr 

To 
Mo/Yr Area of Study Type of Credential 

Earned-Date 
Copy on 
File-Y/N 
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PRIOR PRACTICAL WORK EXPERIENCE RELATED TO SUBJECTS TAUGHT (Section III, Substantive 
Standards, Standards of Accreditation) 

Company – City, State From 
Mo/Yr 

To 
Mo/Yr 

Job Title and Duties 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    
 
INSTRUCTOR TRAINING (i.e., training, preparation and continuing education in instructional methods and 
teaching skills for residential and/or distance education faculty–See Sections III and IX, Substantive Standards, 
Standards of Accreditation) 

School/Training Site – City, State From 
Mo/Yr 

To 
Mo/Yr 

Name and Nature of 
Training/Education/Certification Received

Copy on 
File-Y/N

     

     

     

     

     
 
LIST LICENSES, CERTIFICATIONS, PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS, AND MEMBERSHIPS AND YEAR 
OBTAINED: 
 
  

  

  

LIST CONTINUING EDUCATION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES: 
 
  

  

  

  

By submitting this report to ACCSC, both the school and the faculty member certify that the information contained 
herein, attached hereto, and maintained on file with the school is correct and that the faculty member’s 
qualifications comply with the applicable Standards of Accreditation. 



St: Zip: Phone: Email:

Program Title:

1           TOTAL % %=
2 0 100%  
3 0 3/2
4 0 4/2
5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100%  
6 Unavailable for Graduation 0 6/5
7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7/5
8 0 8/5
9 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9/7

10 ###### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### 9/7

11 0 11/9
12 Graduates - Unavailable for Employment 0 12/9
13 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13/9
14 0 14/9

15 ###### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### 14/13

16 0 16/13
17 0 17/13
18 0 18/13

If there is a value other than zero in any of these fields, then there is an error in the data:
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

19 0 19/5

20 ###### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### ##### #####

If the value is greater than zero in any of these fields, then there is an error in the data:
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Program Length in Months:

Report Date:School #:

City:

Name of School:

Graduates - Employed in Field

#NUM! #NUM!

Transfers from Another Program
Total Starts plus/minus Transfers

Class Start Date (month/year)
Number Started
Transfers to Another Program

Beginning Date of 12 Month Reporting Period: Ending Date of 12 Month Reporting Period:

Employment Rate 
with Non-Graduated Students Who Obtained 

Training Related Employment

Graduates - Unknown

Students Available for Graduation
Withdrawn/Terminated Students
Graduates within 150% of Program Length

Graduates - Unrelated Occupations
Graduates - Unemployed

Graduates - Further Education

Graduates - Available for Employment

Checking Calculation of Non-Graduated Students 

ACCSC Graduation and Employment Chart

Please See the Glossary Tab (below) for a Line-By-Line Reference to All Terms Used in this Chart

Checking Calculation of Graduates
Checking Calculation of Available for Employment

Checking Placement Accountability

EMPLOYMENT RATE

GRADUATION RATE

Non-Graduated Students Who Obtained 
Training Related Employment

Revised July 1, 2017



Instructions for activating the self-calculating beginning and ending dates into the 
Graduation & Employment (“G&E”) Chart: 

a. Use the File menu Save As function to save each chart separately under a
different name.

b. Click on the G&E Chart tab at the bottom of the screen.

c. Once in the G&E Chart tab, calculate the Reporting Period:

- Enter the required Report Date as provided or directed by the Commission in
the following format: 7/1/17, then

- Enter the Program Length in Months (round up to the nearest whole number).
The Beginning and Ending dates of the 12-month Reporting Period will
automatically be filled in on the chart.

If the dates do not appear, go to File, Options, Add-Ins.  From the Add-Ins 
available list, select Analysis ToolPak.  The Analysis ToolPak function is 
automatically loaded and you are now ready to proceed with completing a chart 
for each approved program. 

Please note when completing the G&E Chart, under “Class Start Date,” use the 
full four digit year (ex. Jul-2017 or 7/2017). 

For any questions or additional information, please contact Sean Forman at 703-
247-4505 or sforman@accsc.org.



Revised 10/1/2009

G&E Chart 
Line # All Data Included in the Graduation and Employment Chart Must Be Verifiable Through Appropriate Documentation

1 Class Start Date:  The month and year each student cohort, or groups of student cohorts students started (a group of student cohorts occurs when there are multiple class starts within a single month). 

2

Number Started: The number of students who started in the program for each start date in the period, including students entering with advanced placement.
Start: Students are considered to have been in attendance for reporting purposes (Start) if, as a result of their attendance, they incur a tuition/fee or other financial obligation as specified by the institution’s
refund policy. Fees or other obligations (i.e., uniforms, tools, etc.) are only those associated with actual attendance; not those considered part of the application for admission or enrollment process. In any
event, any student enrolled 15 days from the scheduled start date of the program must be classified as a “start” for the purpose of reporting students on the Graduation and Employment Chart.

3 Transfers to Another Program: The total number of students who transferred out of this program and into another ACCSC-approved program at the school. 

4 Transfers from Another Program: The total number of students who transferred into this program from another ACCSC-approved program at the school, and whose progress in the program is 
concurrent with the students in this class start date.

5 Total Starts plus/minus Transfers (Line 5 = 2-3+4): The total number of students who started, minus those who transferred out, plus those who transferred in. This is the total number of students on 
which graduation will be based.

6 Unavailable for Graduation:  This category removes from the graduation rate calculation students who fall into one of the following classifications: death, incarceration, active military service 
deployment, or the onset of a medical condition that prevents continued enrollment. 

7 Available for Graduation (Line 7=5-6):  The total number of students available for graduation from the program.

8 Withdrawn / Terminated Students: The number of students who withdrew or were terminated, within 150% of the program length, from the program. This number does not include the student classified 
as "Unavailable for Graduation" (Line 6).

9 Graduates within 150% of Program Length: The number of students who graduated from the program within 150% of the stated program length.

10 GRADUATION RATE:  The school's official graduation rate for each cohort and for the program for the reporting period (Line 10 = 9/7).

11 Graduates - Further Education: The number of graduates that continue on with education in an accredited institution of higher education (postsecondary) on at least a half-time basis.

12 Graduates - Unavailable for Employment: This category removes from the employment rate calculation graduates who fall into one of the following categories: death, incarceration, active military 
service deployment, the onset of a medical condition that prevents employment, or international students who have returned to their country of origin. 

13 Available for Employment (Line 13 = 9-11-12): The total number of students available for employment.

14 Graduates - Employed in Field: The number of graduates employed in jobs for which the program trained them. NOTE: Graduates classified as employed must be supported by documentation showing 
position obtained, date employed, employer, and employer contact person, address, and phone.

15 EMPLOYMENT RATE:  The school's official rate of graduate job attainment for each cohort and for the program for the reporting period (Line 15=14/13).  The school's official rate of employment is 
that which is used to determine compliance with accreditation requirements.

16 Graduates in Unrelated Occupations: The number of graduates employed in jobs not related to the training obtained from the school’s program. 

17 Graduates Unemployed: The number of unemployed graduates.

18 Graduates Unknown: The number of graduates for which no information about employment or unemployment is available.

19 Non-Graduated Students Who Obtained Training Related Employment:  The number of withdrawn/terminated students from Line 8 who obtain employment in a field related to the program in which 
the student was enrolled and based upon the training provided by the school. 

20 Employment Rate with Non-Graduated Students Who Obtained Training Related Employment:  The school's supplemental employment rate which calculates the total number or graduated and non-
graduated students who obtained training related employment.

Glossary of Terms Used on the ACCSC Graduation and Employment Chart
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GUIDELINES FOR EMPLOYMENT CLASSIFICATION  

The school must be able to justify the classification of each graduate as employed in a training related 
field and maintain verifiable employment records using the following guidelines. In accordance with 
Section I (A)(1)(d) Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation, the school should have and adhere 
to policies or protocols in regard to these guidelines (reasonable time period, sustainability, relatedness, 
etc.). 

1. The employment classification is appropriate and reasonable based on the educational objectives of 
the program. 

2. The employment is for a reasonable period of time, is based on program objectives, and can be 
considered sustainable (e.g., not a single day of employment). 

3. The employment is directly related to the program from which the individual graduated, aligns with a 
majority of the educational and training objectives of the program, and is a paid position. 

4. The employment classification is verified by the school (and verifiable by third parties such as the 
Commission) as follows: 

a. Regular Employment:  

i. The school secures written documentation from the employer verifying the employment and 
that the employment is related to the student’s program of study at the school; or 

ii. The school secures written documentation from the graduate verifying the employment and 
that the employment is related to the student’s program of study at the school; or 

iii. In cases where a school can show diligent efforts have been made to secure such written 
documentation without success, the school maintains employment verification records that 
include:  

1.  The graduate’s and employer’s name and contact information; 

2.  A signature of school staff attesting to verbal employment verification with the employer 
and the date of verification; and 

3.  A signature of school staff attesting to verbal employment verification with the graduate 
and the date of verification.  

b. Self-Employment: 

The school secures written documentation from the self-employed graduate verifying that the 
employment is valid including, at a minimum, a statement signed by the graduate which includes 
the following:  

 The graduate’s name and contact information; 

 An attestation that the self-employment is aligned with the individual’s employment goals, is 
vocational, and is based on and related to the education and training received;  

 An attestation that the graduate is earning training-related income; and  

 In cases where licensure is required for employment, an attestation that such licensure has 
been achieved. 
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c. Career Advancement: 

Students that are already employed in the field of study at the time of graduation1 can be 
considered employed when completing the program of study as follows: 

i. The school shows with written documentation from the employer or the graduate that the 
training allowed the graduate to maintain the employment position due to the training 
provided by the school; or 

ii. The school shows with written documentation from the employer or the graduate that the 
training supported the graduate’s ability to be eligible or qualified for advancement due to the 
training provided by the school. 

5. A verifiable employment record includes the following information:  

 Graduate Name and Contact Information (e.g., home phone number, mobile phone number, e-
mail address, etc.);  

 Date of Initial Employment;  

 Place of Employment;  

 Employer Address;  

 Employer Contact Person/Supervisor and direct contact information (e.g., phone number, e-mail 
address, etc.); and  

 Descriptive Job Title and Duties.  
 
In addition to these guidelines, the Commission expects that schools will regularly gather information 
from employers as a means to assess the preparedness of graduates for employment and make program 
modifications as may be necessary based on that feedback. 

                                                           
1 The intent of this provision does not apply in cases where a student secures employment toward the end of the program but 
prior to graduation, where the employment is based on the near anticipated completion of the program (e.g., externship to hire 
prior to graduation). 
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The Commission requires Independent Third-Party Employment Verification for the following:1 

 The Commission requires that initial and renewal applicants engage an independent third-party 
auditor to verify the school’s most recently reported employment data that will be used for the on-
site evaluation process.  

 The Commission may also direct a school to undergo a Third-Party Employment Verification at 
any time. 

 
Please note: This does not replace the classification and verification/documentation requirements for 
the school to first verify and maintain listed in Appendix VII Guidelines for Employment Classification. 
 
The purpose of the requirement is a) to assess the school’s compliance with Section VII (B)(1)(b), 
Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation and whether the school has “verifiable” records of 
employment and b) to ensure that the institution’s records can be relied upon in making decisions about a 
school’s compliance with the Commission’s student achievement standards and benchmarks. As stated in 
the Standards of Accreditation, the Commission places a high level of reliance on the accuracy of the 
information and data provided by institutions in the accreditation process and the institution has the burden 
of demonstrating compliance with accrediting standards. The requirement of the independent third-party 
audit facilitates further self-evaluation, improvements in operational procedures, and assists schools in 
meeting the burden of demonstrating on-going compliance with accrediting standards. 

1. The school must engage an independent third-party to verify the employment data in the Graduation 
and Employment (“G&E”) Chart(s) submitted in the Self-Evaluation Report as part of the accreditation 
process. For initial applicants the verification will cover the Graduation and Employment Chart data 
submitted with the Self-Evaluation Report and for renewal applicants the verification will cover the 
Graduation and Employment Chart data submitted in the school’s most recent Annual Report. If the 
Commission directs a school to otherwise undergo an independent third-party employment verification, 
the Commission action letter will specify which G&E Chart or data must be verified. 

2. The independent third-party must select minimally a 50% sample of employed graduates (classified as 
“Graduates - Employed in the Field”) on line 14 of each G&E Chart and report the results from that 
sample. Once the 50% sample has been selected by the independent third-party, for the purposes of this 
application, the independent third-party may not alter the sample in an effort to get better results.  

If an institution wishes to present an updated G&E Chart or a G&E Chart using a more recent Report 
Date than that which was submitted in the school’s Annual Report, the updated G&E Chart must be 
verified using the same methodology and reported on separately in order to be considered by the 
Commission in making an accreditation decision.  

3. The independent third-party must obtain verification of the employment records from the employer or 
graduate either verbally or in writing. This is not just an “audit” of the school’s back-up documentation. 

4. The independent third-party must verify the employment data in a manner independent from the school. 
The independent third-party must conduct the verifications without assistance from the school, with the 
exception of the school’s provision of records to be verified.  

5. The school must provide the full report from the independent third party verification of employment 
data to the ACCSC on-site evaluation team, as directed by Appendix B of the SER. 

 

                                                           
1 The Commission also annually selects a random sample of schools for verification which is a different process and 
is not applicable to these Guidelines. 
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The school must provide the following as part of the SER or the response to the Commission action 
letter: 

1. Information about the third-party procured by the school for this project as follows: 

a. Documentation demonstrating that the third-party procured by the school for this project meets 
the following tests to be considered independent. A signed attestation from the independent 
third-party that includes the following: 

i. The independent third-party, and its employees, is not affiliated with the school or 
share any part ownership in the school or its affiliated schools. 

ii. The independent third-party does not provide any other services to the school. 

iii. The independent third-party will only report accurate findings through work conducted 
in an independent manner. 

iv. The independent third-party understands and applied the classifications defined in item 
#2 below exactly as stated.  

b.  A description of the methodology that the verification agency used for the selection of the 50% 
sample. 

c.  A description of the methodology that the verification agency used for the verification process. 
 
2. A summary of results for each G&E Chart that includes the following (at a minimum):  

a. The total number of students in the sample;  

b. The number of students in each of the categories below and the percentage in each 
category as defined below: 

Verified as Correct – A record is classified “verified as correct” when the independent 
third party finds: 

 The same employer as listed in the school’s record; 

 The start date listed in the school’s record is within 45 days of the verified start 
date; 

 The verified job title is substantively the same as that listed in the school’s record, 
using the following illustrative guidelines (examples from an Automotive 
Technology program): 

- Exact Match - The school employment record matches exactly the verified job 
title e.g., “Mechanic”;  

- Obvious Match - The school employment record states “Mechanic” and the 
verified job title of, “Auto Mechanic” is an obvious match; or  

- Confirmed Match - The school employment record states “Mechanic” but the 
verified job title is “Technician II” and the employer or graduate confirm that 
the job responsibilities are substantively the same. 

Verified but Different – A record is classified “verified but different” when the 
independent third party finds: 
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 A start date that is more than 45 days different from the start date in the school’s 
employment record; or 

 A substantively different job title from that in the school’s employment record (i.e., 
any job title that is verified to be different from the school’s employment record 
and is not an obvious match or confirmed match as described above) 

Unable to Verify – A record is classified “unable to verify” when the independent third 
party is unable to obtain verification of the school’s employment record from either the 
employer or the graduate. Of note, the school must use this category if the employer 
uses a third-party company, for example The Work Number; and 

Verified as Not Correct – A record is classified “verify as not correct” when the 
independent third party finds any of the following: 

 The graduate is not found in employer’s records; 

 The graduate’s initial employer is different than the employer listed in the school’s 
employment record; 

 The graduate denies having worked in the position as stated in the school’s 
employment record; 

 The position listed in the school’s employment record is unpaid or an 
intern/externship; and 

 Other discrepancies that render the school’s employment record as incorrect. 

c. The following chart completed for each program: 

Independent Third Party Initial Employment Verification  
Reported Program Rates 

Annual Report Year Program Title (Credential) Length of Program 
(Months) 

   
Total number of students 

sampled 
Total number of available 

students to sample* Sample size percentage 

   

Verified as Correct Verified but Different Unable to Verify Verified as Not Correct 

    
* Students classified as Graduates - Employed in Field in program 
 

Placements Verified by a Different Independent Third-Party* 
Company Name Number of Graduates Verified 

  

* Graduates that were unable to be verified by the school’s chosen vendor but were verified by a different third-
party company like “The Work Number.” 
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3. The following chart completed with the aggregate institutional results across all programs: 

Independent Third Party Initial Employment Verification  
Reported Institutional Rates 

Annual Report Year Name of Company 
  

Total number of students 
sampled 

Total number of available 
students to sample* Sample size percentage 

   

Verified as Correct Verified but Different Unable to Verify Verified as Not 
Correct 

    
*Students classified as Graduates - Employed in Field across all programs for Annual Report year 
 

Placements Verified by a Different Independent Third-Party* 
Company Name Number of Graduates Verified 

  

* Graduates that were unable to be verified by the school’s chosen vendor but were verified by a different third-
party company like “The Work Number.” 
 
4. An attestation from the third-party vender regarding the following disclosures/past records 

of integrity: 

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO THIRD-PARTY VENDOR: 
SELECT ONE () 

YES NO 

1. 

Has any owner, employee, or affiliated contractor been directly or indirectly employed or 
affiliated with any school which has lost or been denied accreditation by any accrediting 
agency? If the answer is YES, please attach a statement which details the facts and 
circumstances surrounding that school’s loss or denial of accreditation. 

  

2. 

Has any owner, employee, or affiliated contractor been directly or indirectly employed or 
affiliated with any school that has closed or entered into bankruptcy? If the answer is YES, 
please attach a statement which details the facts and circumstances surrounding that 
school’s closure, bankruptcy or both as applicable. 

  

3. 

Has any owner, employee, or affiliated contractor been directly or indirectly employed or 
affiliated with any school that has lost or been denied eligibility to participate in Federal 
Student Financial Aid (Title IV) programs? If the answer is YES, please attach a statement 
which details the facts and circumstances surrounding the loss or denial of Title IV 
eligibility. 
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DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO THIRD-PARTY VENDOR: 
SELECT ONE () 

YES NO 

4. 

Is any action pending (e.g. court action, audit, inquiry, review, administrative action), or 
has action been taken, by any court or administrative body (e.g. federal or state court, 
grand jury, special investigator, U.S. Department of Education, or any state or federal 
regulatory or law enforcement agency) with regard to any owner, employee, or affiliated 
contractor or with regard to any institution with which any owner, employee, or 
affiliated contractor has previously been affiliated? If the answer is YES, please attach 
a statement which gives full disclosure of the person(s) and the matters involved. Include 
a statement of the facts and circumstances surrounding the action identifying the owner, 
employee, or affiliated contractor and the school involved. If the matter is not yet final, 
please describe the procedural status of the matter (i.e., still under investigation, 
preliminary decision under appeal, etc.) and the position taken by the owner, employee, 
or affiliated contractor involved. If the matter is final, provide a copy of the final action 
documentation. 

  

5. 

Has any owner, employee, or affiliated contractor been employed at or affiliated with a 
school where either that individual or the school has been charged or indicted in a civil 
or criminal forum or proceeding alleging fraud, misappropriation, or any criminal act? 
If the answer is YES, please attach a statement which gives full disclosure of the 
person(s) and the matters involved. Include a statement of the facts and circumstances 
surrounding the action identifying the owner, employee, or affiliated contractor and the 
school which is involved. If the matter is not yet final, please describe the procedural 
status of the matter (i.e., still under investigation, preliminary decision under appeal, 
etc.) and the position taken by the owner, employee, or affiliated contractor involved. If 
the matter is final, provide a copy of the final action documentation. 

  

 
a.  The vendor must provide a narrative explanation for YES answers to the questions above. 

 
b. If the third-party answered YES to any of the items above in this section, the school must 

provide an explanation as to why the school chose this vendor despite the vendor’s 
disclosures and past records. The school must also articulate how this vendor can serve as 
a reliable source to verify the accuracy of the school’s data. 
 

c. Explanation of training on ACCSC’s methodology and definitions for counting students as 
verified as correct, verified as different, verified as not correct, or not verified provided to 
each person directly responsible for executing the independent third-party verifications. 
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The submission of reports, forms, responses, and other information via ACCSC’s College 360 Database 
facilitates a more efficient collection and dissemination of school information. Therefore, the Commission 
requires the submission of all forms and reports to be prepared in accordance with the requirements set 
forth in these instructions and submitted via ACCSC’s College 360 Database.   

 
SUBMISSION FORMAT REQUIREMENTS: 

1. ACCSC will not accept any electronic submission transmitted to the Commission via e-mail. 

2. Document submissions must be prepared in accordance with the checklist requirements listed within 
this document. 

3. All documents must be submitted to ACCSC as one Portable Document Format (“PDF”) file that has 
been prepared using Adobe Acrobat software (version 8.0 or higher) and which has a .pdf extension as 
part of the file name. 

4. All PDF documents must be submitted via upload to the School Submission Center on ACCSC’s 
College 360 Database.  ACCSC’s College 360 Database can be accessed by clicking here.  Please note 
that the password to the School Submission Center in the College360 Database is the same as that used 
by institutions to access the Annual Report Portal.  Detailed directions for uploading a school 
submission can be found here. 

5. An acceptable PDF file is one that includes the compilation of all of the materials and documents into 
one single file and not a series of separate files. All documents are to be submitted as one continuous 
PDF document using the Adobe Acrobat software. Only PDF files will be accepted. ACCSC will not 
accept files in other formats such as Microsoft Word, Excel, or PowerPoint; Word Perfect; TIFF; JPEG; 
etc. 

6. All PDF documents must include electronic bookmarks and hyperlinks placed within the document in 
order to identify all of the attachments and exhibits contained within the file. Bookmarking and 
hyperlinking should be done in a manner that facilitates an easy and intuitive navigation and review of 
the file. For example: 

a. Clearly label each bookmark so the reader will easily understand to which document or exhibit the 
bookmark will take the reader; 

b. Bookmark each document that has been compiled into the PDF (e.g., include bookmarks for the 
Team Summary Report and the school’s response); 

c. In a response to an on-site evaluation report or a Commission action letter, bookmark each Team 
Finding or Commission action letter item and also bookmark the school’s narrative response to 
each item – this is a good place to use sub-level bookmarks; 

d. Bookmark and label all exhibits; and 

e. Where appropriate, use the Adobe link tool to create a dynamic hyperlink from the narrative 
response to a specific location or document in the file (e.g., to the specific exhibit that supports that 
section of the narrative response). See page three of these instructions for a sample view of 
bookmarks and hyperlinks. 

7. Whenever possible, directly convert documents to PDF as opposed to scanning and creating PDFs from 
paper documents. The direct conversion of documents to a PDF format allows for far greater 
readability. For example, complete the narrative response using word processing software (e.g., MS 
Word), convert the Word document directly to a PDF file, and then combine the converted file with 
other converted or scanned documents into a single PDF document. 

8. Any security features in the PDF document must be disabled. 
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9. All document submissions must contain a cover letter that includes the school name, address, ACCSC 
school number1, and an explanation of the content and the title of the document(s) included on medium.   

10. If the document submission contains documentation that includes personal or confidential student or 
staff information that is not required for the Commission’s review (e.g., social security numbers, dates 
of birth, etc.), please remove or redact that information. 

12. Any document that is submitted not in accordance with these instructions will not be processed. If the 
document is one required by the Commission to be submitted by an assigned due date, the school will 
be charged a late fee.  

13. If a fee is required for the processing of an application, please mail a check directly to ACCSC for 
processing and include a statement identifying the corresponding application(s).  Please note that 
applications which require a payment will not be processed until the corresponding fee is sent: 

 
ACCSC 

2101 Wilson Boulevard 
Suite 302 

Arlington, Virginia 22201 
 
 
School Submission Upload Checklist  

The uploaded submission must include the following: 
 A cover letter identifying the institution by name, address, ACCSC school number; an explanation 

of the content and the title of the document(s); and a name, phone number, and e-mail address for 
a point of contact at the school for questions regarding the submission. 

 A bookmarked Table of Contents.  
 A copy of the Commission letter and the school’s response to the Commission letter compiled into 

one PDF file. 
 A signed Certification Statement attesting to the accuracy of the data contained in the response. 
 An introduction with instructions on how to navigate the document. 
 A restatement of each item listed in the Commission letter/report/enclosure followed by the 

school’s narrative response with electronic bookmarks to indicate the location of the response and 
all pertinent information and documentation.  

 Schools must submit a narrative response for each and every item in the Commission’s 
letter/report/enclosure. 

 Documentation to support the narrative response, including any exhibits, with electronic 
bookmarks and hyperlinks to indicate the location of the documentation. 

 If a fee is required for the processing of an application, please mail a check directly to ACCSC for 
processing and include a statement identifying the corresponding application(s). 

 
 
 
 
 

                     
1 For initial applicants: upon receipt of the Application for Initial Accreditation-Part I, ACCSC will assign the school a six-digit 
school number to be included on all future submissions to be considered by the Commission. 
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Sample View of an Appropriately Prepared Electronic Submission 

 

 
 
 

Bookmarks 

Sub-Level 
Bookmark 

Hyperlink to Exhibit 2b 

Restatement of Concern 

Narrative Response 



INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE PREPARATION AND SUBMISSION 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELATED INFORMATION 

Page 1 of 6 Revised July 1, 2016 

APPLICABLE STANDARD OF ACCREDITATION  

Section I (C)(1), Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation sets forth the Commission’s 
requirement that institutions must maintain a financial structure that is sound, with resources sufficient for 
proper operation of the institution and discharge of obligations to students. The annual submission of 
financial statements enables the Commission to monitor the compliance of accredited institutions with 
this requirement. 

Section I (E), Rules of Process and Procedures, Standards of Accreditation sets forth ACCSC’s general 
instructions for the submission of documents to the Commission, to include the provision that all 
submissions be in an electronic format in conformance with the Instructions for Electronic Submission. 
 
The Instructions for the Preparation and Submission of Financial Statements and Related Information are 
intended to provide institutions and their independent accountants, advisors, or consultants who are 
engaged to assist in the preparation of financial statements to the Commission, with the specific 
requirements that institutions must meet in preparing financial statement submissions. Compliance with 
these instructions is the responsibility of the institution. An institution that is unable to provide financial 
statements in accordance with these requirements cannot provide assurance that it can fulfill its 
obligations to students (Section I, Statement of Purpose, Substantive Standards, Standards of 
Accreditation) and may cause the Commission to question the administrative capability of the institution. 
 
I. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REQUIRED 

DISCLOSURES: 

Accredited institutions are required to submit audited financial statements that are prepared in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) by an independent certified public 
accountant licensed by the state to perform such services. Specific requirements for the presentation 
of financial statements are the following:  

A. Method of Accounting  

1. The financial statements must be prepared using the accrual-basis of accounting. Financial 
Statements prepared using the income tax or cash basis will not be accepted, with the exception 
of public institutions whose oversight authority prepares the institution’s financial statements on 
the cash-basis of accounting and the financial statements are accepted by all other applicable 
regulatory agencies with oversight responsibility in this area. 

2. Financial statements must be presented using a comparative format showing side-by-side 
information for the two most recently concluded fiscal years ended.  

3. The audited financial statements submitted must include, at a minimum, a balance sheet, an 
income statement, a statement of cash flows, and all appropriate notes to the financial statements 
and must include additional disclosures as are specified in these instructions. 

B. The Balance Sheet 

Unless otherwise indicated below, the balance sheet must, at a minimum, disclose totals for the 
following categories: 
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1. Accounts receivable;1 

2. Total current assets; 

3. Fixed assets (net of depreciation);  

4.  Other assets (if any);  

5.  Unearned/deferred tuition;2  

6. Total current liabilities;  

7. Total long-term liabilities;  

8. Each category of equity (such as common stock, preferred stock, additional paid-in-capital, 
retained earnings (deficit), or appropriate corresponding categories for non-corporate entities); 

9. Total shareholders’ equity (or appropriate corresponding designation for non-corporate entities); 
and 

10. Any other information required by GAAP or applicable federal or state law or regulation 

C. The Statement of Income (or Operations), Notes to the Financial Statements, and Supplemental 
Information: 

The income statement, notes to the financial statements or supplemental information as appropriate, 
must, at a minimum, be prepared in accordance with the following guidelines when disclosing gross 
tuition revenue and the revenue recognition method. 

1. Gross Tuition Revenue – Tuition revenue must be identified as a line item on the income 
statement or in the notes to the financial statements. Gross tuition revenue is defined as revenues 
from all tuition and fees assessed against students (net of refunds and discounts and allowances) 
for all educational purposes provided by an ACCSC accredited institution. If gross tuition 
revenue is not identified as a line item on the income statement, then it must be disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements, otherwise the Commission will use Total Revenue to calculate 
the institution’s annual sustaining fee obligation. 

2. Segment Information – When an income statement includes any material operations that are not 
related to the delivery of education and training services, the financial statements must provide 
“segment information” in adequate detail to allow the educational operations to be viewed 
separately from the non-education operations. Such “segment information” may be provided in 
the notes to the financial statements or in supplemental information attached to and incorporated 
in the financial statements. (For example, a trucking company that operates a small truck driving 
school must segregate the results of the operations and the tuition income earned by the school to 
facilitate an evaluation of the educational operations and the tuition income earned by the non-

                                                            
1 Student receivables must be disclosed separately from other receivables (unless such other receivables are de minimis) and must 
provide an allowance for doubtful accounts. The segregation of student receivables from other receivables and the disclosure of 
the allowance for doubtful accounts may be presented on the face of the Balance Sheet or in the notes to the financial statements. 
Without regard to materiality, any accounts or notes receivable from related parties, whether classified as current or non-current, 
must be segregated. See also I (C)(5)(b) below. 
2 Unearned tuition is that portion of tuition income recognized but not yet earned by the institution. These amounts are payments 
made for educational services to be rendered in the future to presently enrolled students and must be shown as a current liability 
of the school. See also I (C)(4) below. 
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educational operations. Conversely, revenues from a salon operated for the purposed of 
supporting a cosmetology program would not be considered segmented information, but rather 
ancillary to the educational program and included with tuition revenue.) 

3. Revenue Recognition Method – Revenue from educational services is to be recognized ratably as 
educational services are delivered over the period of enrollment (i.e., the period of time for which 
the student is obligated financially for educational services to be received). Other terms such as a 
“period of obligation” or other appropriately descriptive terms of comparable meaning may be 
substituted for “period of enrollment.” 

4. Unearned Tuition – The method of calculating unearned tuition must be disclosed in the footnotes 
and the method must be applied consistently from year to year. 

5. Related Party Transactions: 

a. Without regard to materiality, any accounts or notes receivable from related parties, whether 
classified as current or non-current, must be segregated and to the extent that the related party 
receivable is secured, in whole or in part, the security must be disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. If the security for the receivable is not disclosed, the Commission will 
assume the related party receivable is unsecured. 

b. For institutions participating in the Title IV federal student financial aid program, the 
financial statements must include a detailed description of all parties and entities related to 
the institution (“related parties”) as set forth by applicable federal regulations (see 34 CFR 
§668.23(d)). 

D. Conformance with Federal and State Requirements: 

In additional to the requirements set forth above, the financial statements must conform to all 
requirements set forth by applicable federal or state law or regulations. 
 

II. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE REQUIRED 

Institutions and/or legal entities that own or operate one or more schools, and are members of a multi-
entity group under common control and/or ownership, must submit consolidated financial statements 
prepared in compliance with these instructions. This must include a consolidation of the holding 
company that beneficially owns the stock of the institutions and where any debt, as it relates to 
acquisitions or operations of the institutions, is recorded. Consolidated statements of operating 
subsidiaries or such other groupings of affiliated companies that do not contain the holding 
company’s financial statements will not be deemed to satisfy the Commission’s requirements. 
Notwithstanding the preceding, the institution is free to submit any such financial statements as 
additional information for the Commission’s consideration. 
 

III. ADDITIONAL SUBMISSIONS THAT MAY BE REQUIRED AT THE DISCRETION OF 
THE COMMISSION 

A. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of the Financial Statements  

1. The Commission may, at its discretion, require the management or owner(s) of an institution to 
submit a Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) narrative examining and explaining 
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the financial condition of the school.3 The Commission may, in its notice requiring submission of 
the MD&A, specify that certain items be discussed in addition to items that would typically be 
found therein. 

2. Nothing in the above specification of the form of the submission shall be deemed to limit or 
otherwise restrict management’s right to include other data or narrative discussion related to an 
institution’s financial position, results of operations, liquidity, or future expectations. Such 
additional management comments, if any, must be clearly marked as such and be provided 
immediately following the MD&A portion of the submission. 

B. Interim Financial Statements  

Additionally, the Commission may require the submission of interim financial statements (i.e., 
financial statements for specified dates and accounting periods other than the entire fiscal year). In the 
event that interim financial statements are required, the Commission will specify whether such 
interim financial statements may be prepared internally, or whether the interim financial statements 
should be compiled, reviewed or audited by independent accountants. The Commission may also 
require the submission of additional financial information, disclosures, and supporting documentation 
in conjunction with any interim financial statements that are required and specify the timeline for 
submission. 

C. Circumstances Requiring Additional Submissions  

The Commission may, at its discretion, require the submission of any additional information it deems 
necessary or desirable in making a determination as to whether an institution is in compliance with 
the Standards of Accreditation. Examples of circumstances that may require the submission of 
additional information include, but are not limited to, situations where:  

1. The Commission has a question or concern that a school’s previously submitted financial 
statements may contain materially misleading information, intentionally misleading information, 
or may not contain all required information;  

2. The Commission has information which raises concern that a school may have experienced a 
material adverse change in its financial position subsequent to the date of its most recently 
submitted fiscal year-end statements;  

3. The Commission has received information that school’s auditors have resigned following a 
dispute over the Company’s financial statements;  

4. The school’s previously submitted financial statements indicate that the school may not have 
resources sufficient for the operation of the school and discharge of obligations to students 
(Section I (C)1, Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation);  

5. The Commission has placed an institution on Financial Reporting; and  

                                                            
3 When such a submission is required by the Commission, the institution must prepare the narrative in a form consistent with that 
typically found in the “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” section of the form 10-K which publicly-traded educational 
companies are required to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 
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6. Any other circumstances in which the Commission reasonably believes that additional or more 
current financial information is necessary to monitor the school’s compliance with the Standards 
of Accreditation. 

 
IV. OTHER REQUIRED SUBMISSIONS  

A. For public institutions whose audit is conducted by a government appointed auditor and not available 
within 6 months following the end of the fiscal year, provide the following no later than 6 months 
from the end of the fiscal year:  

1. Internally prepared unaudited financial statements prepared in accordance with these instructions;  

2. The amount of funding received from the public ownership entity (i.e., the state) in the immediate 
past fiscal year;  

3. The amount of funding received or anticipated for the current fiscal year from the public 
ownership entity (i.e., the state).  

B. In addition to the financial statements required to be submitted as described above, schools are also 
required to submit a copy of any of the following correspondences from the U.S. Department of 
Education, within 10 days of receipt:  

1. The school’s financial position (for example, any correspondence regarding a low composite 
score and/or a requirement to post additional financial assurances, such as letters of credit);  

2. The school’s actual or potential loss of eligibility to continue to participate in the Title IV Federal 
Student Aid program;  

3. Notice that the school will be, or may be, placed on heightened cash monitoring or otherwise be 
subject to a change in its Title IV status;  

4. A demand for the reimbursement or repayment of Title IV funds received by the school (unless 
such amounts are de minimis); or  

5. The assessment of a fine or penalty in an amount that is equal to or greater than the lesser of: 5% 
or more of:  

a. Shareholders’ equity (or other corresponding equity accounts for non-corporate entities), or 

b. Net income, as such amounts are reflected on the most recent fiscal year-end financial 
statements.  

B. In accordance with Section V (E)(1), Rules of Process and Procedure, Standards of Accreditation, the 
school must notify ACCSC of any material event or circumstance that could affect the school’s 
financial status. Such notification must be in writing and made within 10 calendar days of the event’s 
occurrence. 

 
V. SUBMISSION DEADLINES FOR FISCAL YEAR END FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

A.  Each accredited institution must submit its audited fiscal year-end financial statements no later than 
the earlier of: 
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1. The date of the submission of such audited fiscal year-end financial statements to any State or 
Federal regulatory agency (such as the United States Department of Education or the Securities 
and Exchange Commission); 

2. The date of a submission to any state agency whom the school is required to make annual reports 
that include fiscal year-end financial statements or the inclusion of information/data extracted 
from fiscal year-end financial statements): 

3. The date of the submission of audited fiscal year-end financial statements to any other regulatory 
agency other than ACCSC; 

4. A date prescribed by ACCSC; or 

5. In any event: 

i. For private institutions, not later than 6 months following the end of the fiscal year and  

ii. For public institutions whose audit is conducted by a government appointed auditor, not later 
than 20 days after the release of the audit. 

C. If the Commission directs the school to submit interim financial statements or other additional 
information or submissions the due date for submission, along with any specific instructions relative 
to the information to be provided, will be contained in the communication from the Commission 
directing the submission of any such interim financial statements or other financial information. 

 
VI. INSTRUCTIONS FOR INSTITUTIONS APPLYING FOR INITIAL ACCREDITATION  

A. Institutions making application for initial accreditation shall be subject to the exact same requirements 
as set forth above in these instructions. An Application for Initial Accreditation will not be accepted 
from an institution when the financial statements show any of the following:  

1. Net loss for the two most recent fiscal years;  

2. Negative net worth for the two most recent fiscal years; or  

3. Negative cash flow from operations for the most recent fiscal year.  

B. The Commission will not process a school’s Application for Initial Accreditation-Part I if any of the 
provisions set forth herein are not met. Such non-processing is not appealable. 

 
VII. CONFIDENTIALITY  

ACCSC treats financial data and reports submitted to the Commission as confidential. Notwithstanding 
the preceding, ACCSC may release such data or reports as required by government regulation, legal or 
administrative process, or other applicable legal requirements. 
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School Name:  School Number:  Date:  

Address:  City:  State:  Zip code:  
 
 

Non-Degree Program Information 

Program Title Clock 
Hours 

Out of 
Class 
Work 
Hours 

TYPE  
Semester 

Credit 
Hours 

Length 
In 

Months 

Graduation 
Rate†  

or  
Date of 1st 

Graduating 
Class 

Employment 
Rate† 

Credential 
Awarded 

Externship 
Hours* 

(if applicable) 

Externship 
Credits* 

(if applicable) 

Externship 
%* 

(if applicable) 

Related** 
Program  
(yes / no) 

Hybrid or 
Distance 

Education 
(yes / no) 

Automotive Technology 720 180 40 12 75% 75% Diploma 100 4 13% No No 

Cosmetology 1000 0 45 8 12/1/2019 N/A Certificate 0 0 N/A Yes No 

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             

             
† As reported on the most recent Annual Report 
* This should include any hours listed in the Externship Column on the Outline of a Non-Degree Program or Allocation of Hours for Clock Hour Programs 
** A related program as approved by the Commission 
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Degree Program Information 

Program Title 
TYPE 
Credit 
Hours 

Length 
In 

Months 

Graduation 
Rate†  

or  
Date of 1st 

Graduating 
Class 

Employment 
Rate† 

Credential 
Awarded 

Externship 
Hours* 

(if applicable) 

Externship 
Credits* 

(if applicable) 

Externship 
%* 

(if applicable) 

Related** 
Program  
(yes / no) 

Hybrid or 
Distance 

Education 
(yes / no) 

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           
† As reported on the most recent Annual Report 
* This should include any hours listed in the Externship Column on the Outline of a Degree Program  
** A related program as approved by the Commission 
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Program Title 

Schedule 
(Morning, 
Afternoon, 

Day, 
Evening, etc.) 

Enrollment 
Capacity 

Present 
Enrollment 

Number of 
Instructors 

Days of Attendance 
(Place an “X”) 

Hours of Attendance 
% of 

Program 
at this 

Location* 

% of 
Program 

offered via 
Consortium 
Agreement* 

FT PT M T W T F S S From To 

Automotive Technology Day 50 24 4 1 X X X X    8:00am 12:00pm 100% 0% 

Automotive Technology Evening 50 15 1 3 X X X X X   5:00pm 10:00pm 100% 0% 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

                 

 
* If less than 100% of the program is offered at this location or via a consortium agreement, complete page 4 of the Program Chart.



 

PROGRAM CHART 
 

Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges (ACCSC) 
 

Page 4 of 4 Revised January 15, 2019 

IF A PORTION (LESS THAN 100%) OF ANY PROGRAM INDICATED ON PAGE 3 IS OFFERED AT ANOTHER FACILITY OR VIA A CONSORTIUM 
AGREEMENT, COMPLETE THE FOLLOWING CHART FOR THAT PROGRAM. 
 

Program Title 
Percentage of Program Offered at an 

Approved Main Campus 
Percentage of Program Offered at an 

Approved Branch Campus 
Percentage of Program Offered at an 

Approved Satellite Location 

ACCSC School #  ACCSC School #  ACCSC School #:  
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The Self-Evaluation Report must be submitted in accordance with the ACCSC Instructions 
for Electronic Submission. 
 
In accordance with prescribed timeframes, schools are required to complete and provide to the 
Commission a Self-Evaluation Report. Self-evaluation is an assessment of the complete school, 
conducted by faculty and students, as well as by the school administration. The process should 
involve the entire school. The self-evaluation process provides an opportunity for the staff and 
faculty of the school, whether it is a small, highly specialized school or a large, departmentalized 
school, to examine itself and to draft findings and recommendations for its own action. Compliance 
with accrediting standards and improvements within a school should be due primarily to its internal 
efforts rather than due to an on-site evaluation by an outside team or Commission action. The 
Commission expects the process of self-evaluation to be a significant and ongoing experience. 
Schools should incorporate the self-evaluation process as a permanent part of the institution’s 
operation 
 
The maximum term of initial accreditation is three years, but may be less at the discretion of the 
Commission. Also, at the Commission’s discretion, schools may at any time be required to submit 
a new Self-Evaluation Report, other reports, receive an evaluation team, or be subject to other 
Commission-directed actions. 
 
SUBMIT TO: Executive Director 

Accrediting Commission of Career Schools and Colleges (ACCSC) 
2101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 302 
Arlington, Virginia 22201 

 
The Self-Evaluation Report is comprised of an introduction, nine sections, and three appendices. 
The sections parallel the Standards of Accreditation. The three appendices describe additional 
information the school will need to prepare for the on-site evaluation. Failure to submit complete 
materials to include Appendices A and C will result in an incomplete Self-Evaluation Report 
submission. Any materials submitted after the deadline may result in the assessment of a late fee. 
Read each question carefully and provide a thoughtful narrative response to each with appropriate 
documentation, as necessary, to support the school’s response. 



ACCSC SELF-EVALUATION REPORT  
INITIAL ACCREDITATION 

Page 2 of 40 Revised July 1, 2019 

CERTIFICATION: 
 
A school seeking or holding accreditation from more than one accrediting agency recognized by the 
U.S. Department of Education must consistently describe itself in identical terms to each accrediting 
agency with regard to identity (i.e., main school, or branch), purpose, governance, programs, 
degrees, diplomas, certificates, personnel, finances, constituents served, and must keep each 
accrediting agency apprised of any change in its status with one or another accrediting body. 
 
I grant permission for the Commission to contact the appropriate state agencies, the state and U.S. 
Department of Education, other accrediting agencies, or any other organizations appropriate for 
review of this application. 
 
I certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the information herein and attached hereto is correct. 
 
 
Name:  Title: 
Highest Ranking Official 

 
 
Signature:  Date: 
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SELF EVALUATION PROCESS – INSTITUTIONAL ASSESSMENT 
 
Describe the school’s self-evaluation process and how the staff, faculty, students, Program 
Advisory Committee, and other external interests contribute to the school’s self-evaluation, and 
how the self-evaluation process is a meaningful, significant, and ongoing process.  
 
INTRODUCTION - INSTITUTIONAL ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
 
A. HISTORY 

1. Describe the school’s history including when it first began enrolling students, first became 
eligible to apply for accreditation from ACCSC, and other significant events in the school’s 
history.  

2. In the following chart, list and provide the dates of all changes of ownership, name, 
location, addition of programs, separate facilities, and other substantive changes that have 
occurred in the last two years.  

 
Approval Date 

Month/Year 
Substantive Change 

  
 
B. OWNERSHIP AND ORGANIZATION 

1. Provide a chart of the ownership structure of the school, including all entities and 
individuals in the chain of ownership and any additional information necessary to explain 
the ownership structure.  

2. Provide an organizational chart and, if needed, a narrative description of the school’s 
management structure which identifies, at a minimum, how the management structure 
satisfies the requirements of the Standards of Accreditation.  

 
C. MISSION AND EDUCATIONAL OBJECTIVES 

1. Present the school’s mission statement and primary educational objectives.  

2. Explain the reasons the school initially decided to offer and continues to offer each 
program; include a summary of external validations (e.g., market research, employer 
feedback). 

3. Does the school offer programs or courses that do not fall within the Commission’s scope 
of review (e.g., non-vocational educational objectives such as GED preparation, refresher 
training, avocational courses, continuing education, etc.)? If so, provide a list of the 
programs or courses and the percentage of the school’s students enrolled in each of these 
programs or courses and collectively in all such programs or courses. 

4. Describe any contractual arrangements the school has with businesses or government 
agencies to offer specialty training (e.g., group training, off-site training, modified program 
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offerings, individually design curriculum, etc.). Maintain a copy of each contract and make 
the documentation available for review during the on-site evaluation. 

 
D. ACCSC ACTIONS  

1. Attach a copy of the letter from the Commission accepting the school’s Application for 
Initial Accreditation – Part I. 

 
E. FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. Provide the following information regarding requirements with which the school must 
comply that are significantly different or more stringent than ACCSC standards.  

a. Any state specific student refund requirements; 

b. Any state specific requirements (i.e. licensure) for faculty; 

c. Any state or local government requirements for fire, safety, sanitation, and insurance;  

d. Any state program requirements; and 

e. Any other additional requirements by federal, state, or local government agencies or 
other accrediting bodies that that are significantly different or more stringent than 
ACCSC standards.  
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I – MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE OPERATIONS 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation)  

The purpose of this section is to ensure that accredited schools have the capability to meet and 
exceed accrediting standards on an ongoing basis. This section addresses the requirements schools 
must meet in regard to management and administrative capacity, qualifications of management 
and administrative personnel, financial stability, institutional assessment and improvement 
planning, and physical facilities. A school that lacks adequate management; sufficient 
administrative capacity; financial resources and physical facilities; or that fails to plan for future 
improvement cannot provide assurance that it will operate in compliance with accrediting 
standards, meet its objectives, and fulfill its obligations to students. 
 
A. MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATIVE CAPACITY 

1. Describe how the school is managed (including campus-based and corporate oversight) 
and how this system effectively ensures that the school meets its objectives, fulfills its 
obligations to students, and meets or exceeds accrediting standards on an ongoing basis. 

2. List all individuals responsible for full-time on-site management of the school (including 
campus-based and corporate oversight) and provide a detailed description of how each 
member of the management team is qualified for his or her particular role, including 
education, training, experience, and demonstrated ability to lead and manage a post-
secondary educational institution. 

3. What is the school’s process for ensuring that members of the management staff 
demonstrate a commitment to providing quality education to students; ethical, fair and 
honest practice; and compliance with accrediting standards and applicable federal, state, 
and local requirements? 

4. What is the process for developing, reviewing, and updating the school’s administrative 
and operational policies and procedures? Describe how the school ensures policies and 
procedures are appropriate to the school’s operations and mission. 

5. Describe the on-going development and training activities that support members of school 
management and administrative employees in their particular roles in the school. 

6. Provide a list of all management, educational, and administrative staff (including corporate 
staff as applicable) who have been employed by the school since the last accreditation 
review in the following format, organized by position.  

Position Staff 
Member’s 

Name 

FT 
/ 

PT  

Assumed 
Duties 

(month/year) 

Date 
Employment 

Ceased 
(month/year) 

Number of 
Years 

Employed 

Reason Email Address 
(current 

employees 
only)* 

        
* The Commission may survey current employees of the school prior to the on-site evaluation. 

7. What is the average tenure (expressed in years) of the current management, educational, and 
administrative staff? What impact has this level of tenure had on school operations? 
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B. INSTITUTIONAL ASSESSMENT AND IMPROVEMENT 
1. Describe the school’s process for ongoing institutional assessment and improvement 

planning. Describe how the school obtains information from internal sources, including 
staff, faculty, and students. How does the school obtain information from external sources 
such as Program Advisory Committees, employers, community representatives, and 
graduates? Explain how the process is appropriate to the size and scale of the school’s 
operations. 

2. Provide a copy of the school’s current assessment and improvement planning document 
that shows goal setting, benchmarking and implementation activities in the areas of 
management; fiscal condition and budget; administrative policies and practices; student 
support services; faculty and staff development; educational program curricula; learning 
resources system, equipment, and supporting materials; facilities; and student achievement 
outcomes.  

 
C. FINANCIAL STABILITY AND RESPONSIBILITY 

1. Describe the school’s current financial structure and explain how the school has sufficient 
resources for the proper operation of the school and discharge of obligations to students. 

2. Describe the school’s budgeting process. How does the school monitor its budgetary 
projections in relation to actual income and expenses on a regular basis throughout the 
fiscal year? 

3. How has the school allocated working capital for expenditures required to ensure the proper 
operation of the school and the discharge of the school’s obligations to students as well as 
expenditures for institutional improvement and faculty development activities? 

4. Attach a copy of the school’s current fiscal year budget with a budget-to-actual analysis as 
of one month prior to the due date of the Self-Evaluation Report. 

 
D. TUITION POLICIES 

1. Describe how the school ensures that all tuition costs and charges, tuition discounts, and 
all costs incidental to training are disclosed to prospective students before enrollment. 

2. Describe the school’s tuition policies, including the following: 

a. What is the period of enrollment for which tuition is charged (e.g., by semester, module, 
or entire program)?  

b. Does the school require payment in advance or is there a provision for payment plans? 
Does the school allow students to pay a portion of their tuition by making continuing 
payments beyond graduation? 

c. If the school offers a payment plan, are students allowed to make four or more 
payments? If so, explain how disclosures to students regarding the school’s payment 
plan are in compliance with the federal Truth in Lending Act (Regulation Z). 
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3. List the scholarships and tuition discount programs available to students and for each 
describe the funding source, eligibility criteria, the selection process, and the amounts 
awarded. 

4. Does the school reserve the right to change tuition? If so, how are students informed of the 
school’s policy in this regard and how are students informed in advance of the tuition 
changes? 

5. What are the refund policies required by state, federal, and other third parties, and how 
does the school’s refund policy comply with those requirements? Attach copies of the 
required refund policies. 

6. Provide a list of withdrawn/terminated students within the last 24 months, clearly 
indicating which students are due a refund, with the following summary information: 

Student Name 
/ ID # Program Start 

Date 
With. Or 

Term. Date 
Refund 

Due 
Amt. 
Paid 

Due 
Date 

Date 
Paid 

        

 
E. STUDENT LOAN REPAYMENT 

1. Describe the school’s efforts to promote student loan repayment of financial obligations, 
including guaranteed loans used to finance students’ education. Provide a copy of the 
school’s written comprehensive repayment plan, which addresses such areas as student 
loan information, advising and monitoring, cooperation with lenders, and collection of 
information to facilitate location of borrowers.  

2.  If applicable, attach a copy of the school’s most recent letter (or other official notice) from 
the U.S. Department of Education regarding the school’s default rates. If the most recent 
of these rates is above the U. S. Department of Education threshold, explain the 
circumstances that caused this rate and describe the initiatives to improve the rate. 

 
F. PHYSICAL FACILITIES 

1. Is the school name approved in the state(s) in which the school operates? 

2. If the school uses the term “University” in its name, please attach a copy of the approval 
for the institution to use the title of “University” by any relevant state body. 

3. Explain the requirements for fire, safety, and sanitation for all facilities owned or controlled 
for administrative, instructional, and housing purposes. Provide documentation from the 
appropriate regulatory authorities, demonstrating current compliance with the stated 
requirements.  

4. Describe the school’s physical facilities and explain how the facilities are sufficient in size 
and quality to provide an effective and suitable environment to facilitate learning. Describe 
any significant changes made to the physical facility in the last two years. 
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II – PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation)  

This section identifies various program elements that enable a school to meet its objectives and, 
thus, achieve and maintain accreditation. Such elements include appropriate program length; 
comprehensive course outlines; learning objectives; instructional materials and equipment; the 
availability, accessibility, and integration of adequate learning resource materials; and processes 
that prepare students for employment. 
 
A. GENERAL PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 

1. Program Design and Development  

a. Describe the school’s process for the design and development of appropriate education 
and training programs including a detailed description of curriculum design, 
identification of learning materials and resources, development of student learning 
outcomes and competencies and student assessment plans for which the institution has 
obtained input from appropriate internal and external resources. 

b. Describe how the school determines the need and viability of the educational program 
using external validation (e.g., local demand for training, local employment outlook, 
earning potential of graduates, other factors that might affect the continued success of 
the program, etc.) 

2. Program Organization and Length 

a. For technical and occupationally related courses, explain how the courses are directly 
related and applicable to a specific occupation or occupational cluster and provide 
education and training in the areas associated with theoretical knowledge, technical 
skills, occupationally related skills, and associated competencies necessary for a 
student to achieve the program objectives. 

b. For applied general education courses explain how the courses place an emphasis on 
practical applications of principles and theory associated with a particular occupation 
or occupational cluster and are directly applicable to a specific occupation or 
occupational cluster in areas such as related written and oral communication; 
quantitative principles; natural and physical sciences; STEM (science, technology, 
engineering, and math); social and behavioral sciences; technology; and humanities 
and fine arts.  

c. For academic general education courses explain how the courses place an emphasis on 
principles and theories not associated with a particular occupation or profession and 
are expected to develop critical thinking, problem solving and analytical skills; enable 
individuals to prepare for and advance in their professional lives; and contribute to 
lifelong learning.  

d. For academic general education courses, explain how the courses are comprised of at 
least 15 hours of didactic learning and 30 hours of out-of-class work/preparation per 
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semester credit hour or at least 10 hours of didactic learning and 20 hours of out-of-
class work/preparation per quarter credit hour. Alternatively, explain how the courses 
are comprised of an equivalent amount of in-class and out-of-class time and work and 
how the courses conform to generally accepted practices in higher education. 

e. For schools that convert clock hours to credit hours, describe the school’s policy and 
procedure for determining how credit hours are awarded in its courses and programs, 
including the process and procedures the school uses to ensure that the assignment of 
credit hours conforms to commonly accepted practice in higher education. 

f. For programs measured in credit hours, describe the institutional processes and 
procedures used to determine the average amount of time expected for out of class 
preparation. Include a descriptive narrative of how out-of-class work is assigned and 
graded and how the school ensures the consistent application of identified policies and 
procedures.  

3. Program Advisory Committees  

a. Describe the school’s process for considering Program Advisory Committee input and 
how the school documents review and implementation of input. Provide samples of 
documentation of the school’s consideration of Program Advisory Committee input. 

4. Learning Resource System 

a. Describe the extent and nature of the school’s learning resource system. 

b. Explain how the student body is adequately served and has ready access to sufficient 
and appropriate resource materials within the learning resource system.  

c. Describe the budgetary allocations for the learning resource system and how the 
allocations provide an appropriate level of support to the educational resources and 
programs of study.  

d. Describe the qualifications of the individual/s assigned to manage and oversee the 
learning resource system. If the school offers a baccalaureate degree or higher, 
document that the learning resource system is coordinated by an individual holding a 
Master of Library Science credential or equivalent education and experience.  

e. How do qualified school personnel orient, train, and assist students and faculty in the 
use of the learning resource system? 

5. Externships 

a. Describe how school personnel train and orient the on-site supervisor at the externship 
site on the externship processes and criteria. Also, describe how this ensures 
appropriate and fair measurement of demonstrated competency and skill attainment. 

b. If an externship is greater than one-third of the total length of the program, provide 
documentation that it has been reviewed and approved by the Commission. 

6. Consortium, Partnership, or Contractual Arrangements 
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a. Has the school entered into any consortium, partnership, or contractual arrangements 
with another entity to offer a portion of its training program? If so, describe in detail 
these arrangements to include the accredited status of the school’s partner in this 
endeavor as well as any approvals received by the Commission. 

b. What percent of the total required curriculum must be completed at the school in order 
for a student to be awarded a completion credential? 

7. Independent Study  

a. If the school offers independent study options, how has the school determined that 
independent study is relevant and appropriate to program objectives? 

b. What are the educational objectives and written outlines of the competencies to be 
achieved through independent study? What is the school’s credit award rationale for 
independent study? 

c. What elements are used to measure achieved student competency relative to the 
required subject matter objectives (e.g., the required readings, research, examinations, 
reports, research papers, portfolios, or similar assignments)? 

d. What is the maximum percent of the curriculum that students may take for credit via 
independent study? 

8. Transfer of Credit  

a. Does the school accept transfer credit for coursework completed in other post-
secondary institutions? If so, describe the school’s transfer of credit policy for 
determining whether these courses are comparable in scope and content to the school’s 
own coursework. If no, describe the school’s reasons for declining to accept credit in 
transfer. 

b. Describe the school’s process for the evaluation and acceptance of transfer credits. 
What percentage of credits for a non-degree and undergraduate degree may be 
transferred?  

c. What is the school’s process for maintaining documentation of the transfer of credit 
evaluation process? 

 
B. NON-DEGREE PROGRAMS 

1. Explain how each non-degree program is designed and offered in a way that appropriately 
balances distinct methods of education and training and includes a comprehensive 
curriculum with appropriate coursework to achieve the program objectives. 

2. Explain how each program is comprised of at least 80% technical and occupationally 
related courses. Explain how the remaining courses are appropriate and necessary to 
achieve the program objectives.  

 
C. DEGREE PROGRAMS  

1. General Requirements  
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a. Program Structure and Development 

i. Explain how each degree program is comprised of courses that are appropriate to 
the academic level and type of degree offered. 

ii. Explain how the course numbering system differentiates between lower level 
courses required at the associate degree level; upper level courses required at the 
baccalaureate degree level; and graduate level courses at the master’s degree level. 

2. Associate’s Degrees 

a. Explain how the each associate degree program is designed and offered in a way that 
appropriately balances distinct types of education and training and includes a 
comprehensive curriculum with appropriate coursework to achieve the program 
objectives. 

b. For each occupational associate degree program, confirm that each program includes 
the following: 

 A minimum of 60 semester hours or 90 quarter hours including: 

o A minimum of 9 semester hours or 13.5 quarter hours in academic general 
education courses or applied general education courses 

o An occupational associate degree program must include a minimum of 45 
semester hours or 67.5 quarter hours in technical and occupationally related 
courses that are directly associated with the field for which the degree is offered.  

If any occupational associate degree program does not include the items listed above, 
provide an explanation. 

c. For each academic degree program, confirm that each program includes the following: 

 A minimum of 60 semester hours or 90 quarter hours including: 

o A minimum of 15 semester hours or 22.5 quarter hours in academic general 
education courses. 

o a minimum of 30 semester hours or 45 quarter hours in the technical field for 
which the degree is awarded 

If any academic associate degree program does not include the items listed above, 
provide an explanation. 

d. Does any associate degree program exceed by more than 50% the minimum number of 
credit hours required to confer the degree by the appropriate regulatory agency in the 
state(s) in which the school operates or in absence of such minimums, explain how the 
degree compares to generally accepted practices in higher education. 

e. If the school offers an occupational associate degree program, describe how the title of 
the degree program, the name of the degree, the credential issued, the program 
description in the school’s catalog, and all advertising, promotional materials and 
literature make clear that the degree is occupational, not academic. 
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f. If the school offers an academic associate degree program, describe how the degree 
program includes academic general education courses in written and oral 
communication and quantitative principles. Document that the remainder of the 
required academic general education courses provides an appropriate balance of natural 
and physical sciences; social and behavioral sciences; and humanities and fine arts, 
which are designed to develop essential academic skills for enhanced and continued 
learning. 

3. Baccalaureate Degrees 

a. Describe how the school’s baccalaureate degree program(s) are designed in a way that 
appropriately balances distinct types of education and training (i.e., technical and 
occupationally related courses and academic general education courses), including 
distinct levels of education and training (i.e., lower level and upper level courses). 

b. Illustrate how baccalaureate degree program(s) include a comprehensive curriculum 
with appropriate coursework to achieve the program objectives.  

c. For each baccalaureate program that is not a completion program, confirm that each 
program includes the following: 

 A minimum of 120 semester hours or 180 quarter hours including: 

o A minimum of 30 semester hours or 45 quarter hours in academic general 
education courses. 

o a minimum of 60 semester hours or 90 quarter hours in the technical field for 
which the degree is awarded 

If any baccalaureate degree program that is not a completion program does not include 
the items listed above, provide an explanation. 

d. Does any baccalaureate degree program that is not a completion program exceed by 
more than 50% the minimum number of credit hours required to confer the degree by 
the appropriate regulatory agency in the state(s) in which the school operates or in 
absence of such minimums, explain how the degree compares to generally accepted 
practices in higher education. 

e. If the school offers baccalaureate degrees with concentrations: 

i. Describe how the concentration provides a focused area of training beyond the 
generalist level that is appropriate for industry needs and standards. 

ii. Confirm that for each program, the concentrations consist of 18-24 semester credit 
hours (27-36 quarter credit hours) of occupationally specialized course work of 
which, at a minimum, nine semester credit hours (13.5 quarter credit hours) 
represent upper level coursework. If not, provide an explanation. 

f. If the school offers a baccalaureate degree completion program, 

i. Explain how the school ensures that each student has earned an associate, or higher 
level, degree from an accredited postsecondary education institution that is related 
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to the educational program objectives of the baccalaureate degree completion 
program and that the school considers appropriate to prepare students for 
matriculation into the upper level courses. 

ii. Describe how all advertising of this type of degree program makes it clear that it is 
a baccalaureate degree completion program. 

4. Master’s Degrees 

a. Program Structure 

i. Describe how the institution places emphasis on graduate-level course work, 
including research and analytical skills, and independent and critical thinking skills. 
Explain how the master’s degree contributes to the field of study and how graduates 
are able to acquire the necessary competencies and skills for employment in the 
field of study. 

ii. Explain how the length of the master’s degree program is appropriate to enable 
students to achieve the required competencies and skills for employment or 
advancement in the field for which training is provided. 

iii. Verify that the master’s degree program curriculum includes an applied, integrated, 
or culminating experience required for program completion (e.g., capstone 
experience, comprehensive examination, research project, or thesis). 

b. Program Review 

i. Explain how the Master’s Degree Program Advisory Committee performs all 
requirements set forth in Section II (A)(5)(c) of the Substantive Standards, 
Standards of Accreditation.  

ii. Explain how graduate faculty and other appropriate school personnel participate in 
the development, ongoing review, and improvement of graduate level curriculum.  

c. For each master’s program, confirm that each program includes the following: 

 A minimum of 30 semester hours or 45 quarter hours including: 

o A minimum of 30 semester hours or 45 quarter hours in academic general 
education courses. 

o a minimum of 24 semester hours or 36 quarter hours in the technical field for 
which the degree is awarded 

 
If any master’s program does not include the items listed above, provide an explanation. 

 If the school offers master’s degrees with concentrations,  

i. Describe how the concentration provides a focused area of training beyond the 
generalist level that is appropriate for industry needs and standards. 
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ii. Confirm that for each program, the concentrations consist of 6-12 semester credit 
hours (9-15 quarter credit hours) of occupationally specialized course work. If not, 
provide an explanation. 

 
D. SECONDARY EDUCATIONAL OBJECTIVES 

1. Continuing Education Courses and Avocational Courses1 

a. Does the school offer any continuing education course or avocational course? If so, 
please list such courses noting any course that the school has applied for and received 
Commission approval for inclusion in the school’s scope of institutional accreditation. 

b. Provide a copy of all advertising for continuing education courses and avocational 
courses.  

c. How does the school ensure that an approved continuing education course or 
avocational course is offered in a manner that delivers the education as promised to 
students, is of a quality nature consistent with the expectations for an ACCSC approved 
vocational program, and is included in the school’s institutional improvement planning 
activities? 

d. How does the school make its complaint process and procedure available to students 
enrolled in a continuing education course or avocational course?   

e. What is the school’s record retention policy for students enrolled in continuing 
education courses and avocational courses? 

f. What is the number of students currently enrolled in continuing education courses and 
avocational courses offered by the school? What is the percentage of the school’s total 
student population enrolled in continuing education courses and avocational courses, 
and have continuing education courses and avocational courses remained a secondary 
objective of the school? 

2. English as a Second Language 

a. Provide a detailed description of each English-as-a-Second-Language (ESL) course of 
study offered by the school and indicate whether the program is a front-loaded or 
integrated. 

b. Describe the objective of each ESL course of study offered by the school. 

c. Describe how each student enrolled in an ESL course of study is tested prior to and at 
the conclusion of the program. Indicate what nationally recognized test is used, and 
attach copies of all testing materials. 

                                                           
1 The requirements set forth in Section II (C)(1), Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation apply only to 
those courses approved by the Commission for inclusion in the school’s scope of institutional accreditation. If the 
school offers a continuing education or avocational course that is not approved as such, the requirements of this section 
are not applicable.  
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d. What is the number of students currently enrolled in an ESL course of study offered by 
the school? What is the percentage of the school’s total student population enrolled in 
ESL courses, and has ESL remained a secondary objective of the school? 
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III – EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATION AND FACULTY QUALIFICATIONS 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation)  
 
The success of a school is directly related to the quality of its faculty. This section addresses the 
requirements a school must meet in regard to its faculty. The purpose of this section is to require 
schools to retain a strong and experienced faculty that is continually attentive to the needs of the 
students, interested in strengthening the curricula, and obligated to continued self-improvement. 
A school must ensure that its faculty members are appropriate, suitable, and sufficient in number 
for the instructional programs offered by the school. By hiring and retaining qualified faculty, a 
school is able to strengthen the quality of its training program. 
 
A. EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATION 

1. List the individuals responsible for management (include campus-based and corporate 
staff) of the school’s programs and identify the individual responsible for on-site 
administration. Provide a detailed description of how that individual is qualified for the 
role, including the appropriate educational background, educational administration 
experience, and competence necessary to lead and manage the school’s instructional 
program(s) and overall educational experience in such areas as curriculum development; 
educational effectiveness assessment and improvement; and faculty development and 
performance appraisals. 

2. List the on-site program head at the school (e.g., lead faculty, department chair, dean) for 
each distinct occupational area that leads to an occupational or academic degree. Provide 
a detailed description of how each program head possesses an educational background 
equal to or exceeding the maximum credential offered in that program area, the requisite 
qualifications for technical faculty teaching in a degree program, and an ability to 
administer the occupational components of the program. 

3. Explain how the school’s graduate level education is supervised and coordinated by an 
individual with an earned doctorate degree. Also explain how this individual, as the director 
of graduate level education, has the experience and competence to manage the instructional 
program. 

4. Explain how each master’s degree program is appropriately managed by an individual with 
a minimum of a graduate degree in the same field for which training is provided. 

5. Describe the school’s process for ongoing faculty assessment. How are faculty members 
evaluated and how does the school address deficiencies in faculty performance identified 
through this process? 

6. Describe the school’s plan for ongoing professional development activities for the faculty 
and educational administrators that: are appropriate to the size and scope of the school’s 
educational programs; support the quality of education provided; and enhance student 
learning and achievement. These professional development activities should include 
elements such as continuing education in the subject area(s) taught; teaching skill 
development; instructional methodology development; membership in trade and 
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professional organizations as appropriate; and other elements appropriate for the ongoing 
professional development of faculty. Describe an improvement that has occurred as a result 
of the school’s plan for faculty professional development. 

7. Provide a list of all faculty members who have been employed by the school since the last 
accreditation review in the following format, organized by position.  

Position Faculty 
Name 

FT 
/ 

PT  

Assumed 
Duties 

(month/year) 

Date 
Employment 

Ceased 
(month/year) 

Number of 
Years 

Employed 

Reason Email 
Address 
(current 
faculty 
only)* 

        
*The Commission may survey the school’s current faculty members prior to the on-site evaluation. 

8. What is the average tenure (expressed in years) of the current faculty members? What 
impact has this level of tenure has had on educational delivery? 

9. Describe the school’s process for verifying prior work experience of its faculty and 
educational administrators – where necessary to demonstrate compliance with accrediting 
standards - through securing written or verbal verification from previous employers. 

10. Describe the school’s process for securing academic transcripts of academic credentials 
for faculty and educational administrators - where necessary to demonstrate compliance 
with accrediting standards.  

 
B. FACULTY QUALIFICATIONS 

1. Describe how the school’s faculty is sufficient in number to serve the student enrollment 
and how the instructional staff maintains a satisfactory working relationship with students 
(i.e., including sufficient time to advise students, grade papers, stay current with the field 
of training, and fulfill the required contact hours of teaching). 

2. Explain how the school determines that all faculty members have appropriate training in 
instructional methods and teaching skills, are able to teach in a manner that permits 
announced educational objectives to be achieved, and are able to demonstrate a command 
of theory and practice, contemporary knowledge, and continuing study in their particular 
field. Does the school have a training program to provide training in instructional methods 
and teaching skills? If so, describe the program curriculum and explain how the 
effectiveness of this training program is determined and documented. 
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IV – STUDENT RECRUITMENT, ADVERTISING, AND DISCLOSURES 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation) 
 
The purpose of this section is to require schools to describe themselves to prospective students 
fully and accurately and to follow practices that permit prospective students to make informed and 
considered enrollment decisions without undue pressure. The school’s recruitment efforts must 
attract students who are qualified and likely to complete and benefit from the education and 
training provided by the school and not simply to obtain enrollments. Recruitment means engaging 
in activities or using promotional materials or presentations to attract and enroll students. These 
standards apply to school personnel primarily involved in any way in those activities. 
 
A. RECRUITMENT 

1. Describe the nature and extent of the school’s recruitment efforts (as distinct from 
admissions practices) including the geographical recruitment area, potential areas for 
improvement, and the forms used for advertising and promotion.  

2. How do the school’s efforts focus on attracting qualified students rather than simply 
obtaining enrollments? How is the process designed to describe the school fully and 
accurately to prospective students? How is the process designed to provide an opportunity 
for applicants to make a considered enrollment decision without undue pressure? 

3. What are the applicable federal and state laws pertaining to student recruitment and how 
does the school ensure compliance with those requirements?  

4. Provide the names, job titles, and position descriptions for all individuals who are engaged 
in recruitment activities for the school (i.e., representatives, recruiters, surveyors, 
international third-party, agents, etc.). 

5. Describe how the school selects and trains recruiting and admissions personnel; include a 
position description and sample of training documents.  

6. Attach a copy of the school’s code of conduct for all school personnel whose primary 
responsibilities are to engage in recruiting and admissions functions prior to and during admission 
and matriculation. 

7. How does the school supervise, monitor, and evaluate the performance of recruiting and 
admissions personnel to ensure that only ethical practices are used? Describe the method 
of compensation for all recruitment and admissions personnel by title, explaining the 
contractual relationship, if any, of each with the school. Attach a sample performance 
evaluation. 

8. What are the school’s oversight mechanisms to ensure ethical practices and procedures in the 
recruitment of students? What is the school’s process for ongoing review and evaluation of its 
recruiting policies and procedures? 

 
B. ADVERTISING, PROMOTION, STATEMENTS, AND CLAIMS 
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1. What process does the school use to develop and post advertising and other promotional 
materials or activities? Who approves advertisements and promotional materials? 

2. Describe how the school ensures that all advertising, promotional materials, statements, 
and claims are truthful and accurate? How does the school document the accuracy of 
statements made in advertising? 

3. What measures does the school use to ensure that Help Wanted Classifieds are not used in 
advertising the school’s educational programs? 

4. If the school’s advertising includes endorsements (testimonials), what is the school’s 
process for obtaining and maintaining documentation of the written consent of the authors? 
What is the school’s process for reviewing endorsements used in advertising to ensure that 
it is factual and a portrayal of current conditions or facts? 

5. Describe how does the school determines any potential salary information provided by the 
school’s personnel or advertising accurately portrays the normal range and starting salary 
in the occupation. 

6. If the school is currently accredited, how does the school advertise its accredited status and 
what terminology is used? 

 
C. DISCLOSURES 

1. Explain the school’s process for developing the catalog and enrollment agreement and 
ensuring that these documents contain all required disclosures and accurately represent the 
school. 

2. Explain how the school ensures that each applicant is provided with a current and complete 
catalog prior to signing the enrollment agreement. 

3. Explain how the school ensures that an enrollment agreement is executed for all enrolled 
students. When is the enrollment agreement signed by the student and when is it signed by 
the accepting school official? When does the school provide a copy of the enrollment 
agreement to the student? 

4. Describe the school’s process for ensuring that each applicant is fully informed of the 
rights, responsibilities, and obligations of both the school and the student under the 
enrollment agreement before it is signed? 

5. What is the school’s method for disclosure of the graduation and graduate employment rate 
for each program as last reported to the Commission; how does the method ensure that 
each graduation and graduate employment rate is accurate, not intended to mislead, and 
includes the school’s program population base and time frame upon which each rate is 
based? 

6. List any required accreditation (institutional or programmatic) and/or approval by a third-
party regulatory agency (e.g., state agency, licensing agency, oversight board, national 
certification entity, etc.), for the purpose of licensure, certification, or employment. What 
is the school’s method for disclosing to students whether such accreditation and/or third-
party recognition has been achieved and is in good standing? 
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V – ADMISSION POLICIES AND PRACTICES 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation) 
 
The purpose of this section is to ensure that schools only admit those students who are capable of 
successfully completing the training offered. Admission decisions should be based on fair, 
effective, and consistently applied criteria that enable the school to make an informed judgment as 
to an applicant’s ability to achieve the program’s objectives. 
 
A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Describe the school’s admission policies and admission practices (as distinct from 
recruitment practices). How are the admissions criteria designed to admit only those 
students who are reasonably capable of successfully completing and benefitting from the 
training offered? 

2. Describe the admission process, including where and when enrollment occurs and how the 
school determines with reasonable certainty that each person who enrolls is fully informed 
about the nature of training provided. 

3. What are the measures the school has in place to ensure the consistent and fair application 
of the admissions requirements? 

4. List each admissions requirement and the documentation secured by the school to show 
that all students meet the school’s admissions requirements prior to matriculation. What is 
the school’s process for maintaining admissions documentation? How does the school 
document that applicants rejected did not meet admissions requirements? 

5. What is the school’s process to ensure that documentation for students from foreign 
countries is translated? How does the school ensure that the document is certified to be at 
least the equivalent of a U.S. high school diploma? 

6. What is the school’s policy for the rare instances when students may not be able to provide 
documentation of a high school diploma required by a school’s admissions criteria due to 
issues beyond their control (e.g., loss of records due to fire or flood, inability to obtain 
records, home schooled students, etc.)?  

7. Describe the school’s process to ensure that school neither denies admission nor 
discriminates against students enrolled at the school on the basis of race, religion, color, 
gender, sexual orientation, genetic information, age, disability, or national origin. Has the 
school provided reasonably accommodation to applicants and students with disabilities to 
the extent required by applicable law? 

8. Describe any improvements in the school’s admission policies and practices implemented 
or identified for implementation in the near future.  

 
B. NON-DEGREE PROGRAMS  
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1. If the school admits ability-to-benefit (“ATB”) students (i.e., students admitted without a 
high school graduation or the equivalent), address the following: 

a. What tests are used to determine the applicant’s ability to benefit from the training 
offered, prior to matriculation?  

b. If the school uses tests that are not on the U.S. Department of Education list of approved 
tests, attach an evaluation and provide a rationale for selecting these tests and the 
credentials of the independent third party that made this determination. 

c. Describe the school’s process for ATB testing and identify individuals responsible for 
proctoring and scoring the test. 

2. Complete the chart below and indicate, by program, how many of the students currently 
enrolled were admitted on the ATB basis. 

Program Title Total Students ATB Population Percentage of Total 
ATB Students 

    

3. How does the school determine the effectiveness of its admission requirements related to 
ability-to-benefit students? What periodic studies have been conducted for this purpose and 
what have been the results of those studies? 

 
C. DEGREE PROGRAMS – UNDERGRADUATE  

Describe the process which ensures that each student admitted into a degree program has a 
high school diploma or a recognized equivalency certificate before the student starts class. 

 
D. DEGREE PROGRAMS – GRADUATE  

1. How does the school ensure that all students admitted into a master’s degree program meet 
admissions criteria, including possession of an earned baccalaureate degree from an 
institution of higher education that is accredited by an accreditation agency that is 
recognized by the U.S. Department of Education or other similar recognition? 

2. If the school requires standardized or national examinations or other entrance tests for 
admission into its graduate level programs or courses, how does the school disclose the 
type and nature of examination and the acceptable score and/or range of scores applicants 
must receive to be admitted?  

 
E. ESL COURSES  

1. How does the school ensure that students enrolled in ESL courses meet all other admission 
requirements applicable to students enrolled in the school’s career or occupational 
programs 

2. How does the school ensure that adequate translation resources must be available to assist 
students in their comprehension of the process and all program requirements? 

3. List admission requirements for all students entering ESL courses offered by the school. 



ACCSC SELF-EVALUATION REPORT  
INITIAL ACCREDITATION 

Page 22 of 40 SER – Section V Revised July 1, 2019 

4. How does the school determine (and document) that, with appropriate teaching, the 
students enrolled in front-loaded and integrated ESL courses can qualify for specialized 
training or continue their occupational education?  

5. List the faculty teaching ESL courses and demonstrate that they have appropriate 
experience and educational background including state or equivalent credentials in 
Teaching of English to Speakers of Other Languages (TESOL). 

Instructor 
Name 

ESL 
Experience 

ESL 
Educational 
Background 

State or Equivalent Credentials in 
Teaching of English to Speaker of 

Other Languages (TESOL) 
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VI – STUDENT SERVICES 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation) 
 
The purpose of this section is to ensure that schools remain attentive to their students’ educational 
and other needs. This section requires that schools meet minimum requirements in regard to 
advising, record maintenance, graduate employment assistance, and procedures for handling 
student complaints.  
 
A. ADVISING AND COUNSELING 

1. Provide the schools written policies and procedures addressing student services. 

2. Describe how the school is attentive to its students’ educational and other needs. How does 
the student services program support retention, maintains written policies and procedures 
addressing student services, and makes students aware of such services. 

3. Describe how the school maintains adequate student services and resources that support its 
students in maintaining satisfactory progress, achieving successful educational and student 
achievement outcomes (i.e., knowledge and skill attainment, retention, graduation, and 
employment), and making informed decisions concerning training and employment.  

4. What is the size and mix of the school’s student body and how is the school’s student 
services program designed to be responsive to the needs of its students? Describe how these 
services enhance the students’ ability to succeed. 

5. Who coordinates the student services program? Demonstrate this individual has the 
appropriate professional and educational qualifications. 

6. Describe how the school provides the following services: relevant coping skills (e.g., life, 
career development, budget, and personal financial planning skills); general development 
appropriate to higher education students; student retention strategies suited to the school’s 
programs; academic advising; testing and tutoring services; supervision and monitoring of 
attendance records and leaves of absence; graduate employment assistance; and 
information concerning housing, transportation, and child care. If other student services 
are available, describe those services as well. 

7. Describe how the school has counseling services available to students when warranted and 
necessary based on the student population and circumstances. If the school employs 
counselors, describe the qualifications of the individuals who provide counseling services. 
If the school contracts or refers students to an individual counselor or counseling service, 
describe the school’s relationship with the provider and terms of that agreement. 

8. Complete the following chart to show the respective student services available to students 
including the designated school personnel responsible for these areas (mark all that apply): 
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9. Describe the school’s process for maintaining comprehensive documentation of student 
advising. 

10. Describe the school’s process to continually monitor and address students’ needs for 
services as a means to assist students achieve successful educational and student 
achievement outcomes. 

 
B. STUDENT RECORDS 

1. Describe the school’s process for maintaining an educational record for all currently enrolled 
students that consists of all admissions; transcript (see #2 below) and academic progress 
reports; records related to tuition and fee payments, refunds, and financial aid; and 
information upon which a student’s initial and continued enrollment is based for a minimum 
of five years post the student’s graduation, withdrawal, or termination date. 

2. Describe how permanent official transcripts for all current and formerly enrolled students are 
securely maintained indefinitely. Provide a copy of the school’s official transcript for a recent 
graduate (name may be redacted) (Note: The transcript must include the student’s name and 
unique identifier; the name and address of the school; the program of study; the name and 
date/term of courses taken; the clock or credit hours and grades earned for each course; any 
credits accepted for transfer; the cumulative grade point average; the date of program entry; 
and the date of graduation, termination or withdrawal.) 

3. What is the school’s process for making transcripts available to students upon request and 
in accordance with the school’s policies? 

4. Describe the school’s process for securely maintaining and protecting records (physical or 
electronic) against damage or loss (e.g., fire, water, theft, tampering, etc.). 

5. Describe how the school maintains student records in in accordance with state or federal 
regulation or law, if these require additional information or longer retention periods than 
previously described. 

 
C. GRADUATE EMPLOYMENT ASSISTANCE AND RECORDS 

1. Describe the extent and nature of employment assistance made available to students. 
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2. Describe the school’s process for classifying graduates as employed in field in accordance 
with the Guidelines for Employment Classification outlined in Appendix VII of the 
Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation, including: 

 How does the school determine that the graduate’s employment is appropriate and 
reasonable based on the educational objectives of the program? 

 How does the school determine that the employment is for a reasonable period of time, 
is based on program objectives, and can be considered sustainable? 

 How does the school determine that the employment is directly related to the program 
from which the individual graduated, aligns with a majority of the educational and 
training objectives of the program, and is a paid position? 

3. Describe how the school verifies each employment classification and maintains verifiable 
records, including: 

a. Regular Employment:  

 How does the school secure written documentation from the employer or graduate 
verifying the employment and that the employment is related to the student’s 
program of study at the school? Provide a sample employment record 
demonstrating that the requisite elements are included in the school’s records. 

 In cases where the school cannot obtain written documentation from the employer 
or graduate, describe how the school shows that diligent efforts have been made to 
secure such written documentation, and how the school’s employment verification 
records include a) the graduate’s and employer’s name and contact information, b) 
a signature of school staff attesting to verbal employment verification with both the 
employer and the graduate, and c) the date(s) of verification. Provide a sample 
employment record demonstrating that the requisite elements are included in the 
school’s records. 

b. Self-Employment - How does the school secure written documentation from the self-
employed graduate verifying that the employment is valid including, at a minimum, a 
statement signed by the graduate which includes the following:  

 The graduate’s name and contact information; 

 An attestation that the self-employment is aligned with the individual’s 
employment goals, is vocational, and is based on and related to the education and 
training received;  

 An attestation that the graduate is earning training-related income; and  

 In cases where licensure is required for employment, an attestation that such 
licensure has been achieved.  

Provide a sample employment record demonstrating that the requisite elements are 
included in the school’s records. 

c. Career Advancement - How does the school secure written documentation from the 
employer or the graduate confirming that the training allowed the graduate to maintain 
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the employment position due to the training provided by the school or that the training 
supported the graduate’s ability to be eligible or qualified for advancement due to the 
training provided by the school. Provide a sample employment record demonstrating 
that the requisite elements are included in the school’s records. 

4. If public notices (e.g., of graduate employment rates) are used, explain how they are used 
by the school, and verify through attached copies of the notices that they indicate the 
school’s graduation population base and time frame upon which those (graduation and/or 
employment rates, rather than “figures”) are based. (Note:  For example, if a school 
advertises an 80% employment rate, this would need to be accompanied by information 
such as: of 100 graduates in 2011, 80 gained employment in their field of study). 

 
D. STUDENT COMPLAINTS 

1. Describe the school’s complaint process and procedures and how students are informed of 
these procedures. 

2. Explain how the school’s student complaint procedure has been effective during the last 
two years. If applicable, describe how it has been updated in that timeframe. 

3. Provide a summary of student complaints over the last two years that were submitted 
through the school’s student complaint policy, using the following chart: 

Complainant’s Name Complaint Action Taken by the 
School 

Status 
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VII – STUDENT LEARNING, ASSESSMENT, PROGRESS, AND ACHIEVEMENT 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation)  
 
A school must establish processes, policies, and procedures in the areas of student assessment and 
achievement and demonstrate that a high proportion of its students attend class, successfully 
progress through and complete their program of study, and obtain employment in the field for 
which trained. A school must establish and consistently apply criteria that provide an objective 
evaluation of the student’s learning and progress toward attaining the program’s specific 
educational objectives. Assessment of a school’s performance in these areas requires a broad 
consideration of all circumstances that affect student learning, satisfactory progress, and student 
achievement. 
 
A. STUDENT LEARNING, ASSESSMENT, AND SATISFACTORY PROGRESS 

1. Describe the school’s process for assessing and evaluating the defined student learning 
outcomes for each program (this process may include a variety and combination of methods 
such as grading, portfolio assessment, and criterion referenced testing).  

2. What are the criteria to assess a student’s academic progress through the program? Describe 
how student assessment approaches are documented and included as part of the 
institutional assessment and improvement planning process.  

3. Describe the school’s satisfactory academic progress policy. How is the policy appropriate 
and effective to attain the objectives of each program?  

4. Describe how the school’s attendance policy promotes sufficient levels of student 
attendance such that the required knowledge, skills, and competencies can be achieved. 

 
B. STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 

1. Provide a completed Graduation and Employment Chart(s) for each of the school’s 
programs and each individual program length along with summary information for each 
Graduation and Employment Chart organized according to the corresponding cohort start 
date reported on the chart (line #1) as follows: 

i. For each student start, provide the following information: 

Count Student ID Program Start Date Graduation Date Withdrawal/ 
Termination Date 

1 123456 Automotive Technology 01/10/2017 01/10/2018 N/A 
2 123457 Automotive Technology 01/10/2017 N/A 01/06/2017 

ii. For each student classified as “Unavailable for Graduation” (line #6), provide the 
following information:  

Count Student ID Program Start 
Date 

Reason 
Unavailable Description of the Documentation on File 
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iii. For each graduate classified as employed in the field2 (line #14), provide the following 
information: 

Count Graduate 
ID Program Start Date 

Employer, 
Contact, 

Address, & 
Ph. # 

Date of 
Initial 

Employ. 

Descriptive Job 
Title and 

Responsibilities 

Source of 
Verification3  

(i.e., graduate or 
employer) 

        

iv. From the list in (iii) above, for each graduate classified as employed in a training related 
field, that is “self-employed,” provide the following: 

Count Graduate ID Program Start 
Date Description of the Documentation on File 

     

v. From the list in (iv.) above, for each graduate classified as employed in a training 
related field, that is “Career Advancement,” provide the following: 

Count Graduate ID Program Start 
Date Description of the Documentation on File 

     

vi. For each graduate classified as “Graduates-Further Education” (line #11) or 
“Graduates-Unavailable for Employment” (line #12), provide the following 
information: 

Count Graduate ID Program Start Date Classification on 
the G&E Chart Reason 

Description of the 
Documentation 

on File 
       

2. Complete the following summary chart of student achievement outcomes for each program 
or program length offered using the data submitted above: 

Program Title Length in Months Graduate Rate Employment Rate 
    

3. List each program for which certification or licensure is required in order for graduates to 
be eligible for employment in the field for which training was provided.  

Program Title Length in Months Exam Title Student Pass Rate 
    

4. Describe the certification or licensure requirements (including who administers the 
certification/licensing examinations, how often tests are given, etc.) for each program listed 
above.  

5. What follow-up program is used by the school after the graduates are placed in jobs? 
Describe how this program helps to verify acceptance of the graduates in the field of 
preparation. 

 

                                                           
2 See Appendix VII – Guidelines for Employment Classification, Standards of Accreditation. 
3 Appendix VII (4) – Guidelines for Employment Classification, Standards of Accreditation requires the school to verify the 
employment classification. 
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C. RESULTS OF THIRD-PARTY VERIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT DATA  

 The school must engage an independent third-party to verify the employment data in the 
Graduation and Employment (“G&E”) Chart(s) submitted in Section VII (B)(1) above. 
(The most recently submitted Annual Report at the time of the due date of the SER.)  

 The independent third-party must select minimally a 50% sample of employed graduates 
(classified as “Graduates - Employed in the Field”) on line 14 of each G&E Chart and 
report the results from that sample. Once the 50% sample has been selected by the 
independent third-party, for the purposes of this application, the independent third-party 
may not alter the sample in an effort to get better results.  

Please note: If an institution wishes to present an updated G&E Chart or a G&E Chart using 
a more recent Report Date than that which was submitted in the school’s Annual Report, 
the updated G&E Chart must be verified using the same methodology and reported on 
separately in order to be considered by the Commission in making an accreditation 
decision.  

 The independent third-party must verify employment records from the employer or 
graduate either verbally or in writing. 

 The independent third-party must verify the employment data in a manner independent 
from the school. The independent third-party must conduct the verifications without 
assistance from the school, with the exception of the school’s provision of records to be 
verified.  

 The school must provide the full report from the independent third party verification of 
employment data to the ACCSC on-site evaluation team, as directed by Appendix B. 

The school must provide the following as part of this Self-Evaluation Report: 
1. Documentation demonstrating that the third-party procured by the school for this project 

meets the Commission’s tests to be considered an “Independent” Third-Party per ACCSC’s 
Guidelines for Independent Third-Party Employment Verification as follows: 

a. A signed attestation from the independent third-party to include: 

 The independent third-party is not affiliated with the school or share any part 
ownership in the school or its affiliated schools. 

 The independent third-party does not provide any other services to the school. 

 The independent third-party will only report accurate findings through work 
conducted in an independent manner. 

 The independent third-party understands and applied the classifications defined in 
item #2 below exactly as stated.  

b. A description of the methodology that the verification agency used for the selection of 
the 50% sample. 
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c. A description of the methodology that the verification agency used for the verification 
process. 

2.  A summary of results for each G&E Chart that includes the following (at a minimum):  

a. The total number of students in the sample;  

b. The number of students in each of the categories below and the percentage in each 
category as defined below: 

Verified as Correct – A record is classified “verified as correct” when the independent 
third party finds: 

 The same employer as listed in the school’s record; 

 The start date listed in the school’s record is within 45 days of the verified start 
date; 

 The verified job title is substantively the same as that listed in the school’s record, 
using the following illustrative guidelines (examples from an Automotive 
Technology program): 

- Exact Match - The school employment record matches exactly the verified job 
title e.g., “Mechanic”;  

- Obvious Match - The school employment record states “Mechanic” and the 
verified job title of, “Auto Mechanic” is an obvious match; or  

 Confirmed Match - The school employment record states “Mechanic” but the 
verified job title is “Technician II” and the employer or graduate confirm that 
the job responsibilities are substantively the same. 

Verified but Different – A record is classified “verified but different” when the 
independent third party finds: 

 A start date that is more than 45 days different from the start date in the school’s 
employment record; or 

 A substantively different job title from that in the school’s employment record (i.e., 
any job title that is verified to be different from the school’s employment record 
and is not an obvious match or confirmed match as described above) 

Unable to Verify – A record is classified “unable to verify” when the independent third 
party is unable to obtain verification of the school’s employment record from either the 
employer or the graduate; and 

Verified as Not Correct – A record is classified “verify as not correct” when the 
independent third party finds any of the following: 

 The graduate is not found in employer’s records; 

 The graduate’s initial employer is different than the employer listed in the school’s 
employment record; 
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 The graduate denies having worked in the position as stated in the school’s 
employment record; 

 The position listed in the school’s employment record is unpaid or an 
intern/externship; and 

 Other discrepancies that render the school’s employment record as incorrect. 

c. The following chart completed for each program: 

Independent Third Party Initial Employment Verification  
Reported Program Rates 

Annual Report Year Program Title (Credential) Length of Program 
(Months) 

   

Total number of students 
sampled 

Total number of available 
students to sample* Sample size percentage 

   

Verified as Correct Verified but Different Unable to Verify Verified as Not Correct 

    

* Students classified as Graduates - Employed in Field in program 
 

Placements Verified by a Different Independent Third-Party* 
Company Name Number of Graduates Verified 

  

* Graduates that were unable to be verified by the school’s chosen vendor but were verified by a different third-
party company like “The Work Number.” 

 
3. The following chart completed with the aggregate institutional results across all programs: 

Independent Third Party Initial Employment Verification  
Reported Institutional Rates 

Annual Report Year Name of Third Party Company 

  

Total number of students 
sampled 

Total number of available 
students to sample* Sample size percentage 

   

Verified as Correct Verified but Different Unable to Verify Verified as Not Correct 

    

* Students classified as Graduates - Employed in Field across all programs for Annual Report year 
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Placements Verified by a Different Independent Third-Party* 
Company Name Number of Graduates Verified 

  

* Graduates that were unable to be verified by the school’s chosen vendor but were verified by a different third-
party company like “The Work Number.” 

 
4. An attestation from the third party vender regarding the following disclosures/past records 

of integrity: 
 

DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO THIRD-PARTY VENDOR: 
SELECT ONE 

() 
YES NO 

1. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with 
any school which has lost or been denied accreditation by any accrediting agency? If 
the answer is YES, please attach a statement which details the facts and 
circumstances surrounding that school’s loss or denial of accreditation. 

  

2. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with 
any school that has closed or entered into bankruptcy? If the answer is YES, please 
attach a statement which details the facts and circumstances surrounding that 
school’s closure, bankruptcy or both as applicable. 

  

3. 

Has any owner or manager been directly or indirectly employed or affiliated with 
any school that has lost or been denied eligibility to participate in Federal Student 
Financial Aid (Title IV) programs? If the answer is YES, please attach a statement  
which details the facts and circumstances surrounding the loss or denial of Title IV 
eligibility. 

  

4. 

Is any action pending (e.g. court action, audit, inquiry, review, administrative 
action), or has action been taken, by any court or administrative body (e.g. federal 
or state court, grand jury, special investigator, U.S. Department of Education, or 
any state or federal regulatory or law enforcement agency) with regard to any 
owner or manager or with regard to any institution with which any owner or 
manager has previously been affiliated? If the answer is YES, please attach a 
statement which gives full disclosure of the person(s) and the matters involved. 
Include a statement of the facts and circumstances surrounding the action 
identifying the owner or manager and the school involved. If the matter is not yet 
final, please describe the procedural status of the matter (i.e., still under 
investigation, preliminary decision under appeal, etc.) and the position taken by 
the owner or manager involved. If the matter is final, provide a copy of the final 
action documentation. 

  

5. 

Has any owner or manger been employed at or affiliated with a school where either 
that individual or the school has been charged or indicted in a civil or criminal 
forum or proceeding alleging fraud, misappropriation, or any criminal act? If the 
answer is YES, please attach a statement which gives full disclosure of the 
person(s) and the matters involved. Include a statement of the facts and 
circumstances surrounding the action identifying the owner or manager and the 
school which is involved. If the matter is not yet final, please describe the 
procedural status of the matter (i.e., still under investigation, preliminary decision 
under appeal, etc.) and the position taken by the owner or manager involved. If the 
matter is final, provide a copy of the final action documentation. 
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5. The vendor must provide a narrative explanation for YES answers to the questions above. 

6. If the third-party answered YES to any of the items above in this section, the school must 
provide an explanation as to why the school chose this vendor despite the vendor’s 
disclosures and past records. The school must also articulate how this vendor can serve as 
a reliable source to verify the accuracy of the school’s data. 

7. Explanation of training on ACCSC’s definitions and methodology for counting students as 
verified as correct, verified as different, verified as not correct, or not verified provided to 
each person directly responsible for executing the independent third-party verifications. 
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VIII – SEPARATE FACILITIES 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation)  
 
Separate facilities are created by and related to a main school or branch campus. These criteria are 
in addition to those set forth elsewhere in the Standards of Accreditation. 
 
A. BRANCH CAMPUS 

1. List the name and address of each branch campus and the educational or training 
program(s) offered at each branch campus.  

2. For each branch, describe how that campus is permanent in nature, has its own faculty and 
administrative or supervisory organization, and provides for all required educational 
resources and student services (e.g., advising, testing, library resources, financial aid, 
employment assistance, etc.).  

3. Describe the structure and process for management and oversight of the branch campus 
and how this system has been effective in ensuring the school meets its objectives, fulfills 
its obligations to students, and meets or exceeds accrediting standards on an ongoing basis. 
Identify the ownership and management entity that controls the main school and the 
branch. 

4. List the individuals responsible for management of the school (including campus-based 
and corporate oversight) and provide a detailed description of how each member of the 
management team is qualified for his or her particular role, including education, training, 
experience, and demonstrated ability to lead and manage a post-secondary educational 
institution. Provide an organizational chart depicting the management structure. 

5. If a branch campus operates under a different name than the main school, demonstrate that 
all applicable state requirements have been met, and that each school’s catalog and 
enrollment agreement clearly define the relationship between a branch location and its 
main school. 

6. Describe how the main school has sufficient financial and managerial resources to operate 
and supervise its separate facilities. 

 
B. SATELLITE LOCATION 

1. List the name and address of each satellite location and the educational or training 
program(s) offered at each satellite location.  

2. Provide the distance, both in miles and travel time, from the satellite location to the main 
school or branch. Explain how this distance is a reasonable commuting distance. 

3. Describe how the main school or branch manages each satellite location. Demonstrate that 
the school has sufficient financial and managerial resources to operate and supervise its 
satellite location(s). 
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4. Explain how the school supervises and provides services to staff and students at all satellite 
location(s). Describe how students attending each satellite location have access to 
educational and support services that are equivalent to those offered to students at the 
oversight school. 

5. If a satellite location provides more than 50% of any one program, submit a separate 
Graduation and Employment Chart for that program for the students attending the satellite 
location. 

6. Demonstrate that each satellite location bears the same name as the main school or branch, 
and that the relationship between each satellite location and its branch or main school 
oversight entity is identified in all advertising and publications.  

C. DISTANCE EDUCATION FACILITY 
1. List the name and address of each distance education facility and the educational or training 

program(s) offered at each distance education facility. 

2. Provide documentation showing that each distance education facility is licensed by the 
appropriate state regulatory agency(ies). 

3. Describe how the main school or branch manages each distance education facility.  

4. Describe how the main school or branch has sufficient financial and managerial resources 
to operate and supervise its distance education location(s). 

5. Explain how the school supervises and provides services to staff and students at all distance 
education location(s). Describe how students have access to educational and support 
services that are equivalent to those offered to students at the oversight school. 

6. Demonstrate that each distance education location bears the same name as the main school 
or branch, and that the relationship between each distance education location and its branch 
or main school oversight entity is identified in all advertising and publications. 
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IX – DISTANCE EDUCATION 
 
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE (from the Standards of Accreditation) 
 
This section provides specific requirements for the delivery of distance education. Distance 
education, as defined by the Commission, is a formal process in which instruction within a program 
or course of study occurs when the student and instructor are not in the same location at the same 
time. Distance education employs telecommunication or other technologies (e.g., learning 
management system) for the delivery of instruction, and may be synchronous or asynchronous in 
nature including documented activities.  
 
A. GENERAL DISTANCE EDUCATION REQUIREMENTS 

1. Describe how the school ensures that only appropriate programs or courses of study are 
taught using distance education methodologies (the delivery of educational materials via 
technology); that assessment measures are in place for admissions, student progress, and 
student achievement; and that appropriate resources and services are available to support 
student success. 

2. Demonstrate that the school obtained all necessary authorizations or approval(s) as 
required by applicable state oversight agencies where the school has enrollments or intends 
to enroll. If a state does not require approval, provide evident to this effect. 

B. MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OPERATIONS 
1. Describe how the school’s distance education administrator or team of administrators are 

qualified to knowledgeably and effectively oversee the school’s distance education 
program(s)/course(s) of study, and how they ensure that these program(s)/course(s) of 
study meet the objectives and the mission of the school. 

2. Provide evidence that the school’s distance education administrator or team of 
administrators participate in ongoing distance education development and training 
activities.  

3. Describe how the school ensures that it has the appropriate management, administrative 
capacity, and infrastructure to support growth in each distance education program. 

4. Provide the operational policies and procedures for distance education. What is the process 
for developing, reviewing, and updating the operational policies and procedures relative to 
distance education? Describe how the school ensures that policies and procedures are 
appropriate to support the programs or courses of study.  

5. Explain how the school retains responsibility for the quality of the program(s)/course(s) of 
study offered through distance education methods and the achievement of expected and 
acceptable outcomes, irrespective of any contractual arrangements, partnerships, or 
consortia entered into with third parties for the provision of components of a distance 
education program or course of study.  
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6.  Provide the school’s institutional assessment and improvement plan for distance education, 
which outlines, at a minimum, the following: 

a. The school’s plan to ensure that sufficient facilities, equipment, technology, and other 
resources and infrastructure associated with distance education are appropriate to the 
subject matter of the program or courses of study, and are integrated in the long-term 
institutional assessment and improvement plan and budget of the school; and 

b. The school’s plan to directly review and maintain responsibility for the currency and 
quality of all distance education components as part of its institutional assessment and 
improvement activities.  

7. Describe the school’s authentication policies and processes regarding student verification 
in a distance education course or program as follows: 

a. How does the school verify that the student who registers in a distance education course 
or program is the same student who participates in and completes the course or 
program? How does the school verify the identity of the student who participates in 
class or coursework? What methods (e.g. a secure login and pass code, proctored 
examinations, new or other technologies and practices that are effective in verifying 
student identity) does the school use to ensure that only registered students can 
complete the required coursework and be awarded academic credit?  \ 

b. What processes does the school have to protect privacy and notify students of any 
projected additional student charges associated with the verification of student identity 
at the time of registration or enrollment? 

 
C. OBJECTIVES AND STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 

1. Describe the outcomes expected from the distance education program(s)/course(s) of 
study. (Specify the expected knowledge, skills, and competency levels that students will 
achieve in the distance education program or course of study). Explain how the objectives 
of distance education program(s)/course(s) of study are consistent with the mission of the 
school and its educational and training objectives.  

2. Describe how the program(s)/course(s) of study are appropriate for delivery through 
distance education methods. 

3. Describe how the objectives of distance education program(s)/course(s) of study are readily 
available for student consideration.  

4. Explain how the school facilitates the delivery of course content such that students may 
reasonably be expected to achieve the learning outcomes. 

5. Explain how the school assesses student learning and achievement outcomes. 
 

D. PROGRAMS, CURRICULA, AND RESOURCES 
1. Describe how the length of each distance education program or course of study is 

appropriate to achieve the specified objectives and outcomes. 
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2. Explain and describe the method or methods of delivery (i.e., asynchronous electronic media, 
synchronous electronic media, etc.) utilized for each distance education program or course of 
study. 

3. Explain how each distance education program or course of study provides for timely and 
meaningful interaction between students and faculty, and among students.  

4. Describe the resources available to support the distance education program(s)/course(s) of 
study and explain how the resources are sufficient, current, comprehensive, appropriate to 
the subject matter, and available to students. 

5. Provide a copy of the school’s policies on ownership of instructional materials and 
protection of copyright. Describe how the school adheres to these policies. 

6. Learning resource system: 

a. Describe how the learning resource system for distance education program(s)/course(s) 
of study meets all necessary requirements outlined in Section II (A)(7), Substantive 
Standards, Standards of Accreditation and be available in an online format. 

b. Explain how students will have access to learning resources equivalent to those 
available to students in residential programs at the school.  

c. Describe the training and support services that the school provides students to facilitate 
access to learning resource materials. 

d. Describe how the school evaluates the adequacy and accessibility of the resources and 
services on an ongoing basis.  

 
E. CATALOG AND ADVERTISING 

1. Describe how the catalog contains a description or summary of the delivery system, the 
prerequisites for participation, expected learning outcomes, graduation requirements, student 
services, technology and equipment requirements, and any other requirements. 

2. Describe how the school recruits students for, advertises for, and promotes the distance 
education program(s)/course(s) of study.  

3. Provide a copy of the advertisements and promotional materials used for the distance 
education program(s)/course(s) of study. 

 
F. ADMISSIONS REQUIREMENTS AND ENROLLMENTS 

1. Provide the admissions requirements for enrollment into each distance education program 
or course of study.  

2. Provide the school’s distance education assessment(s) that is used as part of the admissions 
process.  

a. Explain how the school uses this assessment to determine if a student has the technical 
skills, competencies, and access to technology necessary to succeed in a distance 
education environment prior to their enrollment in the program or course of study.  
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b. Explain how the school uses this assessment to determine if a student has the capability 
to benefit from enrolling in a distance education program prior to enrollment. Describe 
how the assessment tool determines if the student’s learning style is conducive to online 
learning. 

3. How does the school use engagement surveys, academic progress, and student achievement 
data to measure the validity and reliability of the assessment tools used to determine a 
student’s readiness for distance education? 

 
G. FACULTY 

1. List the faculty members who teach in each distance education program or course of study. 
Include on the list a summary of the qualifications, credentials, and distance education 
teaching experience of each faculty member listed. Provide the school’s hiring criteria for 
faculty who teach using distance education methods (see Section III (B), Substantive 
Standards, Standards of Accreditation). 

2. Describe how the school provides orientation and training for faculty who teach using 
distance education methods. Explain how this orientation addresses teaching skills and 
instructional methods in a distance education environment. 

3. Provide a copy of the policies, measures, and procedures the school uses to evaluate the 
performance and resource needs of faculty members in a distance education 
program(s)/course(s) of study. Explain how the school assesses faculty effectiveness in 
distance education program(s)/course(s) of study. 

4. Provide a copy of the school’s policies governing faculty, and explain how these policies 
address teaching load (inclusive of residential and distance education), class size, time 
needed for course development, and the sharing of instructional responsibilities that allow 
for effective teaching in a distance education environment. Describe how the school 
ensures that faculty and staff respond in a timely manner to student questions and concerns, 
both academic and administrative. 

5. Explain how the school ensures that faculty members provide opportunities and means for 
timely and meaningful interaction with students that is appropriate to the distance 
education environment. 

6. If the distance education program(s)/course(s) of study include(s) an externship, provide 
the written training plan and goals for students that specify the particular application and 
experiences that are to be secured during the externship.  

7. Provide the information for the designated school employee responsible for the supervision 
of the externship for distance education students (if applicable). Describe how this 
designated school employee has appropriate qualifications (see Section II (A)(6), 
Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation). 

 
H. STUDENT SERVICES 
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1. Provide a copy of the school’s written policies and procedures which address student 
services for those students enrolled in the distance education program(s)/course(s) of study. 
Describe the resources that are available to support the student services provided by the 
school. 

2. Explain how the school’s student services are available to students enrolled in distance 
education program(s)/course(s) of study.  

3. Describe how the school ensures adequate supervision of its student services for students 
enrolled in a distance education program(s)/course(s) of study. 

4. Provide a copy of the school’s orientation materials for students enrolled in a distance 
education program(s)/course(s) of study. 

5. Explain how the school maintains records of attendance and satisfactory academic 
progress.
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OCCUPATION SPECIALIST INFORMATION PACKAGE OUTLINE 
 
The Commission requires that the on-site evaluation team for each school seeking renewal 
of accreditation include an Occupation Specialist for each program, or groups of related 
programs, offered by the school. Therefore, complete Appendix A for each distinct program 
or group of closely related programs offered at the school. Note that the below is only that 
information which is relevant and necessary for the Occupation Specialist review. 
 
II – PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 
 
A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Approval and Programmatic Accreditation 

a. For each program that requires accreditation (institutional or programmatic) and/or 
approval by a third-party regulatory agency (e.g., state agency, licensing agency, 
oversight board, national certification entity, etc.) for the purpose of licensure, 
certification, or employment, provide documentation that such accreditation or third-
party recognition has been achieved and is in good standing.. 

2. Program Organization and Length 

a. Provide an Outline of a Non-Degree Program, Outline of a Degree Program, or Outline 
of a Baccalaureate or Master’s Degree with Concentrations, as applicable, for each 
program or each related program. Explain how the mix of courses comprising each 
program is appropriate. 

b. Describe how the school ensures that there are detailed and organized instructional 
outlines and course syllabi for each program showing a scope and sequence of subject 
matter sufficient to achieve the program objectives and to acquire the necessary 
knowledge, skills, and competencies.  

c. Explain how the school has determined that the length of each program offered is 
appropriate to enable students to achieve the program objectives and to acquire the 
knowledge and skills necessary for initial employment in the field for which training is 
provided. Provide a summary of external validation in regard to each program’s length. 
Include an explanation as to how the program length conforms to any applicable 
regulatory requirements or state, federal, or national standards. 

d. For every program, explain how the program name accurately aligns to program 
objectives and describe the balance of didactic, supervised laboratory/shop, and 
externship hours, including the process and procedure for determining that the 
distribution of educational pedagogy is appropriate to achieve the announced objectives 
and to acquire the knowledge, skills, and competencies necessary, minimally, for initial 
employment in the field for which training is provided. 

e. If the number of clock or credit hours in the school’s programs differ significantly from 
comparable programs (i.e., that prepare graduates for the same occupational field), 
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provide justification of the program length. The justification must include regional 
comparisons with similar programs. 

3. Program Evaluation 

a. Describe the school’s systematic and evidence-based process to evaluate curriculum 
and course content (i.e., academic general education, applied general education, 
technical and occupational courses, electives, etc.), assess the appropriateness of that 
coursework in relation to program objectives, assess program viability, and make 
revisions to the curriculum as deemed necessary. The evaluation process must include 
internal and external benchmarking and demonstrate involvement from internal sources 
(i.e., faculty, staff, and students) and external sources (i.e., Program Advisory 
Committees, employers, community representatives, and graduates).  

b. Provide the timeline for programmatic review and demonstrate how this process is 
incorporated as part of the school’s institutional assessment and improvement planning 
process. 

4. Instructional Materials and Equipment 

a. For each program, describe the school’s instructional materials and how they are 
sufficiently comprehensive and reflect current teaching practice and methodology for 
the fields of study being offered. 

b. For each program, describe the school’s instructional equipment and how it is similar 
to that found in common occupational practice and includes teaching devices and 
supplemental instructional aids appropriate to the subject. 

c. For each program, explain how the school’s equipment and learning stations are 
sufficient in number to allow each student adequate scheduled time for practice and the 
school require the use of safety equipment where applicable. 

d. For each program, explain how the school’s machinery and equipment is properly 
maintained and provided with proper safety devices, and how the school ensures that 
they are used whenever the machinery and equipment is operated. 

e. For each program, provide a summary of external validation regarding the school’s 
instructional materials and equipment.  

5. Program Advisory Committees  

a. Provide a list of the Program Advisory Committee members (Note:  Program Advisory 
Committees must be comprised of appropriately qualified representatives external to 
the institution (i.e., non-school employees)) for each program or group of related 
programs, using the following chart adding the program name and credential in the top 
row.  

Program Advisory Committee - Program Name & Credential:  
Title Telephone Number Review Responsibilities 

(check as applicable) 
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b. Demonstrate through completion of the following chart that the school conducts at least 

two regularly scheduled meetings annually for the Program Advisory Committee for 
each program or group of related programs. List all meetings held since the last review 
of accreditation in the following table. 

Program Advisory 
Committee  

(by Program Area) 

Meeting Date # of members present 

   
   

c. Provide copies of minutes for the last four meetings of the school’s Program Advisory 
Committee(s) for each program or group of related programs. (In addition, have 
available the minutes from each Program Advisory Committee meeting held during the 
school’s term of accreditation for review by the team during the on-site evaluation, see 
Appendix B.) 

6. Learning Resource System 

a. Explain how the school’s learning resource materials are commensurate with the level 
of education provided and appropriate to the courses of study in sufficient quantity and 
scope to meet the educational objectives of each program.  

b. Explain how the school has integrated use of the learning resource system materials 
into the school’s curriculum and program requirements.  

7. Externships 

a. For each program that has an externship component, provide a sample written training 
plan which specifies the goals, educational objectives, and specific experiences and 
applications to be accomplished, as well as the required educational resources, 
established timelines for the externship, and the evaluation process and criteria to be 
used. Additionally, the training plan must designate an on-site supervisor from the 
occupational setting who will guide and oversee the student learning experience and 
participate in student evaluations. 

b. Demonstrate through completion of the following chart(s) that externships are 
supervised by a designated school employee who has the appropriate practical work 
experience qualifications for instructors as follows: 

i. For externships in a non-degree or in an occupational associate degree program, 
instructor practical work experience means three years of related practical work 
experience in the occupational field associated with the training provided. 
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Instructor 

Name Description and Dates of Work Experience 

  

ii. For externships in an academic degree program, instructor practical work 
experience means four years of related practical work experience in the 
occupational field associated with the training provided and an earned related 
degree at least at the same degree level as the program for which the externship is 
a component. 

Instructor 
Name 

Degree or 
Credits 

Earned / Yr. 
Description and Dates of Work Experience 

   
 
III–EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATION & FACULTY QUALIFICATIONS 
 
A. FACULTY QUALIFICATIONS 

1. Faculty Qualifications - Technical and Occupationally Related Courses 

a. As applicable, list the faculty teaching technical and occupationally related courses in 
either non-degree or occupational associate degree programs and demonstrate that 
they have a minimum of three years of related practical work experience by completing 
the following chart. 
Instructor 

Name 
Course(s) 

taught Description of Work Experience From 
(m/y) 

To 
(m/y) 

     

b. As applicable, list the faculty teaching technical and occupationally related courses in 
an academic associate or baccalaureate degree program and demonstrate that they 
have a minimum of four years of related practical work experience in the subject area(s) 
taught and that they possess a related degree at least at the same level of the course the 
faculty member is teaching by completing the following chart. 
Instructor 

Name 
Course(s) 

taught 
Degree 

Earned / Yr. 
Description of Work 

Experience 
From 
(m/y) 

To 
(m/y) 

      

2. Faculty Qualifications – Applied General Education 

a. As applicable, list the faculty teaching applied general education courses in a non-
degree program and demonstrate that each has three years prior relevant work 
experience or college-level coursework in the subject area(s) taught or an appropriate 
mix thereof that aligns with the curriculum content being taught by completing the 
following chart. 
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Instructor 
Name 

Course(s) 
taught 

Degree or Credits 
Earned / Yr. 

Description of Work 
Experience 

From 
(m/y) 

To 
(m/y) 

      

b. As applicable. list the faculty teaching applied general education courses in an 
occupational associate degree program and demonstrate that they have a baccalaureate 
degree with appropriate coursework and preparation in the subject area(s) taught or 
eight years related practical work experience and 15 credits of college level coursework 
in the subject area(s) taught by completing the following chart. 
Instructor 

Name 
Course(s) 

taught 
Degree or Credits 

Earned / Yr. 
Description of Work 

Experience 
From 
(m/y) 

To 
(m/y) 

      

3. Faculty Qualifications – Academic General Education 

a. As applicable, list the faculty teaching academic general education courses in a 
terminal non-degree program and demonstrate that each has a minimum of a 
baccalaureate degree with a minimum of 15 semester credit hours (or the equivalent) 
in the subject areas taught. 
Instructor 

Name 
Course(s) 

taught Degree Earned / Yr. Related Subject Matter Credits Earned / 
Yr. (Indicate Undergrad. Or Grad. Credit) 

    

b. As applicable, list the faculty teaching academic general education courses in a degree 
program or in a non-degree program that articulates to a degree program and 
demonstrate that they have, at a minimum, a master’s degree with a minimum of 15 
semester credit hours (or the equivalent) in related subject areas which support the 
curriculum content by completing the following chart. 
Instructor 

Name 
Course(s) 

taught Degree Earned / Yr. Related Subject Matter Credits Earned / 
Yr. (Indicate Undergrad. Or Grad. Credit) 

    

4. As applicable, list the faculty teaching other courses (e.g., electives, orientation, career 
services, health and wellness, and life skills, etc.) and describe how each faculty member 
is appropriately qualified based upon the type of course content offered and upon criteria 
established by the school that relies upon necessary experience and/or educational 
background requirements. 

5. As applicable, list the graduate level faculty and document that at least 50% of the graduate 
level courses included in the master’s degree program are taught by faculty members who 
possess a minimum of four years of related practical work experience, and an earned 
doctorate degree or other terminal degree in a related field of study. 

Instructor 
Name 

Course(s) 
taught 

Degree Earned / 
Yr. 

Description and Dates of 
Work Experience 

Prep. In 
Subject Area 
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6. Are any of the faculty for this program or related programs subject to qualification 
requirements by a local, state, or federal government agency or other accrediting body that 
are more stringent than or impose additional requirements from ACCSC’s standards? If so, 
list the oversight entity and provide a written description of the additional and/or more 
stringent requirements. 

7. Provide a list of faculty subject to the additional and/or more stringent requirements: 

Program 
(Credential) Instructor  Name 

Applicable Licensure 
Agency/Programmatic 

Accreditor

Description of documentation on file 
supporting qualifications for a programmatic 

accreditor and/or licensure eligibility
    

 
VII – STUDENT LEARNING, ASSESSMENT, PROGRESS, AND ACHIEVEMENT 
 
A. STUDENT LEARNING, ASSESSMENT, AND SATISFACTORY PROGRESS 

1. Describe the student learning outcomes for each program or each related program. Explain 
how the student learning outcomes align with the program objectives and the level of 
education intended (e.g., non-degree, degree, degree level); and how the student learning 
outcomes reflect the necessary occupational and academic knowledge, skills, and 
competencies.  

B. STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 
1. For each program for which the reported rates of student graduation, graduate employment, 

or licensure/certification pass rates do not meet the ACCSC benchmark in that area, the 
school must provide an updated assessment of the factors impacting the rates of student 
graduation (e.g., admissions requirements and student support) and graduate employment 
(e.g., economic conditions), how the strategies implemented by the school are intended to 
target those factors, and how the school is measuring the effectiveness of those strategies. 
The school may provide the following supplemental information: 

 Other reliable indicators of successful student learning with supporting documentation. 

 Evidence of other factors such as economic conditions, state and national trends, 
location, student population served, length of programs, students who withdraw from 
training but still obtain employment, state requirements, or other external or mitigating 
factors where applicable. 

2. Are any of the school’s programs currently subject to ACCSC Outcomes Reporting? For 
all programs subject to Outcomes Reporting, if any, provide the most recent graduation 
and employment rates reported to the Commission. 
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The following preparations will assist the team in conducting an efficient, effective evaluation of 
your institution. Be aware that there may be additional items and/or information requested by team 
members at the time of the on-site evaluation.  
 
Best Practices for an On-Site Evaluation: 

 Set aside a separate secure room for the Commission team. The security of the room shall not 
allow the school to eavesdrop or record (audio or video) the team at any time during the on-
site evaluation (See: Section III (H)(3), Rules of Process and Procedure, Standards of 
Accreditation). If possible, include in the separate room: 

o Internet access and any required access codes; 

o Adequate outlets/extension cords; 

o Basic office supplies such as a notepad, stapler, binder clips, pens, highlighters, paper clips, 
and post-it notes; 

o The ability to print documents on an as needed basis; and 

o Water or access to water. 

 Have students in regular attendance avoiding scheduled breaks, special exams, and field trips. 

 Have as many instructional and administrative staff present as possible for both day and 
evening classes. 

 Have driving directions and parking information available for the team prior to arrival. If 
parking is limited, please have spots available for the on-site evaluation team.  

 
Team Room Materials: 

Please have the following available in the team room upon arrival: 

1. A narrative summary along with a list, as applicable, of any updated information or items since 
the submission of the Revised Application for Renewal of Accreditation and Self-Evaluation 
Report. Examples of items that commonly have been updated include: program modifications, 
changes to staff or faculty, and updated insurance information; 

2. For each program or related set of programs, a printed copy of Appendix A along with 
materials currently in use, including curricula, syllabi; example lesson plans, textbooks, 
handouts, and instructor guidebooks; 

3. A key for any abbreviations the school uses for program names in materials provided to the 
team; 

4. Four bound catalogs completely cross-referenced with the Catalog Checklist (these may not 
be drafts); 

5. Three printed enrollment agreements completely cross-referenced with the Enrollment 
Agreement Checklist (these may not be drafts); 

6. A current Program Chart reflecting all programs offered; 
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7. Three copies of the current Organizational Chart to include the names, department(s), and 
reporting structure; 

8. An updated list of all current staff to include on-site contact information (i.e., telephone 
number/extension): 

Position 
Staff 

Member’s 
Name 

FT / 
PT 

Assumed 
Duties 

(month/year) 

Date 
Employment 

Ceased 
(month/year) 

Number of 
Years 

Employed 
Reason 

Contact Info 
during On-site 

Evaluation 
(current employees) 

        

9. A list of all current faculty separated by program area taught, highlighting anyone hired since 
the submission of the Self-Evaluation Report; 

10. Three copies of the class schedules including names of instructors, course title, room numbers, 
and number of students in each class, for all programs (including new programs, as applicable); 

11. A list of all current students separated by program of study and organized by cohort to 
include the following information: start date, session (day/evening, etc.), and full/part-time;  

12.  The number of students per program and total number of students as listed in the following 
chart (add lines as necessary): 

Program Name Credential Length in Months Number of Students 
(each program length) 

    
    

Total Number of Students 
(this should be the total of each program added together)  

13. A list of all graduates within the last 24 months organized by program of study and cohort to 
include the following information: start date, grad date, session (day/evening); and full/part 
time status, if applicable; 

14. An updated list of withdrawn/terminated students within the last 24 months, clearly indicating 
which students are due a refund, with the following summary information: 

Student Name 
/ ID # Program Start 

Date 
With. Or 

Term. Date 
Refund 

Due 
Amt. 
Paid 

Due 
Date 

Date 
Paid 

        

15. If applicable, a list of current students admitted on an ability-to-benefit basis organized by 
program of study and cohort to include the following information: start date, grad date, session 
(day/evening); and full/part time status, as applicable; 

16. If applicable, a list of students currently completing coursework via distance education to 
include the following information: start date, program, and an indication of whether the 
distance education coursework is 100% online, hybrid, or through a consortium agreement; 

17. If applicable, a list of all students who requested a leave of absence in the last 12 months 
including the following information: start date of the leave of absence; return date of leave of 
absence; termination date, as applicable; 
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18. If applicable, a list of students (current and graduate) within the last 12 months for which the 
school has accepted transfer credit; 

19. If applicable, a list of students (current and graduate) within the last 12 months who have 
completed coursework via independent study; 

20. A hard copy of the credential awarded upon graduation (blank diploma/certificate/degree) for 
each approved program; 

21. A copy of the state and/or local license to operate along with distance education approval, as 
applicable; 

22. A copy of the school’s Eligibility and Certification Approval Report (“ECAR”) and Program 
Participation Agreement (“PPA”); 

23. The most recent correspondence from the US Department of Education with regard to the 
school’s Cohort Default Rates including the rates for this specific campus if included in a 
shared OPEID number; 

24. A copy of the most recent compliance audit submitted to the Department of Education; 

25. The most recent correspondence regarding any reviews and/or audits by any accrediting, state, 
federal, or other regulatory agency; 

26. The most recent correspondence regarding any government-initiated investigations, 
complaints, legal or regulatory actions against the school, its parent company, or owners; 

27. Written policies and procedures for all key administrative and educational areas to include, if 
applicable, handbooks; 

28. Copies of all Program Advisory Committee minutes since the last grant of accreditation; 

29. Copies of all current advertising and promotional materials; 

30. The backup documentation (i.e., transcripts, waiver information, and employment information, 
etc.) for the most recent Annual Report submitted to ACCSC and verified updated/revised 
Graduation and Employment Charts, if applicable; 

31. The full report from the independent third-party verifier, including a list of the students in the 
sample, the results for each student, and the reasons for those results. 

 
Other Materials and Documentation: 

Although it is not necessary to have the following documentation present in the team room. Please 
be aware that the team will need ready access to the following: 

 Copies of any student complaints for the last five years filed with the school, accrediting 
bodies, or governmental agencies; 

 Completed faculty and student surveys conducted by the school in the last 12 months; 

 A copy of the training program and/or tool that is utilized by the school to provide training in 
instructional methods and teaching skills for instructors; 

 Implementation documentation for institutional assessment and improvement planning; 
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 The school’s current budget; 

 Documentation of student work to demonstrate that the awarding of credit hours is in 
accordance with the established curriculum and credit hour policies (for 
technical/occupational, applied general education, general education, and graduate levels as 
applicable). Supporting documents for each course may include: attendance records and sign-
in sheets, student outside work/preparation expected for the course, course lectures for didactic 
hours, sign-in sheets for supervised laboratory time, completed assignments, and quizzes; 

 Documentation of the school’s learning resource system orientation materials for students and 
staff; 

 An example of assignments or projects that require student use of the school learning resource 
materials; 

 Files of applicants denied admission to the school over the last five years; 

 The following items must be available and/or easily accessible in each Staff file for review: 
 Documentation of verified prior practical work experience; 
 Documentation of academic background and qualifications; 
 Copies of any required certifications or licenses, where applicable;  

 Signed Code of Conduct4 documents for all school personnel whose primary 
responsibilities are to engage in recruiting and admissions functions, as applicable; 

 Copies of assessments/supervisory evaluations; and 
 Documentation of training and professional development activities. 

 The following items must be available and/or easily accessible in each faculty file for review: 
 Documentation of verified prior practical work experience; 
 Documentation of academic credentials; 
 Copies of any required certifications or licenses;  
 Copies of faculty assessments/supervisory evaluations; and 
 Documentation of continuing education and professional development activities. 

 The following items must be available and/or easily accessible (i.e., electronic formats able to 
be viewed) in each Current Student and Graduate file for review: 
 Copy of all admissions documentation (i.e. high school diploma, GED transcript, ATB test 

results, application, required additional assessment results, etc.); 
 Translation and certification of equivalency for foreign credentials, where applicable; 
 Copy of the enrollment agreement; 
 Grade sheet and/or transcript that shows attendance and grades (completion date and 

credential awarded for graduates as well);  
 Documentation of student services delivered; and 
 Copies of written notice of any notice given to the student regarding Satisfactory Academic 

Progress. 
                                                           
4 Appendix V - Recruitment and Admissions Personnel Code of Conduct, Standards of Accreditation 
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 The following items must be available and easily accessible in each drop file for review: 
 Copy of admissions documentation (i.e. high school diploma, GED transcript, ATB test 

results, application, required additional assessment results, etc.); 
 Copy of the enrollment agreement; 
 Grade sheet or transcript to show last date of attendance;  
 Return of Title IV determination date (i.e. last date of attendance or date of determination); 
 Refund calculation worksheet;  
 Ledger card; and 
 Cancelled check, or electronic submittal confirmation (EFT) to show proof of refund. 

 
Please be reminded that the following are not permitted during the Summary Review: 

 Court reporter; 

 Legal counsel; or 

 Audio or video recording. 
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- Occupation Specialist Candidates - 
 
The following guidelines and requirements will allow for the efficient identification of well-qualified 
candidates for the position of Occupation Specialist, serving as a subject matter specialist with the ACCSC 
on-site evaluation team.   
 
Occupation Specialist - An individual who represents a specific industry/trade, holds the required 
credential to legally work in the field, and has a work history that supports an independent “expert” 
representation of their occupational specialty.   
 
Benefits of Serving as an ACCSC Occupation Specialist:  
 
 The ability to provide feedback and suggestions regarding current industry trends and workplace 

expectations to the team and school. Through this feedback the Occupation Specialist facilitates 
improved training opportunities that result in a better-prepared workforce.  

 The opportunity to cultivate a network of professional contacts with school personnel to allow for 
possible employment opportunities for graduates and a resource of recently trained potential new 
employees for the employer. 

 The opportunity to gain professional development and a sense of “giving back” pride in the 
profession/industry represented by the Occupation Specialist. 

 ACCSC offers a $100 honorarium as a token of our appreciation, and reimburses for mileage and lunch 
upon submission of a fully executed ACCSC expense reimbursement form. 

 
Expectations for an Occupational Specialist: 
 
 The Occupation Specialist must be willing to spend approximately 2 hours of time per assigned 

program preparing for the onsite evaluation (i.e. ACCSC training and reading/reviewing materials) 

 The Occupation Specialist must be willing to spend approximately 2-3 hours of time per program onsite 
at the school actively reviewing the program during the team’s scheduled evaluation. This review 
includes touring the facility; reviewing the curriculum, equipment, and training aids utilized for the 
delivery of the program; determining the adequacy of the learning resource system’s (library) holdings; 
and commenting on the training program’s overall effectiveness in preparing graduates for entry-level 
employment in the field of study.  

 The Occupation Specialist must be willing to complete ACCSC observation/evaluation form and 
describe his/her observations to the ACCSC on-site evaluation team. 

 The Occupational Specialist must be willing to attest that he/she has no conflict of interest with the 
school. 

 
ACCSC on-site evaluation teams are required to include one (1) Occupation Specialist to review each 
training program or group of related training programs to provide external feedback regarding the 
occupational field for which training is provided. As such, ACCSC seeks quality Occupation Specialists to 
participate in this important team role. As part of the Renewal of Accreditation process, ACCSC requests 
that the school identify, in accordance with the guidelines below, three (3) to five (5) candidates per program 
(or group of related programs) that meet or exceed the criteria outlined below. These individuals must be 
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independent of the school and free of any relationship with the institution beyond that which is typical of a 
networked professional in the community. In providing candidates, the school will need to attest to the 
independence of each candidate advanced by the school and to confirm that no incentive was used to obtain 
the individuals’ permission to be nominated as an Occupation Specialist candidate. 
 
Occupation Specialist Criteria – The school may only provide Occupational Specialist candidates that 
are “independent” and meet the following criteria: 

 The Occupational Specialist must meet the following tests to be considered an “independent” evaluator: 

- The Occupational Specialist cannot be a current or former student of the school; 

- The Occupational Specialist cannot be a current or former employee of the school; 

- The Occupational Specialist cannot be affiliated with the school in any way (e.g., Program 
Advisory Member, adjunct faculty for an affiliated school, etc.); and 

- The Occupational Specialist has no conflict of interest with the school that would compromise 
his/her ability to give an unbiased evaluation of the school’s program, such as; 

o He/she cannot have a direct or indirect investment in the outcome of the program evaluation; 

o He/she cannot have a relationship with anyone at the school that would compromise the 
integrity of the evaluation; and 

o He/she has not entered into an agreement, formally or informally, with the school that would 
compromise integrity of the evaluation. 

 The Occupation Specialist must be a current working professional in the field/industry in which the 
school offers a training program. 

 The Occupation Specialist must hold the necessary required credential/certification/license to represent 
the industry. 

 The Occupation Specialist must have at least five years of hands-on work experience in the 
field/industry. 

Attestation and Signature: 
 
I certify that the school has not provided any incentive (real, perceived, or otherwise) to the 
individuals whose contact information is being provided to potentially serve as qualified, independent 
parties in the role of Occupation Specialists on the ACCSC evaluation team.  
 
 
Name:  Title: 
 
 
 
Signature:  Date: 
Highest Ranking Official 
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Attachments to Appendix C: 
 
1. The ACCSC Occupation Specialist Candidate Contact Sheet5 
 

ACCSC OCCUPATION SPECIALIST CANDIDATE CONTACT SHEET   
Please provide the requested contact information for three (3) to five (5) local individuals per training program/group of related programs who meet 
the required criteria outlined in Appendix C and who have agreed to participate as qualified and independent Occupation Specialists on the ACCSC 
accreditation onsite evaluation team if contacted. 

TRAINING 
PROGRAM NAME 

NAME OF 
OCCUPATION 
SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

TITLE OF 
OCCUPATION 
SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

TYPE AND YEARS 
OF EXPERIENCE 
IN THE FIELD 

EMPLOYER OF 
OCCUPATION 
SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

PHONE NUMBER 
OF OCCUPATION 

SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

E‐MAIL ADDRESS 
OF OCCUPATION 

SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

DATE SCHOOL 
CONTACTED 
PROPOSED 
CANDIDATE 

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

               

                                                           
5 It is understood that the Commission staff may not make contact with all individuals whose information is provided via the Occupation Specialist Contact Sheet. 
Commission staff may secure subject matter experts not listed in the Occupation Specialist Contact Sheet to serve as Occupational Specialists. In any event, upon 
appointment of the on-site evaluation team, the school will be promptly notified of the names of the prospective team members. 
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TRAINING 
PROGRAM NAME 

NAME OF 
OCCUPATION 
SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

TITLE OF 
OCCUPATION 
SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

TYPE AND YEARS 
OF EXPERIENCE 
IN THE FIELD 

EMPLOYER OF 
OCCUPATION 
SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

PHONE NUMBER 
OF OCCUPATION 

SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

E‐MAIL ADDRESS 
OF OCCUPATION 

SPECIALIST 
CANDIDATE 

DATE SCHOOL 
CONTACTED 
PROPOSED 
CANDIDATE 
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School: School Number: 

City: State: Zip Code: 

 

Employee’s Name: Title: 

Date of initial employment: Years in Current Position: Full-time Part-time 
  

 
Responsibilities:   

  

  
 
PLEASE PROVIDE A NARRATIVE EXPLANATION OF QUALIFICATIONS FOR ROLE IN THE SCHOOL: 

  

  

  

  

  

 
ALLOCATION OF TIME  Hours in a Typical Week  

Assignment Morning Hours Afternoon Hours Evening Hours 

Administration    

Student Advising    

Teaching    

Other Duties    

TOTAL HOURS    
 
POSTSECONDARY EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND 

School – City, State From 
Mo/Yr 

To 
Mo/Yr Area of Study Type of Credential 

Earned - Date 
Copy on 
File-Y/N 
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PRIOR WORK EXPERIENCE:* 

Company – City, State From 
Mo/Yr 

To 
Mo/Yr 

Job Title and Duties 

    

    

    

    

    
*Administrators who teach in the school should ensure to provide information which demonstrate prior practical work 
experience related to the subjects taught as required by Section III, Substantive Standards, Standards of Accreditation 
 
EDUCATIONAL ADMINISTRATION, MANAGEMENT, AND LEADERSHIP EDUCATION AND TRAINING: 

Institution and/or Program – City, 
State 

From 
Mo/Yr 

To 
Mo/Yr 

Nature of Training or Certification 
Received 

Copy on 
File-Y/N 

     

     

     

     

     
 
FOR ADMINISTRATORS WHO TEACH IN THE SCHOOL: 

Courses Taught (indicate course type w/ ) 
Non-

Degree 
Course 

Associate 
Level Course

Bacc. Level 
Course 

Graduate 
Level course 

Applied Gen. 
Ed. Gen. Ed. 

       

       

       

       

       
 
INSTRUCTOR TRAINING (i.e., training, preparation and continuing education in instructional methods and 
teaching skills for residential and/or distance education faculty – See Sections III and IX, Substantive Standards, 
Standards of Accreditation. 

School/Training Site – City, State From 
Mo/Yr 

To 
Mo/Yr 

Name and Nature of 
Training/Education/Certification Received

Copy on 
File-Y/N
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LIST LICENSES, CERTIFICATIONS, PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS, AND MEMBERSHIPS AND YEAR 
OBTAINED: 
 
  

  

  

  

LIST CONTINUING EDUCATION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES: 
 
  

  

  

  

 
By submitting this report to ACCSC, both the school and the staff member certify that the information contained 
herein, attached hereto, and maintained on file with the school is correct and that the staff member’s qualifications 
comply with the applicable Standards of Accreditation. 
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